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DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”), | hereby present the
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

During the year, the Group continued to make efforts in
developing its core business relating to the geographic
information industry and recorded a total revenue of
approximately HK$232.8 million representing a decrease of
23.65% compared with the year ended 31 December 2015. The
core business mainly consists of three segments, namely the
geospatial business application and services, data collection, and
development and sales of equipment.

The Group improved the development of its various businesses
by adjusting its business segments, strengthening its
management system and optimizing its staffing structure, based
on the needs for business transformation during the past year.

In the new year, the Group will conform to major national
demands by exploring new directions of industry development,
while maintaining a stable pace of development in conventional
geographic Information industry. In the year 2017, the Group will
focus on developing the following industries, striving to achieve
the transformation into an industry data and solutions provider.

PROSPECTS

Businesses capturing the demands arising from
national major projects

National real estate registration and related data integration
and services

According to the overall progress of real estate registration work
of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), all governments at
county level or above had completed the early-stage preparatory
work for real estate registration by the end of the year 2016, and
have initiated the issuance of real estate registration certificates
and data integration business in some regions.
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The Group undertook a large amount of management rights
of rural land, ownership rights and the rights to the use of rural
collective land, and the specification of rights to the use of land
for construction purposes and investigation projects since the
year 2016, and obtained precious experience for developing real
estate registration and related business. Real estate registration
related business will develop vigorously in the year 2017.

Specification of property rights to water and unitary
specification of rights to natural resources and spaces

On 4 November 2016, Ministry of Water Resources of the
PRC and Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC, with the
approval of the State Council of the PRC, jointly issued the “Pilot
Program for the Specification of Property Rights to Water” {7Ki7&
EEMERERES 255 22)), formulated in accordance with the “Overall
Plan for the Reform of Eco-civilization System” ({4 A2 AR 22 4|
B 4AE8 7T 2)) issued by the State Council of the PRC and the
requirements of the comprehensively deepening reforms. On 23
December 2016, Ministry of Land and Resources of the PRC
held a press conference for the issuance of the “Measures for
Unitary Registration of and Determination of Property Rights to
Natural Resources (For Trial Implementation)” (B A& RZ= ]
S REREE R IEE(F97))), which imposes unitary registration
for specification of all the rights to natural resources including
waters, forests, mountains, grasslands, unreclaimed lands,
shoal and mineral resources with proven reserves, with the plan
of implementing pilot program in some regions from December
2016 to February 2018.

In view of the close association of real estate registration with
both the specification of property rights to water and the
specification of rights to natural resources and spaces, the Group
will conduct its real estate registration business in the year 2017
while tapping into business opportunities arising from these two
businesses from the year 2017 to the year 2018, by making all
necessary preparations in advance and laying a solid foundation
for the development of future business.
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Ecological redline business

Ecological conservation is one of the key contents for the year
2017 in the government work report delivered by Premier Li
Keqiang. It is the foundation for the building of an ecologically
civilized society. The setting of ecological redlines is also an
important institutional innovation of the PRC in environmental
protection. Ecological redlines refer to space boundaries and
environmental management limits that must be strictly conserved
in ecological services function, environmental quality and safety,
and natural resources utilization, so as to ensure national and
regional ecological safety, sustainable economic and social
development, and to secure people’s health.

The Group has, in collaboration with the relevant departments
of Ministry of Environmental Protection of the PRC, currently
launched pilot projects in several regions to develop
administrative measures for the implementation of ecological
redlines, and using geographic information based big data
service and technology to support the management of spaces
within ecological redlines. The Group expects to make certain
progress in relevant pilot business in the year 2017, which will lay
a solid foundation for comprehensive expansion of the ecological
redline business in the year 2018.

“Multiple Planning Integration” business

“Multiple Planning Integration” refers to the integration of multiple
plans such as national economy and social development plan,
urban-rural development plan, land utilization plan, and ecological
and environmental protection plan in a region, realizing one city
or one county having one plan and one blueprint, so as to solve
problems from various existing plans, such as self-contained
system, conflicts in content, lack of coordination, etc.
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The ecological redline planning pilot business that the Group
is developing is also an important part of ecological and
environmental protection plan. “Multiple Planning Integration”
involves basic geographic information data acquisition and
processing which is a core business of the Group for years,
where the Group has years of rich experience and advanced
technology to offer protection to the expansion of “Multiple
Planning Integration” business.

Expansion into emerging industries
Security and technical precautions informatization business

The Group secured for a pilot project of Ministry of Justice of
the PRC on security and technical precautions informatization
of prisons nationwide in the year 2015. After one year’s
development, debugging and deployment in the year 2016, the
pilot project has entered the stage of acceptance inspection and
completion at present. This pilot project was introduced and
promoted as a key project for security and technical precautions
informatization of prisons at the national security and technical
precautions development meeting of Ministry of Justice of the
PRC held at the end of December 2016. The prison management
authorities of multiple provinces that had introduced related
projects in the year 2016 openly expressed their intention to learn
from the model and development experience of the pilot project
S0 as to improve the management level of prison.

This business area currently fits in the blue ocean strategy of the
geographic information industry, the Group has established its
first-mover advantage and plans to further promote and secure
wider applications in the year 2017.

Smart city and its related business

Smart city solutions employ information and communication
technologies to sense, analyse and integrate relevant key
information of the core systems of running a city and provide
intelligent responses to various needs of the city, including
livelihood, environmental protection, public security, urban
service, and industrial and commercial activities.
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With years of experience accumulated from extensive industries
in geographic information business and various industries, the
Group is currently well positioned to enter the smart city industry
in a comprehensive manner. Backed by its strength of research
and development in cloud computing technology, it will focus on
key areas including spatiotemporal information cloud platform
development for smart city, smart tourism, smart environment,
and safe city. Currently, it has made preliminary research and
preparation for related smart city projects in multiple cites and is
actively coordinating with the government in building smart cities.

Agriculture insurance business

In the year 2016, the China Insurance Regulatory Commission
issued a document requiring precise insurance featuring “map-based
underwriting and map-based settlement of claims” for agriculture
insurance. The Group has accumulated geographic information
data with independent intellectual property rights and rich industry
experiences which will provide a good business support for precise
agriculture insurance business. The Group will actively explore
business opportunities in cooperation with insurance companies
and strive for major breakthroughs in the year 2017.

The year 2017 is a year of crucial importance for the Group’s
business transformation and upgrading, and of trailblazing and
innovation in key areas. The Board has confidence in attaining
the goals and delivering satisfactory returns to shareholders.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to
express our gratitude to all our management and staff members
for their diligence and dedication over the past year. Along the
line, we will continue to improve our existing operation and carry
out further exploration and development for important businesses
while ramping up development of new business ventures and
exploring mergers and acquisitions opportunities, with an aim of
enhancing shareholder’s value in the long run.

GUAN Hongliang
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 March 2017
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Continuing Operations
Business Related to Geographic Information Industry

During the year, the Group continued to commit to developing
its business relating to the geographic information industry,
which mainly consists of the geospatial business application
and services, data collection as well as development and
sales of equipment. Meanwhile, the Group commenced the
business transformation from a provider of comprehensive data
service based on big platform to a provider of industry data and
solutions, based on the trend of domestic geographic information
development as well as its financial capacity and service capacity.
During this challenging transformation, significant adjustments
have been made to business segments and corresponding major
management.

Business Application and Services

The Group has accumulated extensive experience and leading
competence in data processing and software development in
the PRC. The Group currently owns geographic information data
processing capacity that reaches leading international standard,
not only able to realize the automated processing of massive
image data, but also can process raw geographic image data into
“4D” data with diversified purposes, including digital orthophoto
model (DOM), digital elevation model (DEM), digital line graphics
(DLG) and digital raster graphics (DRG).
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Continuing Operations (Continued)
Business Application and Services (Continued)

During the year, the Group was undergoing a transformation
from a comprehensive mapping geographical information
service provider to an industry big data service provider, and
focused on developing the following business categories for
the business application and services segment: surveying and
mapping for fundamental planning, planning, national geographic
conditions and the construction of smart cities, etc; application
of geographic information data for property title management
in sectors such as state territory, agriculture, forestry, water
resources, electricity power, oil, transportation and real estate;
in addition, the Group has always attached great importance to
its social responsibilities and actively participated in emergency
and public security projects covering emergency, public security,
environmental protection, meteorological phenomena and urban
management, etc. During the year, this segment recorded a
turnover of approximately HK$157.7 million, with an increase
of 5.13% on a year-on-year basis. The number of projects
and revenue from the industry application for property title
management in sectors such as real estate registration, electricity
power and general survey for geographical names, etc, has
increased.

Data Collection

For a long time, the Group has had strong geospatial information
data acquisition capability. The Group possesses considerable
amount of talents and industrial experiences in terms of the
introduction of aerial photogrammetry equipment and aerial
and aerospace remote sensing data, and the street view data
and unmanned aerial vehicles low altitude remote sensing data
acquisition, etc. During the year, the data collection segment
recorded a turnover of approximately HK$73.4 million, with a
decrease of 26.89% on a year-on-year basis, which was mainly
due to significant decrease in business orders for street view data
collection with headwinds from the availability of street view data
via the Internet.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Continued)

Continuing Operations (Continued)
Development and Sales of Equipment

The Group has developed and manufactured high-end surveying
and mapping equipments with independent intellectual property
rights, such as laser panoramic photogrammetry vehicles,
professional aerial surveying and mapping unmanned aerial
vehicles and geographic information emergency surveillance
vehicles, etc. and has been a franchisee distributor of Ultracam
series aerial camera products developed by Microsoft
Corporation. During the year, the development and sales of
equipment segment recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$1.7 million, with a decrease of 96.88% on a year-on-year
basis, which was mainly attributable to the fact that current
exclusive camera agency contract has expired and fierce
competition in the domestic hardware market has resulted in
rapid decrease in pricing and profit.

Discontinued Operation
Mining and Exploration Business in Mongolia

During the year, the Group disposed of Fast Billion Investment
Limited (“Fast Billion”) together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Fast Billion Group”) at a consideration of
approximately HK$1.6 million. The Fast Billion Group carried out
all of the Group’s mining and exploration business in Mongolia.
The discontinued operation contributed a profit of approximately
HK$77.9 million to the Group. The Group did not hold any assets
in Mongolia as at 31 December 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$232.8 million (year ended 31
December 2015: approximately HK$304.9 million), representing a
decrease of 23.65% compared to the year ended 31 December
2015. The Group’s operations consist of geospatial business
application and services, data collection as well as development
and sales of equipment, contributing 67.74%, 31.53% and 0.73%
of the revenue for the year respectively (year ended 31 December
2015: contributing 49.20%, 32.93% and 17.87% of the revenue
for the year respectively).

Cost of Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s cost of
revenue was approximately HK$228.6 million (year ended 31
December 2015 : approximately HK$272.8 million), representing
a decrease of 16.20% compared to the year ended 31 December
2015. The cost of revenue was mainly generated from business
relating to the geographic information industry, including cost
on aerial, training, rental of machines and software and data
processing and amortization expenses of the other intangible
assets.

Gross Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s gross profit
decreased by 86.92% to approximately HK$4.2 million (year
ended 31 December 2015: approximately HK$32.1 million).
Gross profit margin decreased by 8.73% to 1.80% (year ended
31 December 2015: 10.53%).

Other Income

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group generated
other income of approximately HK$10.9 million (year ended 31
December 2015: approximately HK$19.4 million), representing a
decrease of 43.81% compared to the year ended 31 December
2015. The other income was mainly government grants.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)

Administrative and Other Operating Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
administrative and other operating expenses amounted to
approximately HK$125.9 million (year ended 31 December
2015: approximately HK$106.9 million), representing an increase
of 17.77% compared to the year ended 31 December 2015.
The administrative expenses mainly consisted of legal and
professional fees, staff costs (including directors’ emoluments),
depreciation expenses and amortisation expenses.

Finance Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
finance costs of approximately HK$52.5 million (year ended 31
December 2015: approximately HK$67.2 million), representing a
decrease of 21.88% compared to the year ended 31 December
2015. The finance costs mainly included the interests incurred by
bank loans and other loans, as well as the imputed interests on
convertible notes during the year.

Impairment Loss of Other Intangible Assets

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of other intangible assets of approximately
HK$220.8 million (year ended 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$60.7 million), representing a sharp increase of 263.76%
compared to the year ended 31 December 2015. It mainly related
to the impairment of certain intangible assets in the business
related to the geographic information industry.

Impairment Loss of Goodwill

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group recorded
an impairment loss of goodwill of approximately HK$183.4
million (year ended 31 December 2015: nil) for the geographical
information business because of the decline of operating
performance. For details, please refer to page 84 under the
section headed “Key Audit Matters” in “Independent Auditor’s
Report” of this annual report.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)

Loss for the Year from Continuing Operations

As a result of the combined effect of the above mentioned
factors, the Group recorded loss of approximately HK$598.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31
December 2015: approximately HK$150.4 million).

Discontinued Operation

For the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s mining
and exploration business in Mongolia recorded a profit of
approximately HK$77.9 million which included a gain on disposal
of the Fast Billion Group of approximately HK$74.5 million. The
management decided to discontinue the mining and exploration
business with effect from 20 September 2016 following the
disposal of mining rights so that the Group could focus on the
business development of the geographic information industry.

Loss for the Year Attributable to Owners of the
Company

As a result of the combined effect of the above factors, the Group
recorded an attributable loss of approximately HK$509.6 million
for the year ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31 December
2015: approximately HK$135.5 million).

Liquidity & Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2016, bank balances and cash and pledged
bank deposits were approximately HK$158.8 million (as at 31
December 2015: approximately HK$335.8 million). As at 31
December 2016, the total borrowings, which included convertible
notes issued in the years 2010, 2013 and 2014, borrowings and
amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, were approximately
HK$581.3 million (as at 31 December 2015: approximately
HK$629.4 million). The Group’s current ratio, being the ratio
of current assets to current liabilities, was 1.3 times (as at 31
December 2015: 1.6 times), and its gearing ratio, in terms of total
borrowings net of bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits to total equity, stood at 126.31% (as at 31 December
2015: 29.72%).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEEHWE DM

FINANCIAL SUMMARY (Continued)

Liquidity & Financial Resources (Continued)

It is the Group’s policy to adopt a prudent financial management
strategy. The Group’s treasury policies are designed to maintain
a suitable level of liquidity facilities and minimise financial risks
in order to meet operation requirements and pursue investment
opportunities.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The Group’s transactions are primarily denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong Dollar. The Group has not implemented any
formal hedging policy. However, the Group monitors its foreign
exchange exposure continuously and, when it considers
appropriate and necessary, will consider hedging significant
foreign exchange exposure by way of forward foreign exchange
contracts.

Employees and Remuneration

As at 31 December 2016, the Group had 411 employees (as at
31 December 2015: 558 employees), all of which were officially
hired. Total staff costs, including directors’ emoluments during
the year amounted to approximately HK$106.1 million (year
ended 31 December 2015: approximately HK$90.2 million). The
Group’s remuneration policies are primarily based on prevailing
market salary levels and the performance of the Group and of
the individuals concerned. In addition to salary payments, other
staff benefits include performance bonuses, education subsidies,
provident funds, medical insurance and the use of share option
schemes to recognise and acknowledge contributions made or
potentially to be made to the business development of the Group
by its employees.

IMPORTANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of important events after the reporting period are set out
in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (“Mr. GUAN"), aged 47, has been an
Executive Director and Chairman of the Company since August
2014. Mr. GUAN holds a Doctorate’s degree in cartography and
geographic information systems from Capital Normal University, a
Master’s degree in applied animal science from Tokyo University
and an Executive Master of Business Administration degree
from Qinghua University. He also obtained a Bachelor’'s degree
in ecology and environmental biology from Wuhan University. Mr.
GUAN has over 25 years of experience in data technology and
cartography. He was elected as a member of the “Recruitment
Program of Global Experts” (“F A&F&”) in 2010, which was
implemented by the Central Committee of the Communist
Party of the PRC, and was appointed as a member of Expert
Consulting Committee of the PRC. He was the general manager
of L TR TNEEIEFIMT AR AF (Peace Map Co., Ltd*) (‘Beijing
Peace Map”) from July 2006 to July 2011 and was appointed
as its chairman in August 2011. Other than the directorship in the
Company, Mr. GUAN is also a director of certain subsidiaries of
the Company.

Mr. WANG Zheng, aged 36, has been an Executive Director
since August 2014 and was re-designated as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company on 4 January 2016. Mr. WANG passed
the Self-Taught Higher Education Examination in commercial
English in Jiangsu Province and was awarded a graduation
certificate in commercial English in 2001. He studied a course
in business administration at the China University of Political
Science and Law from September 2010 to April 2012 and was
awarded a course completion certificate in June 2012. Mr. WANG
had been the deputy general manager of it R X B Bl A
R 2 &) (Beijing Peace Map Information and Technology Limited*)
(“Beijing Peace Map Information”) since August 2012 and be
appointed as its general manager and executive director from
January 2016. Other than the directorship in the Company, Mr.
WANG is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

* For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EESREREEASHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. ZHU Dong, aged 43, has been an Executive Director
since December 2012 and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer
of the Company since August 2014. Mr. ZHU holds a Master’s
degree and a Bachelor’s degree in management accounting
and is a senior accountant. He has over 23 years of experience
in accounting, corporate finance and advisory services. He
is currently an executive director and chairman of AVIC Joy
Holdings (HK) Limited (“AVIC Joy”), a company listed on the
main board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”) and substantial shareholder of the Company.
Other than the directorship in the Company, Mr. ZHU is also a
director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. FENG Tao, aged 42, has been the Chief Financial Officer of
the Company since September 2013 and an Executive Director
since December 2013 respectively. Mr. FENG holds a Master’s
degree in business administration from Peking University and
a Bachelor’s degree in accounting from Central University of
Finance and Economics. Mr. FENG also obtained T &R
(AR HERIITE M (professional technical qualification in
business administration and economics (intermediate level)).
He has over 20 years of experience in corporate finance and
data technology. Mr. FENG has been the chief financial officer
of Beijing Peace Map Information since September 2013. Other
than the directorship in the Company, Mr. FENG is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.

*

For identification purpose only

HITESE(H)

KEERE QB BT —_F+AHEH
TEEMN —T—OF )\ AREARREIITHA
B REARKEERSHABBELINETEN - I
RERGEE - REEGEG - BERE MR
RETERB B 23 FEELR - RIRSFRIEMK
(BB)ERAR(EEER]) (—HREBHS
RHAARAR (TBRM]) TR EHZ AR RA
RATERR)RTESRIF - BRERNRALQF
ZEEBAIN  REETINARBEZEHE A F
BEEEERA -

BREE 2 PHBZZE—=FLALHER
AR BHEENE —E—=F+ - AHEHITE
B BAATIERARBREIAERBE LB
WA REFE KBRS EETE T 20 o BEEDN
EETHERLE(FR) EXERMER - BED
ERERBERNTAERAR20FLELSH - 5
EEAZT—=—FHLABRHALRRATEEEZ
BITSHRES - BRI A R B 2 EBMAIIN - BLE
TR R ZREWB R GHETESMAL -



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R 1 9

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, aged 51, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since March 2013. Mr. ZHANG holds a
Bachelor’s degree in economics from the School of Finance of
the Renmin University of China and is a senior accountant. Mr.
ZHANG is a member of the Beijing Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. ZHANG joined China Digital Library Corporation
Limited in 2005 and is now its vice president.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, aged 42, has been an Independent
Non-Executive Director since November 2014. Mr. ZHAI holds a
Bachelor’s degree in accounting from Beijing Agriculture Cultivation
Cadre Management Institute of Ministry of Agriculture (=38
b REREIEHRIER). He is a certified public accountant in
the PRC. Mr. ZHAI is currently a partner of it R {ERE & 56D
EPT (Beijing Zhonggizhongxin Certified Public Accountants
Co., Ltd*) and has over 9 years of experience in accounting and
auditing areas.

Mr. KANG Hua, aged 46, has been an Independent Non-
Executive Director since December 2015. Mr. KANG holds
a Master’s degree in Law from University of International
Business and Economics and an Executive Master of Business
Administration degree from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (CKGSB) and Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Mr. KANG
is a practising lawyer admitted in the PRC in 1994 and has over
21 years’ experience in the practice of law. He is a partner of
Zhong Lun Law Firm.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAU Ka Ho, aged 38, has been the Deputy Chief Financial
Officer of the Company since April 2013 and was appointed
as the company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) of the
Company on 17 June 2016. Mr. LAU holds a Master’s degree
in business administration from The University of lowa and
a Master’s degree in corporate governance from The Open
University of Hong Kong. Mr. LAU is an associate member of
both The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries and The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. He has
over 15 years of experience in accounting, auditing, corporate
finance and corporate secretarial areas.

%%%%i'%ﬁ~ﬁ—"—:imﬂﬁE$“
a%%%ﬂwﬁﬁ —ANFEXRNATEREZRE
Y= ¥iN/NE] jwiwﬂjW§D°%%$%ﬁk
HEABTHERBEITEMREEARASLE
EVRE T2 - B ERBEBFINEAERE
B WERITBRABRAEZEE - BRER
ﬁ CEMBRTCEWEEREFRI1I5FL

}?

%H@I



The Directors are pleased to present their report together with
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2016.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. Details
of the principal activities of each principal subsidiary of the
Company are set forth in note 45 to the consolidated financial
statements. The Group is principally engaged in geographical
information business in the PRC.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December 2016 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date
are set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 94
to 291 of this annual report. No dividend has been recommended
by the Board for the year ended 31 December 2016.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Particulars of a discussion and analysis on the activities specified
in Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws
of Hong Kong), including a fair review of the Group’s business,
a discussion on the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group, particulars of important events affecting the Company
that have occurred since the end of the financial year and future
development in the Company’s business and analysis using
financial key performance indicators, are set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion and
Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and “Environmental,
Social and Governance Report” of this annual report. The above
sections form an integral part of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The environmental policies and performance of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.
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GROUP FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years/period is set out on page
292 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group as at
31 December 2016 are set out in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

During the year, no share options had been exercised and no
convertible notes had been converted for the issuance of shares
of the Company (the “Shares”).

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during
the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2016.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of pledge or charge on assets of the Group as at
31 December 2016 are set out in notes 17 and 29 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December
2016 are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Details of the segment information of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2016 are set out
in-the consolidated statement of changes in equity and note 38
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles
of association of the Company (the “Articles”) or the laws of
the Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer
new shares of the Company on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2016, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, redeemed or sold any
Shares.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR ACQUIRING
CAPITAL ASSETS

Details of the disposals of subsidiaries of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2016 are set out in note 39 to the
consolidated financial statements. Save as disclosed above,
the Group had no other significant investments and material
acquisitions and disposals during the year. The Group currently
has no specific plan for major investment or acquisition of major
capital assets or other businesses in the year 2017. However,
the Group will continue to identify new opportunities for business
development.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. GUAN Hongliang (Chairman)

Mr. WANG Zheng (Chief Executive Officer)
(re-designated on 4 January 2016)

Mr. ZHU Dong (Deputy Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. FENG Tao (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. ZHANG Chuanjun (resigned on 1 April 2016)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. ZHANG Songlin
Mr. ZHAI Shenggang
Mr. KANG Hua

Mr. HUI Yat On (resigned on 21 July 2016)

In accordance with article 87 of the Articles, Mr. GUAN,
Mr. WANG Zheng and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang will retire by rotation
at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive Directors, a confirmation of his independence pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The Company
considers that all the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.
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DIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of Mr. GUAN and Mr. WANG Zheng (both are executive
Directors) has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a term of three years commencing on 6 August
2014. Either the Company or the executive Director may
terminate the appointment of the executive Director by giving to
the other party not less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHU Dong, an executive Director, has renewed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 12 December 2015. Either party may terminate
the appointment by giving to the other party not less than one
month’s written notice.

Mr. FENG Tao, an executive Director, has renewed a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing on 16 December 2016. Either party may terminate
the appointment by giving to the other party not less than one
month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 March 2017. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 30 November 2016. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. KANG Hua, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 December 2016. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

None of the Directors has a contract of service with the
Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries not
determinable by the employing company within one year without
payment of compensation (except for statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT
(Continued)

The Company’s policies concerning emoluments of the Directors
are:

()  the amount of remuneration is determined on the basis of
the relevant Directors’ experience, responsibilities, workload
and the time devoted to the Group;

(i)  non-cash benefits may be provided to the Directors under
their remuneration package; and

(i ~ the Directors may be granted, at the discretion of the Board,
options pursuant to the share option schemes adopted by
the Company, as part of their remuneration package.

DIRECTORS® AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS’ EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and the majority of its ultimate shareholders, namely,
Mr. Zhang Zhenshan, Mr. GUAN, dt RiEslBERHT AR A F
(Beijing Boxun Tongda Technology Co., Ltd.*), 1t AT Bl
AR A 7] (Beiing Skywalker Map Technology Co., Ltd*), 1t 5&
B EBIBHE AR AR (Beijing Haicheng Yingchuang Technology
Co., Ltd*) and Mr. Qin Chun (collectively, “Beijing Peace
Map Majority Shareholders”), entered into certain structural
agreements, namely a management and consultancy services
agreement, technical support and services agreement, intellectual
properties transfer and license agreement, cameras transfer and
lease agreement, equity pledge agreement, and an equity call
option agreement (collectively, the “Structural Agreements”)
in relation to ongoing transactions conducted on a regular and
continuing basis and in the ordinary and usual course of the
business of the Group.

The registered owners of Beijing Peace Map are Beijing Peace
Map Majority Shareholders and PH#ERZe & AR A a] (CATIC
Siwei Co., Ltd*) (“CATIC Siwei”).

Under the Structural Agreements, the Company through Beijing
Peace Map Information, a subsidiary of the Company, is able
to exercise control over Beijing Peace Map and its subsidiaries
(the “Peace Map Group”) by way of controlling the voting rights
of Beijing Peace Map, governing their financial and operating
policies, appointing and removing the majority of the members
of their controlling authorities, casting the majority of votes at
meeting of such authorities and deriving economic benefit from
the Peace Map Group. Beijing Peace Map is accounted for as
a 81.15%-owned subsidiary of the Company and the financial
results of the Peace Map Group are consolidated into the
financial statements of the Group.

*

For identification purpose only
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (continued)

Pursuant to the Structural Agreements, (a) Beijing Peace Map
Information agrees to (i) provide management and consultancy
services; (ii) provide technical support service to Beijing Peace
Map; (i) purchase the equipment of aerial photography from
Beijing Peace Map and lease back the same to Beijing Peace
Map; and (iv) purchase relevant intellectual properties from Beijing
Peace Map and licence back to Beijing Peace Map whereas
the economic benefits derived from Beijing Peace Map shall be
transferred to Beijing Peace Map Information; and (b) Beijing
Peace Map Majority Shareholders or their respective nominee(s)
(iy have granted an option to Beijing Peace Map Information to
purchase their equity interest in Beijing Peace Map at nominal
price or the lowest price allowed by the PRC laws (only if the
nominal price is forbidden by the PRC laws), which does not
have an expiry date; (i) have pledged the shares of Beijing Peace
Map to Beijing Peace Map Information to guarantee any sum
payable to Beijing Peace Map Information and any damages,
cost or expense (including legal cost on or other costs associated
with the enforcement or realisation of this guarantee) suffered or
incurred by Beijing Peace Map Information pursuant to the other
Structural Agreements; and (i) have appointed Beijing Peace
Map Information’s nominee(s) as their attorney(s) to exercise their
rights as shareholders of Beijing Peace Map such that Beijing
Peace Map Information will have effective control over Beijing
Peace Map.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The Structural Agreements, excluding the agreements without
validity period provided in relation to the grant of an option
to purchase equity interest in Beijing Peace Map, pledge of
shares of Beijing Peace Map and the appointment of attorney
for shareholders of Beijing Peace Map, are for a term of 20
years and will be automatically extended for another 10 years
unless terminated by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing
within 3 months of original expiry. In addition, Beijing Peace Map
Information shall be entitled to extend or early terminate the
period of the Structural Agreements at its own discretion. Unless
agreed by Beijing Peace Map Information in writing, Beijing
Peace Map shall not vary or terminate the Structural Agreements.
There is no restriction on the number of times of extension of
the Structural Agreements unless they are terminated by Beijing
Peace Map Information. The Company does not purchase
insurance to cover the risk of non-compliance of obligations
under the Structural Agreements by Beijing Peace Map and the
majority shareholders.

The principal activities of the Peace Map Group are set out in the
section headed “Business Review” in “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. The Peace Map Group is
responsible for 100% of the revenue of the Group.

The following table sets out the financial results that the Peace
Map Group contributed to the Group for the preceding two
financial years:

ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R 29

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
ExERE

SRR e

mEELEGRE (TEEREBEILRRTERARE
SR - WAL R TE RO R AIERKT
B BCRZERIEAZEGRIN G R
R20F  THBEBHERSIMOF(BRIFIERK
TEEERREHRIMEIEANUNERTLRA
RAE) o SN ERARTEEESEREITHIG
REERFIRFPR BB Z 2 BIR © BRIFL
RATEEENEEFARE TR TE
TEERER AR RE - TREBIEHZS
RBAERS] - FRIFILRK TNEESRIEZFW
& o NATWERRAL R T B M KB D BR A E
STREBIEREE N 2 EENARRERR -

ATESENEIZERENAFR[EEE TR
Koy ] mp [ 555 EEE ] — 86 - X NEISREGARE
E Y AH)100% ©

TREHNAMER RFERT B REHNEE
BRI SRAE -

For the financial year ended

BETIEMEMREE

31 December 31 December

2015 2016
—T-RfF =

+=ZA=+—-H +=ZA=+-—H

HKS$ HK$

BT BT

Revenue WA 304,881,000 232,778,000
Net loss EBFE (85,444,000) (455,106,000)

Total assets BEE

1,612,370,000 1,001,497,000
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (continued)

Reasons for using Contractual Arrangement

Currently, the PRC laws and regulations place certain restrictions
on foreign ownership of companies that engage in surveying
and mapping. Specifically, a foreign investor may only hold a
minority interest in.a Chinese entity that engages in surveying and
mapping, and foreign-invested companies are prohibited from
engaging in aerial photography. The Structural Agreements allow
the Group to effectively control Beijing Peace Map and therefore
recognise and receive substantially all of the economic benefits of
the business and operations of the Peace Map Group.

The risks associated with the arrangements and the
actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks

Under the current PRC laws and regulations, foreign ownership in
the surveying aerial photography and/or surveying and mapping
services is prohibited and/or restricted, and as a policy, approval
of foreign investment into this area is very difficult. To comply with
the PRC laws and regulations, the Group has been conducting
its operation of the business in the PRC through the Structural
Agreements.

Tian Yuan Law Firm, the PRC legal adviser to the Company (the
“PRC Legal Adviser”), has issued a legal opinion confirming
that each of the Structural Agreements is enforceable, valid and
legally binding under the applicable laws of the PRC up to the
date of this report.
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STRUCTURAL AGREEMENTS (Continued)

The risks associated with the arrangements and the

actions taken by the Company to mitigate the risks
(Continued)

However, there can be no assurance that the PRC government
authority would deem these contractual arrangements and/
or the Structural Agreements to be in compliance with the
licensing, registration or other regulatory requirements, or that
the legal requirements or policies that may be adopted in the
future (in particular those concerning foreign investment and/or
merger and acquisition by foreign investors) would not affect the
Structural Agreements and such contractual arrangements. Also,
the enforceability may be affected by any applicable bankruptcy,
insolvency, fraudulent transfer, reorganisation, moratorium or
similar laws affecting creditors’ rights generally and possible
judicial or administrative actions or any of the PRC laws and
regulations affecting creditors’ rights.

In order to mitigate the risk, effective consent has been obtained
or shareholders’ resolution has been reached stipulating CATIC
Siwei’s intention to be voluntarily and irreversibly bound by the
Structural Agreements in its capacity as a shareholder of Beijing
Peace Map. By operation of such consent or shareholders’
resolution, CATIC Siwei will not conduct any action or omission
of action which will adversely affect the performance of the
Structural Agreements, the receipt of economic benefits of
Beijing Peace Map Information from Beijing Peace Map, and
Beijing Peace Map Information’s control on Beijing Peace Map
in accordance with the Structural Agreements. Such consent or
shareholders’ resolution is not against the applicable PRC laws,
has not been withdrawn, suspended or deemed invalid by any
PRC government authority.

The Company has engaged the PRC Legal Adviser to review
the Structural Agreements on an annual, or otherwise on a need
basis to mitigate the risk of any non-compliance with the PRC
laws and regulations.

For the year ended 31 December 2016, there was no material
change in the Structural Agreements. As of the date of this
report, there is no unwinding of any of the Structural Agreements.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of continuing connected transactions which also
constitute related party transactions for the year ended
31 December 2016 are set out in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

On 15 May 2014, Beijing Peace Map and CATIC Siwei entered
into a tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) in relation
to the tenancy of the property of 5B-1, National Geographic
Science and Technology Industrial Park, South of Longtang
Road, Touerying Village, Ligiao Town, Shunyi District, Beijing (the
“Property”) which is a nine storey building with a basement with
a total gross floor area of approximately 12,254 square meters.
CATIC Siwei has an 18.85% equity interest in Beijing Peace Map,
which is treated as a 81.15%-owned subsidiary of the Company.
Since CATIC Siwei is a substantial shareholder of Beijing Peace
Map, CATIC Siwei is a connected person of the Company under
chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Accordingly, the Tenancy Agreement constitutes a continuing
connected transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules.
As all the applicable percentage ratios (other than the profits ratio)
in respect of the maximum amount of annual rental fee payable
by the Group under the Tenancy Agreement for the relevant years
are more than 0.1% but less than 5% under the Listing Rules,
the Tenancy Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder are subject to annual review and disclosure
requirements including publishing an announcement and annual
reporting regarding such continuing connected transactions.

RHEBERS

BE_ZT-R"Ft-_A=1T"BLFEZHEH
BRZIVERBB IR S  BRFRINGEEY
MR 4T

R-_ZE—MFRA+HEB R X TEEM%
Mg Et T mIEE R TRER _ENERE
BEANBERIEESRBREXESB1RE (A
— I P A i EE AR SR E 012,254 F oK 2
BT ([ZWE)EFT—HEEHE(HER
F) o MEMERILERRATEGEAERRRES
81.15% 2 Mi B A R])#EH 18.85% I AN #e s o
MRMEMEBILtRRA TEZEBRE @ HiRE
EHRAIE4AE - IWEMZERARNRRZEEEA
j:o

itk - RIE EHRE - HEWEBRARRZF
BRERS - AR RIELWRE - AEERERH
FEREHEHREN 2 FEES LR ZABE
ABE DR (MBEERSIN SR 0.1%EER5% -
BHEHZELEE N BET XS ABTFER
AREMBERTE  BERASHERERST
BN RFERSE -



CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 3 March 2017, Beijing Peace Map and CATIC Siwei entered
into a termination agreement (the “Termination Agreement”) in
relation to the termination of the Tenancy Agreement. Pursuant
to the terms of the Termination Agreement, the rental amount
of RMB10,921,000 for the period from 16 August 2014 to 29
August 2016 payable by Beijing Peace Map to CATIC Siwei
under the Tenancy Agreement will be converted into a two-year
loan payable by Beijing Peace Map to CATIC Siwei, and the
renovation amount of RMB19,500,000 funded by CATIC Siwei in
May 2014 and incurred by Beijing Peace Map on the renovation
of the Property will be converted into a five-year loan payable by
Beijing Peace Map to CATIC Siwei. Two loan agreements (the
“Loan Agreements”) were entered into between Beijing Peace
Map as borrower and CATIC Siwei as lender accordingly on
3 March 2017.

The termination of the continuing connected transaction
contemplated under the Tenancy Agreement is subject to the
announcement requirement under rule 14A.35 of the Listing
Rules. As the loans provided by CATIC Siwei to Beijing Peace
Map under the Loan Agreements are on normal commercial
terms which, as far as the Group is concerned, are similar to
or more favourable than those offered by independent third
parties for comparable services in mainland, and no security
over the assets of the Group will be granted in respect of the
loans, the Loan Agreements are exempt under rule 14A.90 of the
Listing Rules from reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirements.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 15 May 2014 and 3 March 2017.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

On 22 October 2012, Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map and Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders entered
into the Structural Agreements. Relevant information related
to the Structural Agreements can be found on pages 27 to 31
under the section headed “Structural Agreements” in “Directors’
Report” of this annual report. Upon the appointment of Mr. GUAN
as a director of the Company on 6 August 2014 and by virtue of
Mr. GUAN also owning 36% equity interest in Beijing Peace Map,
Beijing Peace Map became a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.

As such, the ongoing transactions under the Structural
Agreements become continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Pursuant to rule 14A.60 of the
Listing Rules, the Company is required to comply with the annual
review and disclosure requirements including publishing an
announcement and annual reporting regarding such continuing
connected transactions.

Details of the Structural Agreements are summarised as follows:

Management and consultancy services agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information shall provide management,
consultancy, evaluation and analysis service in relation to
operation, management and business development on an
exclusive basis. Without prior written consent of Beijing Peace
Map Information, Beijing Peace Map shall not accept any
management and consultancy services provided by any third
party. The service fee shall be RMB1.5 million per annum,
payable quarterly.

Technical support and services agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information shall provide research and
development, technical support and maintenance services to the
operation of Beijing Peace Map on an exclusive basis. Without
prior written consent of Beijing Peace Map Information, Beijing
Peace Map shall not accept any technical support and services
provided by any third party. The basic service fee shall be RMB10
million per annum, payable quarterly plus a variable service fee.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Intellectual properties transfer and license agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information agreed to purchase from Beijing
Peace Map certain intellectual properties at a consideration
of RMB15,348,256.83. Beijing Peace Map Information shall
authorise Beijing Peace Map to use the intellectual properties in
the PRC on an exclusive basis. The license fee shall be RMB8.5
million per annum, payable quarterly.

Cameras transfer and lease agreement

Beijing Peace Map Information agreed to purchase from Beijing
Peace Map certain intellectual properties at a consideration of
RMB13,144,102.66. Beijing Peace Map Information shall lease
the aerial cameras to Beijing Peace Map on an exclusive basis.
The leasing fee shall be RMB6 million per annum, payable
quarterly.

Equity pledge agreement

Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have pledged the
shares of Beijing Peace Map to Beijing Peace Map Information
to guarantee any sum payable to Beijing Peace Map Information
and any damages, cost or expense (including legal cost on or
other costs associated with the enforcement or realisation of this
guarantee) suffered or incurred by Beijing Peace Map Information
pursuant to the other Structural Agreements.

Equity call option agreement

Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have granted an option
to Beijing Peace Map Information to purchase their equity interest
in Beijing Peace Map at nominal price or the lowest price allowed
by the PRC laws. Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders have
appointed Beijing Peace Map Information’s nominee(s) as their
attorney(s) to exercise their rights as shareholders of Beijing
Peace Map.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

Equity call option agreement (Continued)

If Beijing Peace Map Majority Shareholders receive any dividends
or distribution of assets declared by Beijing Peace Map, Beijing
Peace Map Majority Shareholders are required to return the
dividend or distribution of assets so received after payment of
any expenses and taxes in compliance with the PRC laws to
Beijing Peace Map Information.

For details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 August 2014,

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions were entered
into by the Group:

(@ inthe ordinary and usual course of business;
(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the respective agreements governing the
transactions on terms that are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

For the purpose of rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the auditor of
the Company has provided a letter to the Board confirming that
nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the abovementioned continuing connected transactions:

()  have not been approved by the Board;

(i) are not, in all material respects, in accordance with the
pricing policies of the Group if the transactions involve
provision of goods and services by the Group;

(i) have not been entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing the
transactions; and

(iv)  have exceeded the respective annual caps.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated financial
statements, none of the Directors had a significant beneficial
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
to the business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

DIRECTORS” AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2016, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company and their respective associates had the following
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) which were notified to the Company and
Stock Exchange pursuant to Division 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which they are
deemed or taken to have under such provisions of the SFO) and
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules:
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(a) Long position in the ordinary Shares of HK$0.25
each of the Company

EERBSTBRAEREALQTRHEME
BOLE 2 RD - BRI RES 2

mRRBE)

(a) RAEAFBREELETZEER
ZRE

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Capacity/ Number of the Company
Name of Director Note Nature of interest Shares held RARRA B R AE
EEHE g B Rt BFERGOEE BHABES T
Mr. GUAN Hongliang 1 Interest of controlled 350,652,000 4.30%
eyt corporation

TR E 2

Note:

(1)  The 350,652,000 Shares are registered in the name of Broadlink
Enterprises Limited (“Broadlink”), of which Mr. GUAN is entitled
to exercise, or control the exercise of 95.77% of the voting
power at general meetings of Broadlink. Hence Broadlink is
a controlled corporation (within the meaning of the SFO) of
Mr. GUAN, who is therefore deemed to be interested in these
Shares under the SFO.

(1) 11£350,652,0004% %15 bABroadlink Enterprises
Limited ([Broadlink]) = & % & i &
7R % & B #E A Broadlink i SR K & 17
fE sk T HITTE95.77% 1% =i - A Itt -
Broadink &8 5 &£ 2 Z1EFEE (EE R
BH LGB - HULBRERE S KT K
Bl - B AR AEA RSO P HRER o



DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and
debentures of the Company

Share Options

Pursuant to the previous share option scheme adopted
by the Company on 25 February 2006 and expired on
24 February 2016 (the “2006 Share Option Scheme”)
(details are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements), certain Directors were granted share options to
subscribe for Shares. Details of share options outstanding
and exercisable as at 31 December 2016 were as follows:
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wmRRE #)
(b) REATHEBERORESZRA

B

BEARRREINR_ZEEF_A=-+HH
BHER-—ZE—RNFEF-_A-t+NBERNE
MRS (B AERRETE]) (56
HBHN A BEERENES?) B TES
BRRERMDABRE  MRZZ—RF
T A=+ —HERTERT FTERBR
REFHIBOT -

Number of
underlying
Shares
comprised in Exercise
the share options price
Name of Director Date of grant Capacity BRESR Exercisable period per share
£33 RiAH g1 WEERGEA 1% FRTEE
Mr. GUAN Hongliang 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
EERLE ZE-MEAAZTAR EREEA 31 December 2017 0.26%7T
“E-mETRTAZE
“EtETA=T-H
Mr. WANG Zheng 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
THEE “E-MEAAZTAR ERBAA 31 December 2017 02637
ZE-ME+ATAAE
“E—tE+ZA=t-H
Mr. ZHU Dong 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
REEHE “E-mEAAZHRE EREEA 31 December 2017 0.26/7C
“E-NETAT+AZE
“E—+E+-A=1-H
Mr. FENG Tao 26 September 2014 Beneficial owner 65,000,000 16 October 2014 to HK$0.26
iy e ZE-MEAAZTAR EREBA 31 December 2017 02657

“T-MEFATEE
—E+E+ZfA=1-8
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES
OF THE COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS (Continued)

(b) Long position in the underlying shares and
debentures of the Company (Continued)

Share Options (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2016, none
of the Directors or chief executive of the Company and their
respective associates, had any interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) that was required to be
notified to the Company or the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions in which they are deemed or taken
to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were
required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the paragraphs headed “Directors’
and chief executive’s interests and short positions in shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations” above and note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements, at no time during the year were rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or their
respective spouse or children under 18 years of age, or were any
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or their respective spouse or minor children to acquire such
benefits.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept
under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at 31
December 2016, so far as the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are aware, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or chief executive of the Company) had
interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company of 5% or more of the Company’s
issued share capital:
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FERRNREAD - N2 FEBERD K
B cEBERAR

BARREEZNERITRABMA  RIEZH KR
HEFRPIEXVEE I IRATHFELIBHRRE
@R RZF—R"E+_A=+—HBTFIA
TIEB (ARREFTARZRHITHABRIN REX
0~ ARRHEBER G REFFHEAEARFD %
TTRXAN 5% A E R BOR A -

Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BERG i NI
FERRER 13 REREME iiks3 HERHHE BOBED
Aviation Industry Corporation of China Interest in controlled 1 2,268,080,000 27.81%
FREMETHEEE AT corporation
REHEAEER
AVIC International Holding Corporation Interest in controlled 1 2,268,080,000 27.81%
B ZE i B B AR B TR A A corporation
R EE R
AVIC International (HK) Group Limited Interest in controlled 1 2,268,080,000 27.81%
FRBR (BB EBER AR corporation
RiEfEEER
Best Pine Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 552,100,000 6.77%
BEREARAT EnEAA
Tacko International Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,161,900,000 14.24%

corporation
RiEfEEER
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FERRARSG - XATHEBERG R
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, BEZERZRKE &)
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF

THE COMPANY (Continued)
Number of Approximate
Shares/ percentage of
underlying  shareholding in
Name of Capacity/ shares held the Company
Substantial Shareholder Nature of interest Notes BER®R RARD TR
FERRER B REmME LiEsd HERHBE BHABED
AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1 1,161,900,000 14.24%
PRz T BRI (BB BRAR] corporation
R EE R
Kingspot Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 1,133,000,000 13.89%
BEREAA
Billirich Investment Limited Beneficial owner 1 28,900,000 0.35%
EmEAA
AVIC Joy Holdings (HK) Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
FRER(EB)ERAT corporation
R EE R
Light Pearl Holdings Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
corporation
RiEHEE R
Tongda Information Technology Limited Interest in controlled 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%
MEEEBIMER AR corporation
R EE S
Smarty Capital Investments Limited Beneficial owner 1,2 554,080,000 6.79%

BB A



SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes:

1. Aviation Industry Corporation of China (“*AVIC”) is interested in
2,268,080,000 Shares, underlying shares and convertible notes of
the Company through Best Pine Investment Limited (“Best Pine”),
Kingspot Investment Limited (“Kingspot”), Billirich Investment
Limited (“Billirich”) and Smarty Capital Investments Limited (“Smarty
Capital”).

AVIC holds 62.52% interest in AVIC International Holding Corporation
which in turn holds 100% interest in AVIC International (HK) Group
Limited (“AVIC Int’l Group”).

AVIC Int’l Group holds 8.49% in AVIC Joy. AVIC Int’l Group also
holds 100% interest in Tacko International Limited which in turn holds
34.34% interest in AVIC International Holding (HK) Limited (*“AVIC
Int’l”) which in turn holds 100% interest in Billirich which in turn holds
17.38% interest in AVIC Joy. AVIC Int’l Group also holds 100% interest
in Best Pine which holds 552,100,000 Shares.

AVIC Int’l also holds 100% interest in Kingspot which is interested in (i)
733,000,000 Shares and (i) convertible notes that may be converted
into 400,000,000 Shares. Billirich holds 28,900,000 Shares.

AVIC Joy holds 100% interest in Light Pearl Holdings Limited (“Light
Pearl”) which in turn holds 100% interest in Tongda Information
Technology Limited (“Tongda”) which in turn holds 100% interest in
Smarty Capital which holds 554,080,000 Shares.

2. Mr. ZHU Dong is a director of Light Pearl, Tongda and Smarty Capital;
and an executive director and chairman of AVIC Joy.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year, none of the Directors had any competing
interests in any business or had any interest in any business that
may constitute direct or indirect competition with the Group.

SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the Company’s share option schemes are set out in
note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

The percentages of total revenue, total sub-contracting costs and
purchases of materials for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers, sub-contractors and suppliers are as follows:

Revenue
— the largest customer 4%
— five largest customers combined 11%

Sub-contracting costs
— the largest sub-contractor 14%
— five largest sub-contractors combined 48%

Purchases of materials
— the largest supplier 30%
— five largest suppliers combined 95%

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company'’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the Group’s major customers, sub-
contractors or suppliers noted above.
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The key relationships with employees, customers and suppliers
are set out in the section headed “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
therefore the Company is subject to relevant laws and regulations
in the Cayman lIslands. In addition, the Company is registered
as a non-Hong Kong Company under Part 16 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) and therefore
is subject to the relevant provisions under the Companies
Ordinance.

The Company is listed on the Stock Exchange and therefore
the Company is subject to the governance of the Listing Rules
including the disclosure requirements and corporate governance
provisions therein.

Under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571, Laws
of Hong Kong), the Company is required to maintain a register of
interests in shares and short positions and a register of directors’
and chief executives’ interests and short positions and is obliged
to disclose price sensitive or inside information.

The Group is principally engaged in geographical information
business in the PRC, and therefore is subject to the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC.

As far as the Board and management are aware, the Group
has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. During the year, there was no material
breach of or noncompliance with the applicable laws and
regulations by the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company’s corporate governance principles and practices
are set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”
of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules as
at the date of this report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year, the Group made charitable donations amounting
to approximately HK$25,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover
for Director’s and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
against its Directors and senior management arising out of
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity provision is in force
for the benefit of the Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of Hong Kong) when
the report of the Directors is approved in accordance with section
391(1)(a) of the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622, Laws of
Hong Kong).
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available
to the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding
of the Shares. Intending holders and investors of the Company’s
shares are recommended to consult their professional advisers
if they are in any doubt as to the taxation implications (including
tax relief) of subscribing for, purchasing, holding, disposing of or
dealing in shares. It is emphasized that none of the Company
or its Directors or officers will accept any responsibility for any
tax effect on, or liabilities of, holders of shares in the Company
resulting from their subscription for, purchase, holding, disposal
of or dealing in such shares.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit Committee”)
currently comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Mr. ZHAI Shenggang and Mr.
KANG Hua. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who possesses professional
accounting qualifications and relevant accounting experience, is
the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, its main
role and functions are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management system of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the interim and annual results, and
has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing and
financial reporting matters of the Group.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.
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AUDITOR

The Company has appointed SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
(“SHINEWING”) as the auditor of the Company from 23
December 2013.

A resolution will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general

meeting of the Company to re-appoint SHINEWING as the
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

GUAN Hongliang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2017

D

ARAFIB-E—=F+=-A=-+=AZFF{ZKkF
MEB)GTMEEMBERAR (EXFM]) A
RN B ERED o

RARBZ EERFAFRE LHRE —RRH
£ UEMZREEKTMAERRE]ZZBED -

REREFE

E

-
ya =
%=

B —T—tF=A-+=H



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R 49

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICES

The Board considers that good corporate governance is essential
for enhancing accountability and transparency of a company
to the investment public and other shareholders. Therefore,
the Directors are dedicated to maintaining high standard
corporate governance practices. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the
rising expectations of shareholders and to fulffill its commitment to
excellence in corporate governance.

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
appendix 14 to the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December
2016, except for the compliance with code provision E.1.2 of the
CG Code which states that the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting. Mr. GUAN, the Chairman
of the Board, did not attend the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 26 May 2016 due to other overseas business
engagement. In his absence, Mr. ZHU Dong, an executive
Director and the Deputy Chief Executive Officer of the Company,
acted as the chairman of the meeting. Mr. ZHU Dong is also a
member of both the remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. HUI Yat
On, the then independent non-executive Director and member
of the Audit Committee, and the external auditor, SHINEWING,
were invited to attend the meeting to answer questions from
shareholders of the Company. The Board believes that the
absence of Mr. GUAN at the annual general meeting did not
hinder the maintaining of an on-going dialogue with shareholders
of the Company.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The role of the Board includes overseeing the strategic
development, business planning, risk management, annual
and interim results, and other significant operational and
financial matters of the Group. Major corporate matters that are
specifically delegated by the Board to the management include
the preparation of annual and interim financial statements to
be approved by the Board before public reporting, execution
of business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board,
implementation of adequate systems of internal controls and risk
management procedures, and ensuring compliance with relevant
statutory requirements and rules and regulations. In discharging
its responsibilities, the Board meets regularly and acts in good
faith, with due diligence and care.

The Board currently is composed of seven Directors, of which
four are executive Directors and three are independent non-
executive Directors. The executive Directors are responsible
for the Group’s day-to-day operations and management. All
Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) have
been consulted on all major and important matters of the Group.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The composition of the Board and their respective attendance in
the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meetings
for the year ended 31 December 2016 are as follows:

Audit
Board Committee
Meetings Meetings
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BEES 45
BE-—T—AFE+-_A=t—HIEE B2
CHRRERESE eSS EESEBRREA
e EEEERNT

No. of meetings attended/held

=E D08 VR T
Nomination ~ Remuneration ~ Executive
Committee Committee Committee General
Meetings Meeting Meetings Meeting

E3683 EUZREEE RYZAEEY FMZREEY HAZAEEE RRAS

Executive Directors UiEs
Mr. GUAN Hongliang stk 5/5 NA(TER)
(Chairman) (2)
Mr. WANG Zheng TERs 5/5 NA(TER)
(Chief Executive Officer) (fiR#4)
Mr. ZHU Dong REEE 5/5 NA(TER)
(Deputy Chief Executive Offcer) (RiHEs)
M. FENG Tao BREE 5/5 NA(TER)
(Chief Financial Officer) (THEE)
M. ZHANG Chuanjun REERE 33 NA(TER)
{Resigned on 1 April 2016) (R=F—"EWA—-H#HE)
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUHH{TEES
Mr. ZHANG Songlin RibLE 5/ 22
Mr. ZHAl Shenggang BEELE 5/5 22
Mr. KANG Hua RELE 505 i
Mr. HUI Yat On RAE 33 11
(Resigned on 21 July 2016) (RZZ-1F

+tA=t-REf)

Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires at least one-third of the
directors of a listed company to be independent non-executive
directors. During the year ended 31 December 2016, the number
of the independent non-executive Directors has been maintained
as one-third of the Board.

NARER)  NATER) m 0
NATER)  NATER) 6/6 0/

33 il m il
NATER)  NATER)  NATER) 0/
NATER)  NATER) i NATER)

33 11 NA(RER) 0

33 11 NA(RER) 0
NARER)  NARER)  NATER) 0/
NATER)  NATER)  NATER) 1
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Directors are of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors meet the independence
guidelines set out.in rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Mr. ZHANG Songlin, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 March 2017. Either party
may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party not
less than one month'’s written notice.

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang, an independent non-executive Director,
has renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 30 November 2016. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

Mr. KANG Hua, an independent non-executive Director, has
renewed a letter of appointment with the Company for a fixed
term of three years commencing on 11 December 2016. Either
party may terminate the appointment by giving to the other party
not less than one month’s written notice.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, five full Board
meetings and one general meeting were held. Minutes of the
Board meetings and general meeting are being kept by the
Company Secretary and are available for inspection by the
Directors and auditor of the Company.

The Directors are the senior management of the Company.
Details of their remuneration for the year ended 31 December
2016 are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BEES s

EEECRESBUIFNTESRELMRAUSE
BABGFE L EMBIYMERE - EFRA -
BB FMITE RN A LR RISE 33 R
ZIBIFES]

BN IENITEERIMMEECBARREERET
THAE=F2ZAE BH-ZE—tF=A+—H
BAEM - FETNFHABARAS —FELTIDOR
—EAAZEEmBANRIEESRT -

BYFFRTERTBRERMELCRARAEERETE
THR=F2ZEE AT R"F+—-A=t
BEER - KEETHT A BEBRS—TELTD
R—EAZEmBMAR I EEZRE

BUFRTEFTRELLCEARAEEETE
HR=F2ZEFE AT R"F+-A+—H
AR - RRIWTHAEBRAS — T HH DR
—(BA 2 EEEMARIEERAE -

WRE-F—AE+ZAST—BILER B
TEREFERMEHR—AREAE  £FE
RBRAEGEHEBAATRETE - MEAR
AEEREHIEN -

BEARDNRIZEORERE - REHE-_T—X
F+ A=+ HUEFEZFMNFBENGREY
R ERMIEE16 -



THE ROLES OF THE CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the position of
the Chairman was held by Mr. GUAN. Mr. GUAN was also the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company from 6 August 2014 to
3 January 2016. Mr. WANG Zheng was re-designated as the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company in replacement of Mr.
GUAN with effect from 4 January 2016. The Board members
have no financial, business, family or other relationships with
each other.

Further details on the Directors are set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” on
pages 17 to 19 of this annual report.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
Directors’ securities transactions. The obligations to comply with
the Listing Rules are set out in the letter of appointment of each
executive Director and each independent non-executive Director.
The Company has made specific enquiries with the Directors,
and all Directors have confirmed that they have complied with the
requirements set out under the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2016.
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DIRECTORS LIABILITIES INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal action against Directors.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

During the year, all Directors were provided with regular updates
on applicable legal and regulatory requirements. Individual
Directors also participated in courses relating to the roles,
functions and duties of a director in listed company or enhanced
their professional development by way of training and reading
relevant materials. The training record of each Director for the
year is set out below:

EECEMER

ARRIEFER OAERDRLIHEE R
o

EE 2

RAFER  2REEFTHESEREZREAE
ERZBHER - GUEEFSEP R EHRA
EEZHE - Bt MBSERRE - SuEBE
LEEREMHREAEEERR - AFEREF
AR DIFCERE ST

Director’s duties and
corporate governance related

ESRENRGEELREBER

Executive Directors
Mr. GUAN Hongliang
Mr. WANG Zheng

Mr. ZHU Dong

Mr. FENG Tao

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. ZHANG Songlin

Mr. ZHAI Shenggang

Mr. KANG Hua

BITES
FERE
RZEE
HBEE

NSRRI

BIAFHITES
SRADMRI A
R A v/
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been established in
the Company and the Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions set out in code provision D.3.1
of the CG Code. The corporate governance duties performed
by the Board for the year ended 31 December 2016 were
summarized below: —

(i) reviewed the Company'’s corporate governance policies and
practices;

(i)  reviewed the Company’s policies and practices to ensure
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(iy  reviewed the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and the Directors;

(iv) reviewed the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and other related rules and disclosures in this Corporate
Governance Report; and

(v reviewed the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management.

BOARD COMMITTEES

Currently, the Board has set up four committees, namely,
the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and executive committee of the Company (the
“Executive Committee”) to implement internal supervision and
control on relevant aspects of the Company.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee currently comprises three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin, Mr. ZHAI
Shenggang and Mr. KANG Hua. Mr. ZHANG Songlin, who
possesses professional accounting qualifications and relevant
accounting experience, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, its main
role and functions are to review the Group’s financial information,
to supervise the Group’s financial reporting and internal control
systems, the Group’s risk-management systems and to maintain
relationship with the auditor of the Company.

The Board has, through the Audit Committee, conducted regular
reviews on the effectiveness of the internal control system and
risk management system of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2016 and the interim and annual results, and
has reviewed with management the accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group and discussed the auditing and
financial reporting matters of the Group.

The Group’s final results for the year ended 31 December 2016
have been reviewed by the members of the Audit Committee
before submission to the Board for approval.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee currently consists of one executive
Director, Mr. ZHU Dong, and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang.
Mr. ZHANG Songlin is the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Nomination Committee (Continued)

Under the terms of reference of the Nomination Committee, its
main role and functions are to assist and make recommendations
to the Board to ensure that all the nominations are fair and
transparent.

During the year, the work of the Nomination Committee includes
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change
and determining the policy for the nomination of Directors.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one executive Director,
Mr. ZHU Dong, and two independent non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. ZHANG Songlin and Mr. ZHAI Shenggang. Mr.
ZHANG Songlin is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee,
its main role and functions are to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the policy and structure for
remuneration of the Directors and the senior management and
determine the remuneration packages of the executive Directors
and senior management.

During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered
and reviewed the existing terms of remuneration of all the
Directors and the senior management. The Remuneration
Committee considered that the existing terms of remuneration
of the Directors and the senior management were fair and
reasonable. In forming its view, the Remuneration Committee
has considered and reviewed the Group’s remuneration policy
in relation to that of comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors and the senior management,
desirability of performance-based remuneration and the
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Continued)

Remuneration Committee (Continued)

The Company adopted a new share option scheme on 26 May
2016. The outstanding share options under the 2006 Share
Option Scheme remains valid. The purpose of the share option
schemes is to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
the eligible participants (including the Directors) have made or
may make to the business development of the Group. Please
refer to note 37 to the consolidated financial statements for the
principal terms of the Company’s share option schemes.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee comprises three executive Directors,
Mr. GUAN, Mr. WANG Zheng and Mr. ZHU Dong. Mr. GUAN is
the Chairman of the Executive Committee.

Under the terms of reference of the Executive Committee, its
main role and functions are to advise and assist the Board
in formulating policies and to monitor the performance of
management in carrying out and implementing the policies laid
down by the Board for the Group.

During the year, the work of the Executive Committee includes
considering and approving routine corporate matters and
investment decisions for the Company and the Group.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. CHENG Hoo has resigned as the Company Secretary on
17 June 2016 and Mr. LAU Ka Ho has been appointed as the
Company Secretary on 17 June 2016. He reports to the Board
and is responsible for advising the Board on governance matters.
In compliance with the rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Mr. LAU
Ka Ho has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

During the year, the Group has complied with principle C.2
of the CG Code by establishing appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring
of such systems, while the Board oversees management in
performing its duties on an ongoing basis. Main features of the
risk management and internal control systems are described
below:

Risk Management System

The Group adopts a risk management system which manages
the risk associated with its business and operations. The system
comprises the following phases:

° Identification: |dentify ownership of risks, business
objectives and risks that could affect the achievement of
objectives.

° Evaluation: Analyze the likelihood and impact of risks and
evaluate the risk portfolio accordingly.

° Management: Consider the risk responses, ensure effective
communication to the Board and on-going monitor the
residual risks.

Based on the risk assessments conducted in the year 2016, no
significant risk was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Control System

The Company has an internal control system in place which is

compatible with the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (COSO) 2013 framework. The
framework enables the Group to achieve objectives regarding
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

The components of the framework are as follows:

Control Environment: A set of standards, processes and
structures that provide the basis for carrying out internal
control across the Group.

Risk Assessment: A dynamic and iterative process for
identifying and analyzing risks to achieve the Group’s
objectives, forming a basis for determining how risks should
be managed.

Control Activities: Action established by policies and
procedures to help ensure that management directives to
mitigate risks to the achievement of objectives are carried
out.

Information and Communication: Internal and external
communication to provide the Group with the information
needed to carry out day-to-day controls.

Monitoring: Ongoing and separate evaluations to ascertain
whether each component of internal control is present and
functioning.

B EE R APEERE (&)

REPEEIE I

RARBE R —E A Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO) R =T —=FHMHERP A IMEFE
HE - ZIERFEAEERMEDSEFRIER
MR MBHRE 2 AR NERERERERR
PIZFBAR - ZIERZAENIBH TR

o  EMARE RAKERNETAREZRHEE
BERER] ~ A2 FF KRR o

o EREHE  BBROMPEAEEERE R
AR - NETEEMRENRE - WEKE
REIRITE °

o EFRH: REBRRNMEFWELZTE A
BhE IR B ARRE R AER B IRATIE L 2 15
TREHTT

o  EKEE MAKERHEAREZEMTEER
Az AERINRBEE -

o ESF: RMRAMEREZ ZAKED R EFE
KBRS B R o



RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Control System (Continued)

In order to enhance the Group’s system of handling inside
information, and to ensure the truthfulness, accuracy,
completeness and timeliness of its public disclosures, the Group
has taken certain reasonable measures from time to time to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a
disclosure requirement in relation to the Group, which include:

° The access of information is restricted to a limited number
of employees on a need-to-know basis. Employees who
are in possession of inside information are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality.

° Confidentiality agreements are in place when the Group
enters into significant negotiations.

° The executive Directors, the Company Secretary and
investor relations manager are designated persons who
speak on behalf of the Company when communicating with
external parties such as the media, analysts or investors.

° Regular trainings are provided to relevant employees to help
them understand the Company’s policies and procedures
as well as their relevant disclosure duties and obligations.

Based on the internal control reviews conducted in the year
2016, no significant control deficiency was identified.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Continued)

Internal Auditors

The Group has an Internal Audit (“IA”) function, which consisted
of professional staff with relevant expertise (such as Certified
Public Accountant). The IA function is independent of the Group’s
daily operation and carries out appraisal of the risk management
and internal control systems by conducting interviews,
walkthroughs and tests of operating effectiveness. An IA plan has
been approved by the Board. According to the established plan,
review of the risk management and internal control systems is
conducted annually and the results are reported to the Board via
Audit Committee afterwards.

Effectiveness of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and ensuring review of the
effectiveness of these systems has been conducted annually.
Several areas have been considered during the Board’s review,
which include but not limited to () the changes in the nature and
extent of significant risks since the last annual review, and the
Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and the
external environment (i) the scope and quality of management’s
ongoing monitoring of risks and of the internal control systems.

The Board, through its review and the reviews made by
|A function and Audit Committee, concluded that the risk
management and internal control systems were effective and
adequate. Such systems, however, are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss. It is also
considered that the resources, staff qualifications and experience
of IA function were adequate and the training programs and
budget provided were sufficient.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Company recognizes the importance of communication
with the shareholders, both individual and institutional, as well as
potential investors. The Company has adopted a Shareholders
Communication Policy with an aim of ensuring shareholders
are provided with timely information about the Company and
enabling them to engage actively with the Company and to
exercise their rights in an informed manner.

The Company has policy for promoting investor relations and
communications by maintaining regular dialogue with institutional
shareholders, fund managers, analysts and the media. Meetings
and conference calls were held with investors and analysts
in order for the Company to understand their views and to
keep them abreast of the latest developments. Inquires on
the Company were also dealt with in an informative and timely
manner according to established practices of the Company.

The Company’s website (www.peacemap.com.hk) also facilitates
communication with shareholders and investors. Corporate
information and other relevant financial and non-financial
information of the Company are made electronically and in a
timely manner.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Any one or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of
the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to
the Board or the Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary
general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist himself may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist by the Company.

The Board always welcomes shareholders’ views and input.
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns
to the Board by addressing them to the Company Secretary and
his contact details are as follows:

Company Secretary

Peace Map Holding Limited
Rooms 2807-08, 28th Floor
Bank of America Tower

No. 12 Harcourt Road

Hong Kong

Email : info@peacemap.com.hk
Tel. No. (852) 3759 5300

Fax No. (852) 3759 5366
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge that it is their responsibilities for
overseeing the preparation of the financial statements and
preparation of results and cash flows for each financial year which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and
are prepared on a going concern basis, unless it is inappropriate
to assume the Company will continue in business. The Directors
shall ensure that the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group is in accordance with statutory
requirements and applicable accounting standards.

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, are of the view
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that, for this reason, it
is appropriate for the Group to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the financial statements.

The statement of the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”
on pages 82 to 93 of this annual report.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor of the Company, SHINEWING, has been employed
to provide audit services to the Group since 23 December 2013.
The remuneration paid or payable to SHINEWING in respect
of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended 31
December 2016 amounted to approximately HK$1,320,000 and
HK$360,000 respectively. The non-audit services were related to
review of interim financial information of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year, there was no change in the Company’s
memorandum of association and Articles.
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INTRODUCTION

Pursuant to rule 13.91 of and appendix 27 (Environmental,
Social and Governance Reporting Guide) to the Listing Rules,
the Company hereby presents this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report (the “ESG Report”) on the performance of
the Group’s core business in Beijing of the PRC and Hong Kong
in terms of environmental protection and social responsibility
from 1 January 2016 to 31 December 2016. Please refer to the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” of this annual
report for the information of corporate governance. The ESG
Report is to elaborate the principle that is upheld by the Group
in performing corporate social responsibility in the surveying,
mapping and geographic information industry and the work
it launched. The ESG Report details the work of the Group in
supporting the principles of sustainable development during the
year 2016 and its performance in social governance.

The joint engagement of colleagues in various departments in
the preparation of the ESG Report leads the Group to a clearer
picture of its development of environmental protection and
social responsibility. The information the Group has collected is
a summary of the Group’s environmental and social work during
the year 2016 and serves the basis for its strategy for short- and
long-term sustainable development.

ENVIRONMENT

Environmental issue has become an important topic that
threatens the survival of mankind. Although the surveying,
mapping and geographic information industry of the Group is a
high-tech and low energy consumption industry, the Company
as the first geographic information enterprises of the PRC listed
on the Stock Exchange takes sustainable development as the
guiding principle of its corporate development. The Group not
only started to conserve energy and reduce emission at the
workplace, but also applied technology advancement in business
operations and environmental protection by taking into account
industry features, with a view to contributing to environmental
protection.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
Emissions

In doing business, the Group strictly complies with the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution ((FEEARFEMBIKIFEFEE)), the Law
of the People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Atmospheric Pollution ((FFZE ARZEMBEIRESEA
%)) and the Supervision and Administrative Measures for
Automobile Exhaust Pollution ((JTEBERITREEEEIRIHE)).
In addition, the Group reduces generation of pollutants and
controls impacts of pollutants on environment in accordance
with the Administrative Regulations on the Urban Appearance
and Environmental Hygiene (MM AMBRBEELEEIRIEN))
while actively conducting business. The Group obtained the
Environmental Management System Certification of GB/T24001-
2004/1SO14001:2004 in December 2015. By regularly monitoring
environmental pollutants, the Group ensures emissions from
business required devices, such as unmanned aerial vehicles,
manned aerial vehicles and surveying and mapping vehicles, will
not cause significant impact on neighbouring communities and
environment, so as to reach the zero pollution target.

Waste Treatment

In accordance with the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Wastes (P ZE A R AFE B B2RE Y5 R IRE JAE)), the Group
fulfills its obligation to protect the environment and implements
the policy on reducing solid waste. In order to avoid significant
environmental pollution caused by solid waste, the Group
cooperates with electronic recyclers to regularly collect electronic
waste in offices, including obsolete computers, printers,
computer cases and servers, etc. Through proper handling by
recyclers, the Group reduces the environmental pollution caused
by the improper disposal of electronic waste, such as reducing
the release of toxic gases caused by incineration. The Group’s
non-hazardous waste mainly consist of general household waste,
which are collected and handled by the property management.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Energy Conservation and Emission Reduction
(Continued)

Energy Conservation

With the continuous growth of users, the Group’s data center
scale and the number of servers are increasing. In order to solve
the problem of high energy consumption in the data center,
the Group has formulated and implemented the Management
Procedures of Environmental Protection and Clean Production
(the “Management Procedures”) applicable to the data center.
In accordance with the provisions on the implementation of clean
production in the Management Procedures, the Group used
the production facilities with high utilization rate and the clean
production technologies and processes with less pollutants, in
order to conserve energy and reduce emissions, while enhancing
the production capacity.

The Management Procedures also apply to offices in Hong
Kong and Beijing. Hong Kong and Beijing offices have both
taken a series of measures of energy conservation and emission
reduction, including turning off lights when not in use of offices
and keeping lighting devices and lamps clean for better energy
efficiency; reminding employees to turn off faucets properly,
and having leaky faucets fixed to reduce water waste. Beijing
office has observed energy efficiency principles to maximize
energy conservation in accordance with the Law of the People’s
Republic of China on Energy Saving ((FF#E A RLFMBEEL
g2JR %)) and the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Environment Protection ((## AR ZEFMBEIRFERZEE)) and
in the light of its actual conditions. The measures it has taken
include using natural lighting wherever possible, dividing the
office into different lighting zones for setting up separate lighting
control; removing unnecessary lamps in areas where lighting is
excessive, and adopting energy-efficient lightings such as T5
fluorescent lamps and LED lamps to increase electricity efficiency.
In addition, the Group posts water efficiency signs in the pantry,
reduces the water pressure to the optimum level, uses water
faucets and urinals with water efficiency labels, checks the water
meter readings and concealed water leaks on a regular basis in
order to reduce waste of water resources.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Protecting Environment and Natural Resources
Paperless Office

In the year 2016, the Group continued to implement the
philosophy of paperless office. Through the introduction of the
OA System, employees are encouraged to keep or transmit
documents electronically, enabling a progression of office
model to electronic office and adding environmental protection
elements to the Group. Except for data confirmation sheets and
instrument such as contract that has to be printed on one side
and be affixed with seal or executed, double sided printing or
recycled single-sided paper are encouraged for other instrument
to save paper. The Group also encourages employees to re-use
stationaries such as folder.

In the past, the Group enabled the public to understand the
operation of the Group through the publication of “Peace Map
Communications”. In response to environmental policy, the Group
uses social platforms to deliver the latest information of the Group
to interested parties in real time since the year 2016. By doing so,
the Group did not only save paper and toner required for printing,
but also reduced carbon footprint.

Concerned with Environmental Protection

The Group continues to pay close attention to environmental
protection and is well aware of making an effort to improve
environmental issues by taking advantage of the Group’s
strengths in mapping, photogrammetry and remote sensing, and
geographic information system.
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ENVIRONMENT (Continued)

Protecting Environment and Natural Resources
(Continued)

Concerned with Environmental Protection (Continued)

The Group contributed to the reduction of water pollution by
participating in the project of “A Total of Five Water Treatment”
(TE7KFEE]) in Zhejiang Province of the PRC. In collaboration
with ZJ Academy of Surveying and Mapping (#T;T& Bl4& Rl 24
T 75 F5%), the Group gave full play to its advantages in surveying
and mapping, geographic information services and e-government
by combining production, learning and research. “A Total of
Five Water Treatment” means to treat sewage, prevent flood,
control water-logging, ensure water supply, and save water. The
Group will report the current status and data of the rivers, such
as whether there is any discharge of sewage, whether there are
floating objects, whether there is unauthorized construction, etc.
to the relevant departments, in order to contribute to the study of
formulating rational scientific sewage treatment programs.

The Group contributed to reduce atmosphere pollution by using
unmanned aerial vehicle to help inspect straw burning gratis
in Xiantao, Hubei Province of the PRC. Straw burning causes
haze weather and produces abundance of toxic and hazardous
substances, threatening the health of human and other living
beings. With the use of unmanned aerial vehicles, technicians
carried out round-the-clock monitoring to the conditions of straw
burning in key areas and along key roads of Xiantao. By doing
s0, fire points and burning traces can be detected with precision
positioning and the effective implementation of Xiantao’s ban on
straw burning can be ensured.
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TALENTS

The Group understands that talent is the Group’s most valuable
asset. Thus, the Group is committed to creating a harmonious
working atmosphere of respecting knowledge and talents,
while designed corresponding career development plan for its
employees.

Recruiting Talents

The Group created recruitment platforms to gather talents in line
with the principle of using people according to their competence.
The Group strictly abides by the Employment Ordinance of the
Laws of Hong Kong, the Labor Law of the People’s Republic
of China ({# ZE A B H£ F B 85 8) 7% )) and the Labor Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China ( # # A & £ 1 E1 45 &
& R )). Every job applicant is entitled to equal opportunity of
having interviews as long as his/her competence meets the job
requirements and will not be discriminated, excluded or restricted
based on factors such as gender, age, race, religion or disability.
Upon formal employment, the Group will execute labor contracts
with its employees in line with the principles of legality, fairness,
and consensus, in order to prevent forced labor, and provide its
employees with equal work opportunity, company benefits, post
promotion, salary progression, and trainings. Employees normally
work five days a week, eight hours a day and forty hours a week
in total, rest on Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays, and are
entitled to paid annual leave.

The Group also abides by the Minimum Wage Ordinance of
the Laws of Hong Kong, provides employees with competitive
compensation in the market and follows the assessment
principles of “objectiveness, fairness, democracy, openness and
performance-oriented” in adjusting employees’ remuneration.
In addition, remuneration, work, bonus and reward policies are
reviewed annually.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Recruiting Talents (Continued)

The Group provides mandatory provident fund contribution for
its employees in full compliance with the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong. The Group
pays social insurance premium for its employees in the mainland,
including pension insurance, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund. In addition to the five insurances plus
the housing fund, the Group also provides corporate employees
comprehensive accident insurance, so as to provide better
protection to employees.

In addition, the Group’s enterprises are equipped with specialized
internal management organizations, comply with the Employment
of Children Regulations of the Laws of Hong Kong and the
Provisions on Prohibition of Using Children Employees Z£1t
FEAZETIRE)) applicable in the mainland, apply professional
management on the recruitment and employment of employees
S0 as to strictly regulate the recruitment policy and employment
policy and eradicate the use of children employees. In order to
prevent the use of children employees from occurrence, each job
applicant is required to provide identity document for inspection
after formal receipt of employment notice.

In order to balance the work and life of employees, the Group
created a comfortable working environment for employees by
providing fruits and coffee to employees every day and placing
green plants in the offices to improve indoor air quality. The Group
also organizes leisure activities such as outdoor activities, group
travel, regular dinner, monthly birthday party, etc. to enhance
employees’ morale. In September 2016, the Group held outward
bound training on team building in Zhimiao Bay, Liaoning Province
of the PRC. The Group hopes to fully stimulate the psychological
potential of employees, break through their psychological limits,
challenge themselves, while cultivating team spirit and enhancing
cohesion of enterprises through team activities.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Health and Safety

By holding the philosophy of “giving top priority to safety, placing
the main emphasis on prevention, and ensuring occupational
health of employees”, the Group cares about personal safety and
health of its employees, aims for zero injury in the workplace and
monitors hygiene conditions of working premises regularly.

The Group has obtained the certifications of GB/T28001-
2011/OHSAS18001:2007 (Occupational Health and Safety
Management System), Q/SHS0001.1-2001 and Q/SY1002.1-
2013 (Health, Safety and Environmental Management Systems).
Moreover, the Group abides by the Labor Contract Law of the
People’s Republic of China (##EAREFELE A FE)), the
Law of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Occupational Diseases (I A R T B EHED
J&7%)), and the Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance of
the Laws of Hong Kong, with a view to providing its employees
with a comfortable and clean office environment. The Group
not only provides surveyors with labor protection equipments
against freezing, sunshine, and high temperature, but also
maintains appropriate temperature and humidity for the surveying
fields as possible, with a view to creating a healthy and safe
working environment for its employees. Through reasonable
arrangements, the Group prevents employees from being
overloaded at work.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Health and Safety (Continued)

At the same time, the Group has implemented the Procedure
of Hazard Source Identification and Risk Evaluation Control to
identify hazard sources related to all personnel, service activities,
management activities, workplace so as to ensure that important
hazard sources are controlled and that the health and safety of
employees are protected. To this end, the Group, in addition to
regularly inspecting the unmanned aerial vehicles it used, has also
developed an occupational safety manual to ensure the safety of
all employees, including surveyors who need to work outdoor or
at height, so as to reduce accidents, injury and even casualties.
In the event of any work-related injury or accident, the Group will
comply with the Regulation on Work-Related Injury Insurance T
151% % 16451)) of the PRC and provide relevant assistance.

To maintain the physical and psychological health of employees
is the top priority of business management. Therefore, the Group
has provided employees with annual physical examination
in addition to medical assurance to ensure that employees
may stay healthy while focusing on work. The Group selected
medical institutions carefully and cooperated with well-equipped
institutions to ensure the accuracy of physical examination
results, in order to support employees in early prevention of
diseases. The Group also regularly reviews the publications
published by the Occupational Safety and Health Council of Hong
Kong and distributes applicable information to employees, such
as stretching exercises to prevent muscles and bones strain,
methods to prevent influenza, etc. and places relevant posters
or slogans in conspicuous position so as to improve employees’
awareness of occupational safety in the office.

With reference to the 5S management, i.e. Sort (Seiri), Set in
Order (Seiton), Shine (Seisou), Standardize (Seiketsu) and Sustain
(Shitsuke), the Group keeps working premise clean and tidy,
maintains articles in order, puts working equipments in proper
places before off work, and fosters employees’ habit of self-
discipline, so as to create a safe working environment with zero
accident.
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TALENTS (Continued)

Career Development

The success of the Group depends on the hard work of
employees. Therefore, professional trainings related to the
Group’s services and products are provided to employees of
each department according to the promotion requirements of
different positions, for example, trainings for safety reviewers of
Internet map, continuing education and trainings for registered
surveyors, outward bound trainings, orientation trainings for new
employees and trainings on employees’ occupational ethnics
and dedication to work, to improve employees’ competence and
skills and further develop the potential and talent of employees.
If necessary, the Group also provides education allowances for
employees to encourage them to continue their studies.

In addition, as a data collection company, data confidentiality is
the Group’s fundamental ethics. Therefore, the Group regularly
provides relevant employees with education and trainings on
information safety, such as training courses on safety and
confidentiality of computer information system, to ensure that
each employee knows how to prevent data leakage and to
improve information security awareness and ability of employees.

PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Supply Chain Management

The Group will lease equipment such as unmanned aerial
vehicles from suppliers before carrying out data collection and
survey. The Group conducts background checks on different
suppliers and carefully screens out the conscience enterprises
that value and seriously fulfill their social responsibilities. In order
to implement the concept of energy conservation, the Group will
prioritize the suppliers in neighboring regions among selected
conscience enterprises according to the geographical location of
each exploration to shorten the travel distance, thus reducing the
carbon footprint generated during transportation.

During the process of data collection and survey, the Group
concerns the quality of suppliers continually through regular
inspection of suppliers’ operating licenses, annual audit report of
aircraft safety, etc. so as to reduce the potential environmental
problems and social risks caused by suppliers’ products failure.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability
Quality Assurance

“Providing quality service and continuously meeting customers’
demand” has been the most concerned target of the Group.
To this end, the Group formulated procedures for inspecting
product quality. When a product is about to be completed,
application software will automatically inspect the product quality
and data processors will confirm the inspection results. If the
data processing results meet the requirements, quality assurers
will complete the inspection report as a proof. The Group has
obtained GB/T19001-2008/ISO9001: 2008 quality management
system certification and level-3 qualification of computer
information system integration enterprise. Thanks to the trust and
support of customers and working attitude of employees to seek
perfection, the Group is able to constantly provide surveying and
mapping services meeting customers’ needs.

For the geographic information industry, the Group must abide
by the requirements set out in the Surveying and Mapping Law of
the People’s Republic of China and not engage in any surveying
and mapping activities before attaining relevant surveying and
mapping qualifications under laws. In the classification standard
for surveying and mapping qualifications (CBI4&E & o A4Z
#)) formulated by the National Administration of Surveying,
Mapping and Geoinformation of the PRC, the Group meets
the national rank A standard in the following areas: surveying
aerial photography, photography surveying and remote sensing,
geographic information system engineering, engineering
surveying, real estate surveying, map compilation and Internet
map services. Therefore, the Group’s efforts to ensure quality of
service are recognized.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
Data Confidentiality

The Group has established improved provision and use of
confidential achievements policy and confidentiality management
policy, set up safe and reliable confidentiality and protection
measures, to ensure that the data for public use will neither
infringe personal privacy nor endanger public and national
security. In addition, the Group complies with relevant laws and
regulations,-including the Law of the People’s Republic of China
on Guarding State Secrets ((HZE A R EMEURTEBIR M
%)) and the Regulation of the People’s Republic of China on the
Administration of Surveying and Mapping Achievements ({# %
ARFMBVRI R EIBIRH)).

In order to ensure the confidentiality of various information assets
and provide customers with more reliable services, the Group
established an information security management mechanism and
obtained ISO/IEC 27001: 2013 certification in information security
management system. Moreover, the Group takes “improving
information security awareness, abiding by information security
laws and regulations, strengthening scientific management
mechanism, maintaining a safe operating environment, protecting
company’s information assets, safeguarding customers
information security” as guidelines for protecting information
security. Furthermore, the Group established an internal
information security management committee to manage and
ensure effective operation of the system and improve the system
constantly.

Data and surveying results collected from exploration are stored
in the Group’s database and encrypted, which are accessed
by the department in charge only so that the confidentiality of
customers’ information is fully ensured. In order to further reduce
the risk of divulging customer privacy, the Group will only keep a
copy of the original letter of permission and the original contract
of customers and will not store any electronic version of the
documents, except for open bidding documents, when dealing
with customers’ materials. Customers files can be accessed by
the person(s) in charge of the project only.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
Data Confidentiality (Continued)

All employees of the Group are required to comply with the
policy of network security of confidentiality. Confidentiality-related
personnel must sign a letter of confidentiality to prevent collected
data and materials from being divulged so as to avoid any
hacking activity that may damage the business reputation and
revenue of the Group.

Improving Data Access Procedures

The Group has developed the data access management policy
to regulate data access. When data collection is completed, the
entity to which such data belong will be recorded so as to protect
its interests and enhance copyright awareness of confidential
surveying and mapping achievements. During the whole process
from data processing to handing over achievements, the Group
strictly implements the provisions set out in the confidentiality
management policy, keeps all results confidential and will not
divulge to any third parties.

When there is a need to extract data from the database for
other projects used, the applicant department must complete
the delivery approval form for sales, the delivery approval form
for development, or the delivery approval form for production.
Materials may not be delivered for use before approval is obtained
S0 as to protect the Group’s assets and avoid divulgement.

After-Sales Service

When using unmanned aerial vehicles for data collection, the
Group strictly abides by the Basic Requirements for Unmanned
Aerial Vehicle Photography Safe Operation ({4 A% 2
EEEARER)) promulgated by the National Administration of
Surveying, Mapping and Geoinformation of the PRC. To ensure
the quality of service, trainings for the use of unmanned aerial
vehicles are provided to our customers at the time of sale based
on their needs, which can also help to reduce the accidents
caused by improper use of unmanned aerial vehicles.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Product Liability (Continued)
After-Sales Service (Continued)

To understand customer satisfaction, the Group has developed
and implemented the monitoring and surveying control
procedures. By understanding customer demand, suggestion
and satisfaction through telephone calls or emails, the Group
will deal with information feedback by customers properly, and
implement corresponding improvements, so as to improve
customer satisfaction.

Anti-Corruption

The Group upholds the highest ethical standards, promotes good
faith and integrity, strictly abides by the Prevention of Bribery
Ordinance and the Theft Ordinance of the Laws of Hong Kong,
the Company Law of the People’s Republic of China ({FZEA
ERHAMBEIAFA)), the Criminal Law of the People’s Republic of
China({FZE AR ZLMBEIFE)) and the Anti-Unfair Competition
Law of the People’s Republic of China ({F#E A R FE & AN 1E
E#EF %)), together with the rules and regulations developed by
the Group to achieve a good governance.

Upon enrollment, all employees are required to execute the
confidential agreement and receive the employee manual. The
manual explicitly prohibits employees from asking for, borrowing,
giving or taking any property or gift in any form, directly and
indirectly, in their names or on behalf of the Company and/or
any of its subsidiaries from any organizations or individuals who
have/has interest in the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries,
including suppliers, distributors, partners, and contractors. At
the same time, employees are required to report any conflicts
of interest and not to disclose the Company’s and/or any of its
subsidiaries’ information to any third parties.
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PRODUCTS AND SERVICES (Continued)

Anti-Corruption (Continued)

In order to prevent corruption, the Group has established
a complaints reporting system and made it available to all
employees. Employees may report any job-related crime, bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering through the complaint and
report mailbox. In the year 2016, the Group did not receive any
criminal reports on job-related crime, bribery, extortion, fraud and
money laundering.

CHARITY

As a listed company, the Group spared no efforts to the charity,
actively participated in various charity activities and performed
its social responsibility, while committing to the development of
corporate business. By encouraging employees to participate
in various activities, the Group established close and good
relationships with local and national charity organizations and
other institutions to contribute to the community while cultivating
tacit understanding among employees and their sense of
belonging to the Company, so as to attain the philosophy of
sustainable development.

In the past, the Group’s business has been used in emergency
relief. The Group assisted in local disaster relief operations after
heavy rains and earthquakes and mobilized unmanned aerial
vehicles photography systems around the disaster-stricken
areas to take aviation images after such disasters. Carrying out
fine processing and disaster analysis through high-resolution
unmanned aerial vehicles images is conducive to disaster analysis
and risk elimination by the authorities. By doing so, this provided
a data basis for the entire disaster relief and scientific rescue. The
Group can provide technical support in the national earthquake
relief, resettlement, urban and rural planning, infrastructure
construction to perform its social responsibility.
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CHARITY (Continued)

The Group has been working with The Society for the Relief of
Disabled Children for two consecutive years in being a sponsor
of holding a charity walk cum carnival called “Step Out for
Children” and its employees also participate in the walking
activity. In addition to using the donations to finance primary
immunodeficiency diagnosis tests, the event also allowed
participants to understand the needs of vulnerable children and
promoted the concept of accepting vulnerable groups. In the
year 2016, the Group donated approximately HK$25,000 to The
Society for the Relief of Disabled Children for charitable purposes.

In addition, the Group organized a used clothing donation called
“clothing + clothing = love” at the Beijing office to encourage
employees to donate used clothing, delivering the warmth of the
Group to compatriots in poverty-stricken mountainous areas in
the cold winter.

In September 2016, Tong’an, Xiamen of the PRC was a mess
after the typhoon. The Group dispatched some stationed
employees to participate in the Clean Home Action for Tong’an
as volunteers to clean roads with other voluntary teams, creating
a caring and harmonious social environment.

To welcome the year 2017, the Group has conducted a round
of campus recruitment for skilled talents. The fresh inputs are
expected to bring about inspiration to the innovation in the
Group’s business and support the long-term development of the
Group. The recruitment offered an employment opportunity to the
community and alleviated its employment pressure.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to support social
charitable activities in different forms and contribute to the
community.
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hlneﬂ)tng Causeway Bay, Hong Kong A TESE 3354348

TO THE MEMBERS OF
PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Peace
Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 94 to 291, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2016, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2016, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”) and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL ATTRIBUTABLE TO
GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION BUSINESS

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 120 to 121.

The key audit matter
BREETTEE

The Group has goodwill with the carrying amount of
approximately HK$404,076,000 as at 31 December 2016
relating to the acquisition of its wholly owned subsidiary,
Sinbo Investment Limited, in 2013. During the year ended 31
December 2016, impairment loss amounting to approximately
HK$183,404,000 was recognised.
RZE—RETZA=+—H  EEEHEFER_T—=
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Continuous significant recurring loss in operations in current
year result in a risk regarding the carrying amount of goodwill.
Performing an impairment review of goodwill requires the exercise
of significant judgment regarding the marketability discount,
control premium and the cost of disposal of the cash generating
units (“CGUSs”) in relation to the goodwill.
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We have identified the impairment of goodwill as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and because the Group’s assessment of impairment
of goodwill is a judgmental process which requires estimates
concerning the fair value less cost of disposal of the CGUs. The
selection of valuation model, adoption of key assumptions and
input data may be subject to management bias and changes in
these assumptions and input to valuation model may result in
significant financial impact.
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EE2ETNMMREZEEE

Our procedures were designed to obtain
management’s assessment and valuation report
prepared by the external valuation specialist and
challenge the reasonableness of the selection of
valuation model, adoption of key assumptions
and input data by reference to the historical
information and internal forecasts, together with
other externally available information. We have
also reconciled the input data to the supporting
evidence, such as approved forecast and
considering the reasonableness of the forecast.
EEEFEEEREREN M RBINIEE
HERRHENGERS - WKBZERELEHRAT
FEORI LA B2 AT EER ) B Ath SD R & L L4 (BB B 38
2 I EZ2RJ[ORAMEABEBENSEHELE

o BFMZE I A BUR B E R RE (&
BE)  UERZEREZAEMK -



CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT

Refer to notes 6 and 26 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 125 to 126.

The key audit matter
BREETEE

The Group recognised contract revenue of a business
application and data collection service contract according to the
management’s estimation of the total outcome of the project as
well as the stage of completion of contract works.
EREERBEEEEHNEAERBER AT RAENITIRZ THE
B - MREEERRBBERRE A2 a8

This involves the assessment of the stage of completion of
contract works, which was performed by the Group’s engineers,
the actual outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue
may be higher or lower than the management’s estimation and it
will affect the revenue recognised.

Er kB BESEIREMEEHIETHGERETIE  mMEaL
RN ENERERAESNIERERE 2 MAHER - &
1R B PR ER -

Significant judgment is involved in relation to the assessment of
the total outcome and the stage of completion and is therefore
considered as a key audit matter.

BRAES RAHEBBAERNTTAEE - AR REERET
=
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEENNMREZEER

Our audit procedures were designed to assess
whether the stage of completion at the end of the
reporting date was reasonable through critically
challenging the basis of work performed to date.
EEZETEFEEEBILHMHERESHRA
RIBZEE K EREHROTHEERE
BEIE -

We have discussed with the Group’s engineers to
understand the status of completion and evaluate
the reasonableness of their estimation on the
stage of completion at the end of the reporting
period, taking into account the profit margin of
similar projects, the duration and the complexity
of the projects.

EEEm ERE TR ATHRRE
HIR Z e iR AE - WS ZRERUIER AExR -
HEFHERMEMEE  SHEHEETERE 2
TSR -

We have reviewed the contract terms and
conditions and respective acceptance reports
prepared by the Group’s engineers on a sampling
basis. We had also recalculated the revenue
recognised based on the stage of completion.
EECHERANANEREGEEARE E5E
TEMGBEANERBRYERE - EZNCENTE
BB EE R 2 IS -
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IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Refer to note 21 to the consolidated financial statements and the
accounting policies on pages 133 to 136.

The key audit matter
BREETEE

The Group has other intangible assets with the carrying amount
of approximately HK$230,466,000 as at 31 December 2016 as
well as the amortisation expenses amounting to approximately
HK$53,368,000. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
impairment loss amounting to approximately HK$220,793,000
was recognised.

RZZE-—XF+_A=+—HB EX5EHEEREELR
230,466,000 8 7T, H b 2 & E DA K2 & 88 4Y /& 53,368,000 8 7T
WEERY - BE_T—RNF+_A=+—HBILFE  BReE
#)%220,793,000 B T 2 R MEE A °

Continuous significant recurring loss in operations in current year
result in a risk regarding the carrying amount of other intangible
assets. Performing an impairment review of other intangible
assets requires the exercise of significant judgment regarding
future growth rates, discount rates and sensitivity assumptions.
REEREEBZFHEEARETLERSBEREM B EERT
B ER - HHMETEEETRERSTERRKIER
K BEIR RN BRERFETERHIE -

Htt B EE ZRE

FELHGAMEHRERNT21 RFE133E 136 B 2
SRR -

How the matter was addressed in our audit

ESENNMREZEER

Our procedures were designed to obtain
management’s assessment and valuation report
prepared by external valuation specialist and
challenge the reasonableness of the selection of
valuation model, adoption of key assumptions
and input data by reference to the historical
information and internal forecasts, together with
market and other externally available information.
We have also reconciled the input data to the
supporting evidence, such as approved forecasts
and considering the reasonableness of these
forecasts.

EE R E R ERE R EN TG RIMNIEESR
EmENHERS  WK2ERELER - NHEP
TEORILA B T35 I AT ER 2 ELAth SNER B & - ¥
ERAER - TERIORALBABENS
BURNE R - B IR ABUREZREE
(gt ETRE) W ZEZERE 2 /Bt -



IMPAIRMENT OF OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS
(Continued)

The key audit matter
HRETSEE

Besides, the useful lives of other intangible assets are reviewed
annually after taking into consideration factors, such as estimation
of the ability to renew the other intangible assets, cost to renewal
in the future and the expected life of the other intangible assets
to generate net cash flows for the Group which may affect the
useful life expectancy of the assets and therefore could have a
material impact on any impairment charge or the amortisation
charge for the year.

peoh - R\ EENERFREH REZEREZREFHETR
A REEAROEMATTENMAMETEENR NARBEERA
B EENKARAEMELEER EXEELRSRENTE
HFH - Al BRENERFHZEY - Btrl e AFEE
AREERNBIHERAELEATE -

We have identified the impairment of other intangible assets as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements and because the Group’s assessment of
impairment of other intangible assets is a judgmental process
which requires estimates concerning the forecast future cash
flows associated with the other intangible assets, the discount
rates and the growth rate of revenue and costs to be applied in
determining the value in use. The selection of valuation model,
adoption of key assumptions and input data may be subject to
management bias and changes in these assumptions and input
to valuation model may result in significant financial impact.
EEEHEMBEERERRERETEIE - TIRNEHER
MR BEAEWAEE  WEBHKN EXEUHHEMETEEZRE
FHER—EXERE - FEREMBILEERR 2 RARFBARE
mE - BRERWREREUREAREERAEEZKAEL
st o MERENEE - FER[ORA R ABURAEXER
BRI PTRR - ek B MR MEERE 2 B A BB E R aL
SIMERMBTE -

Also, applying the Group’s accounting policies in respect of
the useful lives involves a significant degree of judgment by
management in considering the factors indicated above which
may affect both the carrying amount of the Group’s other
intangible assets as well as the amortisation charge for the
current year.

ko e EEBEERGEAFHEHE SRS LERENE
Bt ARBENRSIEENHE - SrEXERFE &%5E
BVEEZEMEREHER -
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How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEETNMEEZEER

Besides, we have challenged the management’s
assessment on the appropriateness of the useful
lives and the amortisation rate used and considered
the potential impact of reasonably possible downside
changes in these key assumptions.

BEoh - BECEEIRE AT ERANA) £ A F A
HEZEEHEL 2T HIBEHER  WEEZ
EFERBEENEE MTEIMEENEBEER

4BR

= o
=
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RECOVERABILITY OF TRADE RECEIVABLES
AND COLLECTABILITY OF AMOUNTS DUE FROM
CUSTOMERS OF CONTRACT WORKS

Refer to notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies on pages 144 to 146.

The key audit matter
BEETTEE

The Group has amounts due from customers of contract works
and trade receivables with the carrying amount of approximately
HK$221,097,000 and HK$102,722,000 respectively as at 31
December 2016.

RZE-—RE+A=+—B - EBEEEEEREEIHNOR
221,097,000 7 7T & 102,722,000 4 7T B FE UL & = A& 4 T2 308
NE 5 REWFIE -

We have identified the recoverability of amounts due from
customers of contract works and trade receivables as a key audit
matter because of its significance to the consolidated financial
statement and because the policy for making such impairment
involves significant degree of management judgment in respect
of assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivable and the
timing of billing of certain contract works.
FEEHRREFAOITREFIAKE ZRKRIAR ATU @ 1L E R
REARETFE  DARHBGEMBHRREHER - YHEAR
ERZRERBER S & B IR Bl A2 SRR SRR BIH &
ETEHTRRENSREMEL ZBSIEENHE -

BZRUCREN TR E TR EREF
BHNIERENREBR

FLHGEAUBHRRM T2 27T A RE 1445
146 B Z BETHUR o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Bz ETNAEEZEER

Our procedures were designed to review the
management’s assessment of recoverability
of amounts due from customers of contract
works and trade receivables and challenge the
reasonableness of the methods and assumptions
used.

EEZIEFE RN EREHERKEPSH IR
TRIA N B 5 W R TA H AT B WM B 5T 4k DA K 9P
FRAERBRNSEERLES

We have discussed the indicators of possible
impairment with the management and, where
such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing.
EECHEEEMNREENBETR - ARER
EZERROERLT - FHEEREBHRERH -

Besides, we have challenged the assumptions
and critical judgment used by the management
by assessing the reliability of the management’s
past estimates and taking into account the ageing
at year end, credit-worthiness of the customers,
progress billings during the year, subsequent
progress billings and cash received after the end
of the reporting period.

BN - BEEE AT AERERE GRS
BT RFRZIERER - TR ERBR FREER
¥ HRERRE NRERAREMWR RS
HEREMRANREZLEZHER DB -



INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S
REPORT THEREON

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors of the Company
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE COMPANY AND THOSE CHARGED WITH
GOVERNANCE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

ENTIEERAEERGAAMERR
BERENET®)
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control. -

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.-

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors of the Company. -
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s
directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern. -

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such commmunication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Pang Wai Hang.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Pang Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number: P0O5044

Hong Kong
23 March 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEBEER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
LhEss FET FAT
(Restated)
($&E7)
Continuing operations BEKSEER
Revenue e 6 232,778 304,881
Cost of revenue eI N (228,585) (272,763)
Gross profit E7 4,193 32,118
Other income EHAap WA 8 10,890 19,425
Selling and distribution HERDHEAZ
expenses (24,748) (9,474)
Administrative and other T R E MDA & F
operating expenses (125,870) (106,852)
Equity-settled share-based LA ER A E N LA
payment expenses SR 53 37 (2,215) (8,761)
Share of result of associates PAK[uY kNI E 19 1,618 2,475
Impairment loss of goodwill EE 7 REEE 20 (183,404) -
Impairment loss of other EmEEEERERE
intangible assets 21 (220,793) (60,680)
Other gain and losses, net Ehies R BEFEE 9 (41,281) 44,579
Operating loss Kz EE (581,610) (87,170)
Finance costs A& KA 10 (52,509) 67,197)
Loss before taxation bR ATIEE 12 (634,119) (154,367)
Income tax credit FTiSfiig e 13 35,964 3,934
Loss for the year from RECEEB
continuing operations FABE (598,155) (150,433)
Discontinued operation BARIEREEK
Profit (loss) for the period/year from B4R [FAE &2
discontinued operation BN FREH (B18) 11 77,862 (4,278)
Loss for the year FRERE (520,293) (154,711)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—E—REF —T—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FExT FHAT
(Restated)
€<=
(Loss) profit for the year attributable Z<2A F1#EA A FE(L
to owners of the Company: FR(EE) &=
— from continuing operations — REFELEER (587,422) (131,346)
— from discontinued operation — REERIEEEER 77,849 (4,160)
Loss for the year attributable RAEEA NG
to owners of the Company FANEE (509,573) (135,506)
(Loss) profit for the year attributable FE2% A% hE 25 FE (5
to non-controlling interests: FRN(EER) &N
— from continuing operations — REFELLEES (10,733) (19,087)
— from discontinued operation — REERIKEER 13 (118)
Loss for the year attributable FEIE R R
to non-controlling interests FREE (10,720) (19,205)
(520,293) (154,711)
HK cents HK cents
21l Al
Loss per share BREE
From continuing and discontinued 2R B 454 & 2 4% 11
operations KT
- Basic and diluted — BEARREE 15 (6.25) (1.79)

From continuing operations
— Basic and diluted

— EANEE 15 (7.20)

(1.73)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEBEaRkEtZEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss for the year FREE (520,293) (154,711)
Other comprehensive expense Hftt2HHAX
ltems that may be reclassified PR A B O EERR
subsequently to profit or loss: ZIEE :
Exchange differences arising MEGINETS
from translation FEXZ
of overseas operations M H ZE5E (68,979) (69,175)
Reclassification adjustment RS BINER TR
for the cumulative gain HEt ABmZ
included in profit or loss RETREIER 2
upon disposal of overseas EHHEAE
operations (70,491) —
Other comprehensive expense FAHMEEAE
for the year (139,470) (69,175)
Total comprehensive FHNEHEFT BT
expense for the year (659,763) (223,886)
Total comprehensive expense T IEREAFA
for the year attributable to: SEMAS B -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZ 2N (645,226) (200,892)
Non-controlling interests FEIEAR S (14,537) (22,994)

(659,763) (223,886)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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As at 31 December 2016 R-—F—NF+_-H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E-RF —ZE—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE FET FAT
Non-current assets IRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Vs - BB M 17 42,553 58,576
Interests in associates NI T 19 11,697 4,816
Goodwill Bk 20 404,076 635,634
Mining licences R R 23 - —
Exploration and evaluation assets  #h¥x K& HHEE 24 - —
Other intangible assets HEmEmpEE 21 230,466 505,939
Available-for-sale investment AHEERE 22 4,465 8,356
Deferred tax assets BRI EE 35 48 137
693,305 1,213,458
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 25 886 10,585
Amounts due from JENE P& A T25KIE
customers of contract works 26 221,097 218,312
Trade and other receivables B 5 Kk H A R GRIE 27 179,336 175,169
Finance lease receivables BB E WA 28 2,010 2,149
Tax recoverable BEEEE 6 6
Pledged bank deposits EIRIRIRITIER 29 197 122,678
Bank balances and cash WITHB RIS 30 158,582 213,141
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ARE MR R

As at 31 December 2016 R—F— A NF+_—H=4+—H

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHETT
Current liabilities REBAE
Amounts due to customers ERNEFEHNIENRE
of contract works 26 11,902 5,738
Trade and other payables %%&E@FEH% 31 258,107 218,469
Amounts due to FEA FETE AR AR R 3R
non-controlling shareholders 18 74,632 69,285
Amounts due to associates N NI E e 18 44,135 28,132
Tax payables FERIBEIE 5,648 4,339
Borrowings BE 32 30,624 144,103
425,048 470,066
Net current assets REEEFE 137,066 271,974
Total assets less HEERRBER
current liabilities 830,371 1,485,432
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Amount due to a non-controling  JE{ — & IEIEIZAR R X
shareholder 18 6,168 11,251
Borrowings BE 32 626 —
Convertible notes Gl E S 33 469,282 421,466
Deferred income FEIEUTA 34 264 4,658
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBAE 35 19,497 60,212
495,837 497,587

Net assets EEEE 334,534 987,845
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

mEMBRRE

As at 31 December 2016 R-—F—NF+_-H=4+—H

2016 2015
—ET—REF —T—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
BEE FET FAT
Capital and Reserves EXRRFHE

Share capital N 36 2,039,195 2,039,195
Reserves e 38 (1,756,514) (1,113,503)

Equity attributable to owners RATER AR
of the Company 282,681 925,692
Non-controlling interests eI R A 51,853 62,153
Total equity RS 334,534 987,845

The consolidated financial statements on pages 94 to 291 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors (the
“Board”) on 23 March 2017 and are signed on its behalf by:

GUAN Hongliang
BRE
Director

EE

FUE2N B ZHEAMBHRN _T—t
FoA-T=AgESe((EEg ) HERK
BT WHILATESRRERE

ZHU Dong
KZ
Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEEBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

AATREAEEER
Convertible
Share Capital note equity Non-
Share Share Merger option redemption  Statutory Translation reserve Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve  WEREE Losses Total interests equity

RE  ROEE AKEE BRENGE SARERE  iERE  EXGE  EERE  ZhER A FERER fEs
HKS000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TER TER TR Tén T T T T TER TER TER TR
(note 36)  (note 38(a)) (note 38(b)) (note 38(c)) (note 38(d)) (note 38()) (note 38(f)  (note 33)

(WeE36) (MiEsefa) (ME3s) (Mzss(c) (ME3s(d) (WeEosle) (Hass()  (W&S3)

At 1 January 2016 R=E-7F-A-A 2,039,195 1,087,267 13,805 46,903 6,629 14,836 11,977 156,098  (2,451,918) 925,692 62,153 987,845
Loss for the year FREE - - - = = = - - (609573)  (509,573) (10,720)  (520,293)
Exchange difference arising from BEBNERHEEL

translation of overseas operations BHER

and other comprehensive expense REREMZERT

fortheyear - - - - - - (516 - - 5160 @81 (68979
Reclassfication adjustment for RILEBINERER

the cumuiative gainincluded inproft ~ EEARM R E L

orloss upon disposal of EAERR

overseas operations - - - - - - (70,491) - - (70,491) - (70,491)
Other comprehensive expense FRERRERRL

for the year - - - - - - (135,653) - - (135,653) 8817)  (139,470)
Total comprehensive expense FREARTEE

for the year - - - - - - (135653) - (609,573  (645,226) (14,5537)  (659,763)
Deregistration of a subsidiary (note 48) 3 —FEHEAR (Hfik48) - - - - - - - - - - 3313 3313
Disposal of subsiciaries (note 39(0) HEMB R (H300) - - - - - - - - - - 864 864
Forfeiure of share options RiERE - - - (6,892) - - - - 6,892 - - -
Recognition of eqity-settled SNEREEUMRG

share-hased payments (note 37) BERZ A (W37 - - - 2215 - - - - - 2215 - 2215

At31 December 2016 WoB-AETZASH-0 2000195 1067267 13805 42226 6620 14836  (123676) 156998 (2954509) 282681 51853 334534
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
REREBER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=1—HIFF

Equty aftrioutable to owners of the Company

LN
Convertiole
Share Capital note equity Non-
Share Share Merger option  redemption  Statutory  Translation reserve  Accumulated controling Total
capltal ~ premium resenve reserve reserve reserve esene  JRALREE losses Total Interests equity

A ROEE  ANEE BRERE SAEEHE  ATRE  EXBE  ERER  ZiER aif  FERER fEs
HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000  HKS000  HKS000  HK$000  HKBOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000
Fhn Fin Fin Fin Fin Fhn T Fhn Tin Fin Fhn Fhn
(note 36)  (note 38(a))  (note 38(b)  (note 38(c)  (note 38(d)  (note 38(e)  (note 38f)  (note 33
(Witse) (Mzss) (Wissb)) (Wiksee) (Massd) (Misee) (Msen) (M)

At 1 January 2015 R=E-1F-A-A 1,676,652 968,372 13,805 51,918 6,629 12,684 77,363 349,409 (2,604,163) 562,669 85,078 637,747
Loss forthe year FhEE - - - - - - - - (15508) (135506 (19,205  (154711)
Exchange difference arising BEBNERHEEL

from translation of ERZE

overseas operations REREMZERT

and other comprehensive

expense for the year - - - - - - (65,386) - - (65,386) (3,789 (69,175)
Total comprehensive expense FREARTAE

for the year - - - - - - (65,386) - (1355060 (200892) (22,994 (223,886)
Additional acquision of asubsidiary AN —EHBAE

(rote 47) (izta) - - - - - - - - 678 678 8 (609
Sharesissue upon placing (note 36(d)  BEEER/TRA (HFs6) 237,500 76,000 - - - - - - - 313500 - 313500
Share issue expenses (note 36/0) BOEGESCERV) - (5729) - - - - - - - (5,723) - (5729)
Appropriations to statutory resene funds - AZEERES - - - - - 2,152 - - (2,152 - - -
Shares issued upon exercise of I ERERETHORG

share options fote 360 (kz366) 5545 1500 NN ) - . B, . AT - 558
Maturity of Convertile Note | AEREEIHS - - - - - - - (90581) 290581 - - -
Renewal of Convertible Note | TERZEIEE N - - - B B - 139,915 - 139,915 - 139915
Conversion of Convertible Note | RETRRZE

(note 36) (Mt 360) 3628 18,051 - - - - - 8.275) - 13,404 - 13,404
Conversion of Convertiole Note RETRRZE

(note 36(0) (iz36) B0 14663 . . . . o) B A4 B A
Recognition of eqity-settled NEREEUNED

share based payments (note 37) B AR (M) - - - 8761 - - - - - 8761 - 8761

At 31 December 2015 RIF-RET2A=T-B 2089195 1,087,267 13,805 46903 6,620 14,836 197 156998 (2451918 925,692 62153 987,845
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PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016

==

E-F-AF A= —ALFE

—=

2016 2015
—E-REF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHAT
(Restated)
=)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES ReEES
(Loss) profit before taxation BRETISHIRT (B1E) &
— Continuing operations — BELEER (634,119) (154,367)
.....—.Discontinued operation T EAILEERS 77,862 ... (4,278)
(556,257) (158,645)
Adjustments for: P
Finance costs R E KA 52,509 67,197
Amortisation of other Hib A & E 2 #iH
intangible assets 53,368 83,613
Fair value gain on AR ERI 2 TET A S
the Derivative Component N ERE
of Convertible Note | - (64,125)
Equity-settled share-based LA EW AN T 2AX
payment expenses 2,215 8,761
Depreciation of property, Y BERSEIITE
plant and equipment 12,520 12,092
Net loss on disposal of HEME - HE RE&E
property, plant and equipment R ETE 65 794
Loss arising from change in N AN
shareholding in an associate IR B E A~ 2 BB 97 —
Impairment loss of exploration R R aHE B E 2R EEE
and evaluation assets 175 383
Impairment loss of trade and B 5 RHEMERIE L
other receivables B EE 10,893 7,346
Reversal of impairment loss of B RBGRIE
trade receivables REEE (6,057) (10,462)
Impairment loss of finance R EME R BGRIB OREFE
lease receivables - 8,637
Impairment loss of goodwill ER BB 183,404 -
Impairment loss of other HivmEEE 2 REEE
intangible assets 220,793 60,680
Impairment loss of available- A ERE 2 REEE
for-sale investment 7,011 —
Exchange loss (gain), net P 5 E1E (e ) F58 9,890 (2,193)
Bank interest income RITHIBHA (654) (648)
Government grants DU AL (5,720) (12,062)
Loss on deregistration i EB AR 2 EE
of a subsidiary 4,718 —
Gain on disposal of HENB AR Z kS

subsidiaries

(80,228)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FH&xT FHEIT
(Restated)
(#EE7)
Loss on uncertainty in respect FHARKEFPSOIIENIE
of collectability of amounts U [B115 51 /)T e E 1 B 18
due from customers of
contract works 13,771 14,025
Reversal of loss on BRARWREFPAHITERBEREIFR
uncertainty in respect of R TREE 518 2 B (O
collectability of amounts
due from customers
of contract works (16,479) —
Write-off of other H & EME
intangible assets 4,880 -
Write-back of trade and B 5N EMER B 2 L
other payables (4,166) (2,628)
Write-off of trade and B 5 S H M FEYGRIE 2 i 5H
other receivables 6,555 —
Allowance for inventories FERE 365 —
Write-off of inventories FERME - 634
Write-off of property, YIE - BB KRR iE 2 i
plant and equipment 15,989 -
.....Share of result of associates AEBERRRE . (1618 ... (2,4795).
Operating cash flows before LEERFEFI RERENE
movements in working capital (71,961) 10,924
Decrease in inventories FERD 3,688 935
Increase in amounts due from JEI R P& £ T2 5B N
customers of contract works (15,004) (22,776)
Increase in trade and other B 5 K H A FE Y GRIEIE AN
receivables (43,951) (18,005)
Decrease in finance BB T & R UGRIE R >
lease receivables - 3,838
Increase in amounts due to N R PE I IZFIEE M
customers of contract works 6,840 5,738
Increase (decrease) in trade B 5 R E M ER FRIEE I Ok )
endoterpayables T 69320  (23745)
Cash used in operations LEHH RS (51,068) (43,091)
Interest paid on borrowings BEZENFE (1,939) (5,827)
Interest received 2 U B 654 648
Income taxes paid BT ETIS (2,036) (9,488)

NET CASH USED IN
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RESEE g A
B & FEE (54,389) (57,758)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mEREREBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—E-RE —T-hF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt FET FAT
(Restated)
(FgE5)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BEEH
Payments to acquire other BEAMEBREE 2K
intangible assets (24,946) (68,496)
Payments to acquire property, BEWHE - BE MBI
plant and equipment (8,800) (16,638)
Capital injection in associates REENEEE (5,360) 1,518)
Purchase of available-for-sale BEAHEERE
investment (3,506) (8,356)
Placement of pledged B EARITIFR
bank deposits (197) (122,678)
Payments to acquire exploration BB B)iE MFHEEEZ 3K
and evaluation assets (175) (383)
Proceeds from disposal of HEME - WERBEF
property, plant and equipment FRIE 963 245
Net cash inflow on disposal HEMB AR
of subsidiaries ZIRERANFEE 39 7,301 —
Withdrawal of pledged RIE ERIRITIER
bank deposits 122,678 3,341
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) RETHMEE (A BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES 87,958 (214,483)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
mERERBR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #HZ_—F— A NF+_-H=1—HIFF

2016 2015
—RE —ET—AHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Lz FEx FAET
(Restated)
(Je&E7))
FINANCING ACTIVITIES mEES
New borrowings raised HEE W 31,364 169,569
Advance from associates B A R B RIE 18,657 21,200
Government grants received BT R RS 15,134 4,208
Proceeds from issuance of BRI ERITIRG 2
shares through placing FriSskI8 36(d) - 313,500
Proceeds from issuance BRI TP BTG,
of shares through exercise Z Fr8 508
of share options 36(a) - 57,543
Repayment to non-controlling REE I GIES Ve
shareholders - (286)
Acquisition of the additional I — M B R A
interest of a subsidiary < REHMERS 47 - (609)
Share issue expenses f& BRI 36(d) - (5,723)
Repayment of borrowings R (144.217) . (176,792)
NET CASH (USED IN) FROM MEEE T (BA)ELE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES = . ZEEFE o (19082 382,610
NET (DECREASE) RERASEEY
INCREASE IN CASH OR 2 ) #EhnF5R
ANDCASHEQUIALENTS " Ay 110369
CASH AND CASH FHzHEE
EQUIVALENTS AT THE RESEEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 213,141 103,539
Effect of foreign exchange ERFE s &
A CANgeS ©066) (767).
CASH AND CASH FRZEE
EQUIVALENTS AT THE FEESEEY
END OF THE YEAR,
represented by bank BIRTTHEHBEIRS

balances and cash 158,582 213,141
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mE M BRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Peace Map Holding Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 25 May 2004 as an
exempted company with limited liability and its shares are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company are disclosed in the “Corporate Information”
section to the annual report.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) are principally engaged in the geographic
information business in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”) including aerial photography and remote sensing
image data collection (the “data collection”, formerly
known as “data collection and processing”), provision
of geospatial data processing services, softwares and
solutions (the “business application and services”) and
development and sales of high-end surveying and mapping
equipment (the “development and sales of equipment”).
During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group was
also engaged in mining and exploration of mineral resources
in Mongolia (the “mining and exploration business”) which
was discontinued in current year upon the completion of the
disposal of Fast Billion Investments Limited (“Fast Billion”),
which together with its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Fast Billion Group”), on 20 September 2016 (the
“Disposal’). Details are set out in note 11.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollar (“HKS$”), which is also the functional
currency of the Company. Other than those subsidiaries
established in the PRC and Mongolia whose functional
currency is Renminbi (‘RMB”) and Mongolian Tugrik (“MNT”)
respectively, the functional currency of the Company and
other subsidiaries is HK$.

—REHR

ATNEERERAR(RAF D H—KR
—ETNFRAA_+HBERASESEMK
M ZEHRBRAR  HRONEBBER
ZBRAR ([BRAH ) ERET - XA
BRI E AR Ko = B B AR
[RRIER] —EPIREE -

ARalREMBAG(5HE [ RER]) EE
EHREARLME([HFE])HEHEEE
X% BEMAPRERTEEBEER(#
BER| fiIEAHBEWMERE]) -
RETEEMESENRERS - R4 &R
ARR((BBEEAERK ) HEAZEREE
iRl E((REMRESEE) - 52
—T-RF+-_A=Zt+—HLEE K&
ETERHREEERNMREHE (&
BREBEEK] - AEER_ZFT—X<FN
A =+ H 7= 5K & Fast Billion Investments
Limited ([ Fast Billion |) 3 R E [ B 7 (4%
7 [Fast Billion 5@ |) 19518 ([ HESBE])

& WAFEARRILEEZER - FBEEN
PiEE11 o

REMBmERUNBT(BT])INE BT
MABRRRININGEEHE o BRRPE MR EE
AL ZENBARMREEBE D RIBAR
BETAR® D EXEEERER ([BREHE
BER]) I ARE REALHE QR
BEEBRET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised HKFRSs, which include HKFRSs, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS(s)”), amendments
and interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”).

Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual improvements to
HKFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of Acceptable
and HKAS 38 Methods of Depreciation
and Amortisation

Amendments to HKAS 16 Agriculture: Bearer Plants
and HKAS 41

Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate
Financial Statements
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28  the Consolidation Exception

Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of
interests in Joint Operations

The application of the above new and revised HKFRSs in
the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and positions for the current year
and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

ERAMIREBIERBMBR
HEA(TEEMBREER D

RAFE - AEBECDERA TIREE ST
N ((BEREMAE ) RGO LEE
ARV BREER(ETREEEBVBR
HER - FEGHEA((FBEEA)) -
BRI RBH) -

BEWHRELER  FEWHHREER

ZAERTAR —T—F=E
—ET-FBH
YR B
o REE
AL ACCHEN)
BB et R AERZITE
E165% % N BSHT A 2 B8

BB EER
385 (BRI A)

BB G LER B¥  £EMEYD
F1658 K

EA LR
F 4158 (BETK)

BEA SR B ISIRE
27 5% (BRI AN) ZRERE

BEAMBHREER REEER:
E105% - B fERiRE AR
MG %R k71PN
F12RRBALE
ZERI| 55 28 5%
BRI AR

BAVBHREEN WERFRLEER
115 (BRI A) I RE

RAFEE - R Eatsra] RS ERT BT

BEENHAKERAFEBEFENY
BERBREMR K, RZEGE M BRRAE
BRELEEATE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F—NF+_-H=1—HIFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet

effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet

effective:

HKFRS 9 (2014)

HKFRS 15
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 7

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKFRS 4

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to HKFRS 2

Financial Instruments?

Revenue from Contracts with
Customers?
Leases?®

Disclosure Initiative’

Recognition of Deferred Tax
Assets for Unrealised
Losses!

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture*

Classification and
Measurement of
Share-based Payment
Transactions?

L Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2017.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018.

8 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2019.

& Effective date not yet been determined.

ERHFITIREEITEBHK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

The directors of the Company anticipate that, except as
described below, the application of other new and revised
HKFRSs will have no material impact on the results and the
financial position of the Group.

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements
for the classification and measurement of financial
assets. HKFRS 9 was amended in 2010 and includes the
requirements for the classification and measurement of
financial liabilities and for derecognition. In 2013, HKFRS
9 was further amended to bring into effect a substantial
overhaul of hedge accounting that will allow entities to
better reflect their risk management activities in the financial
statements. A finalised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in
2014 to incorporate all the requirements of HKFRS 9 that
were issued in previous years with limited amendments
to the classification and measurement by introducing a
“fair value through other comprehensive income” (FVTOCI)
measurement category for certain financial assets. The
finalised version of HKFRS 9 also introduces an “expected
credit loss” model for impairment assessments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F—NF+_-H=1—HIFF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 (2014) are described as
follows:

o All recognised financial assets that are within the
scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement to be subsequently measured
at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt
investments that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash
flows, and that have contractual cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at
amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
periods. Debt instruments that are held within a
business model whose objective is achieved both
by collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets, and that have contractual terms of
the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured
at FVTOCI. All other debt investments and equity
investments are measured at their fair value at the end
of subsequent reporting periods. In addition, under
HKFRS 9 (2014), entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair
value of an equity investment (that is not held for
trading) in other comprehensive income, with only
dividend income generally recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

° With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities
designed as at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL"), HKFRS 9 (2014) requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that
is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that
liability is presented in other comprehensive income,
unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the
liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income
would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in
profit or loss. Changes in fair value of financial liabilities
attributable to changes in the financial liabilities’ credit
risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in
the fair value of the financial liability designated as
FVTPL was presented in profit or loss.

° In the aspect of impairment assessments, the
impairment requirements relating to the accounting
for an entity’s expected credit losses on its financial
assets and commitments to extend credit were
added. Those requirements eliminate the threshold
that was in HKAS 39 for the recognition of credit
losses. Under the impairment approach in HKFRS 9
(2014), it is no longer necessary for a credit event to
have occurred before credit losses are recognised.
Instead, expected credit losses and changes in those
expected credit losses should always be accounted
for. The amount of expected credit losses is updated
at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk
since initial recognition and, consequently, more timely
information is provided about expected credit losses.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments (Continued)

o HKFRS 9 (2014) introduces a new model which
is more closely aligns hedge accounting with risk
management activities undertaken by companies
when hedging their financial and non-financial risk
exposures. As a principle-based approach, HKFRS
9 (2014) looks at whether a risk component can be
identified and measured and does not distinguish
between financial items and non-financial items. The
new model also enables an entity to use information
produced internally for risk management purposes
as a basis for hedge accounting. Under HKAS 39, it
is necessary to exhibit eligibility and compliance with
the requirements in HKAS 39 using metrics that are
designed solely for accounting purposes. The new
model also includes eligibility criteria but these are
based on an economic assessment of the strength
of the hedging relationship. This can be determined
using risk management data. This should reduce the
costs of implementation compared with those for
HKAS 39 hedge accounting because it reduces the
amount of analysis that is required to be undertaken
only for accounting purposes.

HKFRS 9 (2014) will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted.

The directors of the Company are in the process of
assessing their impact on the consolidated financial
statements of these requirements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of that effect
until a detailed review has been completed.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRS(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should
recognise revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services. Thus, HKFRS
15 introduces a model that applies to contracts with
customers, featuring a contract-based five-step analysis of
transactions to determine whether, how much and when
revenue is recognised. The five steps are as follows:

i) Identify the contract with a customer;
ii) Identify the performance obligations in the contract;
i) Determine the transaction price;

iv)  Allocate the transaction price to the performance
obligations; and

v)  Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a
performance obligation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 also introduces extensive qualitative and
quantitative disclosure requirements which aim to enable
users of the financial statements to understand the nature,
amount, timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows
arising from contracts with customers.

HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and the related interpretations when
it becomes effective.

HKFRS 15 will become effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 with early application
permitted. The directors of the Company are in the process
of assessing their impact on the consolidated financial
statements of these requirements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of
HKFRS 15 until the Group performs a detailed review.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 provides a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and their treatment in
the financial statements of both lessors and lessees.

In respect of the lessee accounting, the standard introduces
a single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees to
recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with the lease
term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset
has a low value.

At the commencement date of the lease, the lessee is
required to recognise a right-of-use asset at cost, which
consists of the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability, plus any lease payments made to the lessor
at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received, the initial estimate of restoration costs
and any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee. A lease
liability is initially recognised at the present value of the lease
payments that are not paid at that date.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Subsequently, the right-of-use asset is measured at cost
less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
the lease liability. Lease liability is subsequently measured
by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on
the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payment made, and remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease modifications
or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments.
Depreciation and impairment expenses, if any, on the right-
of-use asset will be charged to profit or loss following the
requirements of HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment,
while interest accrual on lease liability will be charged to
profit or loss.

In respect of the lessor accounting, HKFRS 16 substantially
carries forward the lessor accounting requirements in HKAS
17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those
two types of leases differently.

HKFRS 16 will supersede the current lease standards
including HKAS 17 Leases and the related Interpretations
when it becomes effective.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSI(s)”) (continued)

New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 will be effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019 with early application permitted
provided that the entity has applied HKFRS 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers at or before the date
of initial application of HKFRS 16. The directors of the
Company are in the process of assessing their impact on
the consolidated financial statements of these requirements.
However, it is not practicable to provide a reasonable
estimate of the effect until the Group performs a detailed
review.

Amendment to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative

The amendments require entities to provide disclosures that
enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes
in liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash
changes. The amendments do not prescribe a specific
method to fulfil the new disclosure requirements. However,
the amendments indicate that one way is to provide a
reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
for liabilities arising from financing activities. Amendments to
HKAS 7 will become effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2017 with early application permitted.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of Amendments to HKAS 7 will result in additional
disclosures on the Group’s financing activities, especially
reconciliation between opening and closing balances
in the consolidated statement of financial position for
liabilities arising from financing activities will be provided on
application.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions (i.e. exit price), regardless of
whether that price is directly observable or estimated
using another valuation technique. Details of fair value
measurement are explained in the accounting policies set
out below.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Control is achieved when the Group (i) has power over the
investee; (i) exposed, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and (i) the ability to use its
power over the investee to affect the amount of the Group’s
returns. When the Group has less than a majority of the
voting rights of an investee, power over the investee may
be obtained through: (i) a contractual arrangement with
other vote holders; (i) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; (iii) the Group’s voting rights and potential
voting rights; or (iv) a combination of the above, based on
all relevant facts and circumstances.

The Company reassesses whether it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of these elements of control stated above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary.

Income and expenses of subsidiaries are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss from the date the
Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases
to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income of subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of
the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the
owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests
even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in
existing subsidiary

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it (i)
derecognises the assets (including any goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary at their carrying amounts at the
date when control is lost, (i) derecognises the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interests in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost (including any
components of other comprehensive income attributable to
them), and (jii) recognises the aggregate of the fair value of
the consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest, with any resulting difference being recognised as a
gain or loss in profit or loss attributable to the Group.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from a business combination is carried at
cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units
(“CGUSs”) (or groups of CGUSs) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Goodwill (Continued)

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested
for impairment annually or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. For goodwill arising
on an acquisition in a reporting period, the CGU to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount
of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill
is recognised directly in profit or loss. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent
periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the amount of
profit or loss on disposal.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over those
policies.

BEASHHE#)

[k A€

ErkmEnReELBNeSFERER
A WRBBRBERA BEAL A ERERE
TTESRERH - IRE —REHAMET 2
BRELCRHENS  BORRECHSE
HEBMRZRE AR ZBERER © f#HR
SEABMNAWEIFEENEEREE - R
BEDERERBBRIVRD DR TR EMHE
AEHENREE - ARRLOIRBEEREL
NEEENRAENEEBUNEMEE -
BENTMREBERERNBETHER - &
B2 DHERREBE NN EREEREE -

REERBRESELEBUR BB CEES
BEREEHE 2 BRRRBHER -

m
BERRREAREHEEEAYENCE
B BEAPENRE2RFIRE TN BM
RRERERES - TN REERI SRR H]E L
BUREVBIE



122

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

The Group’s interests in associates are accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements using the equity
method. Under the equity method, interests in associates
are initially recognised at cost. The Group’s share of the
profit or loss and changes in the other comprehensive
income of the associates are recognised in profit or loss
and other comprehensive income respectively after the date
of acquisition. If the Group’s share of losses of an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, which
determined using the equity method together with any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate, the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
provided for, and a liability is recognised, only to the extent
that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

An interest in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an
associate.

After application of the equity method, including recognising
the associate’s losses (if any), the Group determines
whether it is necessary to recognise any additional
impairment loss with respect to the its interest in an
associate. The entire carrying amount of the interest is
tested for impairment as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying
amount of the interests in the associates. Any reversal
of that impairment loss is recognised to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Interests in associates (Continued)

Gains and losses resulting from transactions between the
Group and its associate are recognised in consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in the associate. The Group’s share
in the associate’s gains or losses resulting from these
transactions is eliminated.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for goods sold and services rendered
in the normal course of business, net of sales related taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
goods are delivered and titles have passed, at which time
all the following conditions are satisfied:

— the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

— the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

— the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

— it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the transaction will flow to the Group; and

— the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

The Group’s policy for the recognition of revenue from
construction services is described in the accounting policy
in respect of construction contracts below.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

The Group’s policy for recognition of rental income is
described in the accounting policy in respect of leasing
below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts

Where the outcome of a business application and services
and data collection contract can be estimated reliably,
revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of
the reporting period, measured based on the percentage
of certified work performed to date to the estimated total
sum of the relevant contracts. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent
that the amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is
considered probable.

Where the outcome of a business application and services
and data collection contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract revenue is recognised to the extent of contract
costs incurred that it is probable will be recoverable.
Contract costs are recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed
total contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses exceed progress billings,
the surplus is shown as amounts due from customers
of contract works. For contracts where progress billings
exceed contract costs incurred to date plus recognised
profits less recognised losses, the surplus is shown as
amounts due to customers of contract works. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included
in the consolidated statement of financial position, as a
liability, as advances received. Amounts billed for work
performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in
the consolidated statement of financial position under trade
and other receivables.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding in
respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Leasing (Continued)
The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leasehold land and building

When a lease includes both land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element as
a finance or an operating lease separately based on the
assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of each element have
been transferred to the Group, unless it is clear that both
elements are operating leases in which case the entire lease
is classified as an operating lease. Specifically, the minimum
lease payments (including any lump-sum upfront payments)
are allocated between the land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element of the
lease at the inception of the lease.

To the extent the allocation of the lease payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as prepaid lease
payments in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, the entire lease is
generally classified as a finance lease and accounted for as
property, plant and equipment.

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies
are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group using exchange rates prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the year.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).
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REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of
the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments to identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed through acquisition of a
foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including leasehold land
and buildings (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to allocate the cost of
items of property, plant and equipment less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets

Exploration and evaluation assets include costs of obtaining
and maintaining exploration and mining rights, as well as
expenditures such as exploratory drilling, geological studies
and sampling in relation to evaluating technical feasibility
and commercial viability of extracting mineral resources.

Exploration and evaluation assets are recognised at cost
on initial recognition. Subsequent to initial recognition, they
are stated at cost less any accumulated impairment and no
amortisation charge is recognised. Cost expensed during
the exploration and evaluation phase including expenditure
incurred before obtaining the legal rights to explore specific
area are included in exploration and evaluation expenditure
in profit or loss.

Exploration and evaluation assets acquired in a business
combination are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at cost less accumulated
impairment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation

assets is reviewed annually and adjusted for impairment in
accordance with HKFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation
of Mineral Resources and HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets

whenever one of the following events or changes in facts
and circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may

not be recoverable (the list is not exhaustive):

U)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

the period for which the Group has the right to explore
in the specific area has expired during the period or
will expire in the near future, and is not expected to be
renewed;

substantive expenditure on further exploration for and
evaluation of mineral resources in the specific area is
neither budgeted nor planned;

exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources
in the specific area have not led to the discovery of
commercially viable quantities of mineral resources
and the Group has decided to discontinue such
activities in the specific area; and

sufficient data exist to indicate that, although a
development in the specific area is likely to proceed,
the carrying amount of the exploration and evaluation
asset is unlikely to be recovered in full from successful
development or by sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Exploration and evaluation assets (Continued)

The recoverable amount is the higher of the exploration and
evaluation asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and their
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
the exploration and evaluation assets subject to testing are
grouped into each area of interest for which exploration
activities are undertaken.

When the technical feasibility and commercial viability
of extracting mineral resources become demonstrable,
previously recognised exploration and evaluation assets are
transferred to “Property, plant and equipment” and “Mining
licences”. These assets are tested for impairment before
their reclassification.

Mining licences

Upon the transfer from “exploration and evaluation
assets”, mining licences are carried at cost and are subject
to amortisation upon commissioning of the mine for
production. Mining licences and concessions are depleted
on the unit-of-production basis over the total proven and
probable reserves of the mine concerned. Mining licences
are subject for impairment testing whenever there are
indications that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure

An internally-generated intangible asset arising from
development activities (or from the development phase of
an internal project) is recognised if, and only if, all of the
following have been demonstrated:

— the technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

— the intention to complete the intangible asset and use
or sell it;

— the ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

— how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits;

— the availability of adequate technical, financial and
other resources to complete the development and to
use or sell the intangible asset; and

— the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
attributable to the intangible asset during its
development.

The amount initially recognised for internally-generated
intangible asset is the sum of the expenditure incurred
from the date when the intangible asset first meets the
recognition criteria listed above. Where no internally-
generated intangible asset can be recognised, development
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Intangible asset (Continued)

Internally-generated intangible assets — research and
development expenditure (Continued)

Subsequent to initial recognition, internally-generated
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses (if any)
(see the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets below). Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
are recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which
is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are
carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses (if any). Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Alternatively, intangible assets acquired in a business
combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost
less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment losses on
tangible and intangible assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with
finite useful lives to determine whether there is any indication
that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual CGU, or otherwise they are allocated
to the smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and
consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible
assets not yet available for use are tested for impairment at
least annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset for which the estimates of future
cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible
assets other than goodwill (see the accounting
policy in respect of goodwill above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is reduced to
its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or the CGU) is increased
to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or the CGU)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are determined on a first-in, first-
out method. Net realisable value represents the estimated
selling price for inventories less all estimated costs of
completion and costs necessary to make the sale.
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REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include bank balances and cash
with a maturity of three months or less.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of bank balances
and cash as defined above.

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘loss before taxation’
as reported in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
an associate, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences associated with such investments
and interests are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against
which to utilise the benefits of the temporary differences
and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits

Defined contribution plan

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in the PRC are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal governments.
These subsidiaries are required to contribute certain
percentage of its payroll costs to the central pension
scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mongolia are required to participate in the social insurance
scheme operated by the local government. According to the
“Social Insurance Law of Mongolia”, these subsidiaries have
a duty to withhold 10% from employees’ salary or similar
income and 13% as employers’ contribution. Employers’
contributions are charged to profit or loss as they become
payable in accordance with the social insurance scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Retirement benefit costs and termination
benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution plan (Continued)

Payments to the MPF Scheme, central pension schemes
and the social insurance scheme are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service entitling
them to the contributions.

Short-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
in respect of wages and salaries, in the period of the related
service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee
benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the
benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related
service.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition.

Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets are classified into loans
and receivables and available-for-sale investment. The
classification depends on the nature and purpose of the
financial assets and is determined at the time of initial
recognition. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating
interest income over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.
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REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans
and receivables (including trade and other receivables,
finance lease receivables, pledged bank deposits and bank
balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment losses
(see accounting policy on impairment of financial assets
below).

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
effect of discounting is immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial asset

Available-for-sale financial asset is non-derivative that is
either designated as available-for-sale or is not classified as
financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-
maturity investments.

Available-for-sale equity investment that does not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured and derivatives that are
linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified
impairment losses at the end of each reporting period (see
the accounting policy in respect of impairment of financial
assets below).

Dividend on available-for-sale equity instrument is
recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right to receive
the dividend is established.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired when there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after
the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated
future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment
could include:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

— breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments; or

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade
and other receivables that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on
a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for
a portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the
number of delayed payments in the portfolio past the credit
period, observable changes in national or local economic
conditions that correlate with default on receivables.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount
of the impairment loss recognised is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial
asset's original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current
market rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such
impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables, where the carrying amount is reduced through
the use of an allowance account. Changes in the carrying
amount of the allowance account are recognised in profit or
loss. When trade and other receivables and finance lease
receivables are considered uncollectible, they are written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in
a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying
amount of the asset at the date the impairment is reversed
does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been
had the impairment not been recognised.

Impairment loss on available-for-sale equity investment will
not be reversed through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

The Group’s financial liabilities are classified into other
financial liabilities.

BEASHEHE#)

SRIA#E)

PBEE (&)

MBEENE (&)
SAABER A E M BEEMS @ WEE
BRSBNEREERL - MARRR L mBE
RREBREEEZFHEATHRE BB
EERREBERGE BT - EEE
RRERDE B 2 BRE(E NS L I SR
BB PTIEA < BEIHAAN o

A ERARE OREBRK 25 BE
=D -
BBREABENREATA

SEERRTCERMEATATRESH
AR ERMBREMIATAEZEED
BRYH A AR -

AEEzFBREDDBEREMTFARE -



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R

147

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)
Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities including borrowings, trade
and other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates and convertible notes are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where
appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on
initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company
are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities of the Group are offset and
the net amount presented in the consolidated statement
of financial position when, and only when, there is a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Convertible notes

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both
the liability component and conversion option components
are classified separately into respective item on initial
recognition in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument. Conversion option that
will be settled by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or
another financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s
own equity instruments is classified as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
values assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the convertible
notes into equity, is included in equity (convertible note
equity reserve).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Convertible notes (Continued)

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using effective
interest method. The equity component, representing
the option to convert the liability component into ordinary
shares of the Company, will remain in the convertible note
equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised (in
which case the balance stated in the convertible note equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible note equity reserve will be released to
accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

When the convertible note is converted, the carrying
amount of the liability component at the time of conversion
is transferred to share capital and share premium as
consideration for the shares issued. When the convertible
note is redeemed, the difference between the redemption
amount and the carrying amounts of both components is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability, equity component
and extension option components in proportion to the
allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction costs relating
to the equity component are charged directly to equity.
Transaction costs relating to the liability component are
included in the carrying amount of the liability portion and
amortised over the period of the convertible notes using the
effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HILFZE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition

A financial asset is derecognised only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it
transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and
the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is
recognised in profit or loss.

A financial liability is derecognised when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates share option schemes for the purpose
of recognising and acknowledging the contributions that
the eligible participants have made to the Group. Eligible
participants including employees (including directors),
customers, suppliers, agents, partners, consultants,
advisers or shareholders of or contractors to the Group
or any affiliate, receive remuneration in the form of share-
based compensation, whereby eligible participants render
services as consideration for equity instrument (i.e. equity-
settled transactions).
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
is measured by reference to the fair value at the date the
options are granted excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions. The cost of equity-settled transactions
with parties other than employees is measured by reference
to the fair value of the goods or services provided, unless
that fair value cannot be reliably measured, in which case
the goods or services received are measured by reference
to the fair value of the share options granted.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised as
an expense in profit or loss with a corresponding increase
in share option reserve within equity. If vesting periods or
other vesting conditions apply, the expense is allocated
using straight-line basis over the vesting period, based
on the best available estimate of the number of share
options expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of options
that are expected to become exercisable. Estimates are
subsequently revised if there is indication that the number
of share options expected to vest differs from previous
estimates. Any adjustment to the fair value recognised in
prior years is charged/credited to profit or loss in the year
of the review with a corresponding adjustment to the share
option reserve.

On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense
is adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that
vest (with a corresponding adjustment to the share option
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting that relate to market condition (which is treated as
vesting irrespective of whether or not the market condition
is satisfied).

3.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(Continued)

For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share options reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions attaching to them and that the grants will be
received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose
of giving immediate financial support to the Group with no
future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they become receivable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to
the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Fair value measurement

When measuring fair value except for the Group’s share-
based payment transactions, leasing transactions, net
realisable value of inventories and value in use of mining
licences and other intangible assets for the purpose of
impairment assessment, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing
the asset or liability at the measurement date.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. Specifically, the Group categorised
the fair value measurements into three levels, based on the
characteristics of inputs, as follow:

Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level2 —  Valuation techniques for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly
observable.

Level 3 —  Valuation technigues for which the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Control over a subsidiary

Notwithstanding the lack of equity ownership in 1t =X T &l
HIE R A PR 2 &) (Peace Map Co., Ltd*) (“‘Beijing Peace
Map”), the Group is able to exercise control over Beijing
Peace Map and its subsidiaries (“Peace Map Group”)
through a series of agreements with the majority of its
ultimate shareholders (the “Structural Agreements”).

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not
the Group has control over Beijing Peace Map based
on whether the Group has the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of Beijing Peace Map unilaterally. In
making their judgement, the directors of the Company
considered the Group’s rights through the Structural
Agreements, and concluded that the Group has sufficiently
dominant voting interest to direct the relevant activities of
Beijing Peace Map and therefore the Group has control
over Beijing Peace Map. Further details are set out in note
45()).

* For identification purpose only
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Renewal of licences in respect of geographic information
business

The normal operation of geographic information business
is subjected to successful renewal for the licences with
legal life of 2 to 3 years and renewable every 2 to 3 years
at minimal cost. In the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the Group did not expect to have any major
obstacles in the renewal of the licences. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of licences is approximately
HK$90,122,000, net of accumulated impairment loss of
approximately HK$78,621,000 (2015: carrying amount
of approximately HK$162,904,000, net of accumulated
impairment loss of approximately HK$12,636,000).

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various jurisdictions.
Significant judgement is required in determining the amount
of the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. Where the final tax outcome is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
periods in which such determination are made. The realisability
of the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be available
in future. In cases where the actual future profits generated are
less than expected, a material reversal of deferred tax assets
may arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal takes place. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying value of the deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities is approximately HK$48,000 (2015: HK$137,000)
and HK$19,497,000 (2015: HK$60,212,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (Continued)

Legal title of land and buildings

Despite the Group had paid the full purchase consideration
for the land and buildings, formal title of one of the Group’s
rights to the use of a land and building was not yet granted
from the relevant government authorities as stated in note
17. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the
absence of formal title to this building does not jeopardise
the value of the relevant property to the Group.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.

Significant influence over an associate

As set out in note 19, the directors of the Company
considered 1t =X T [ 2= 15 B & i1 B BR 2 &) (Beijing
Peace Power Company Limited*) (“Beijing Peace Power”)
in which the Group has 14.75% equity interest, is an
associate of the Group. The Group has significant influence
over Beijing Peace Power by virtue of its contractual right
to appoint one out of the five directors of the associate and
one-fifth voting right of the board of directors under the
provisions stated in the memorandum of association of the
associate.

* For identification purpose only
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Impairment assessment on goodwill attributable to
geographic information business

For the impairment assessment on goodwill, the
management of the Group has taken steps in accordance
with HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”, by considering
whether the carrying amount of CGUs exceed the
recoverable amount of respective CGUs. The recoverable
amount of the CGUs which goodwill attributable to is
determined based on fair value less cost of disposal.
Further details, including the key assumptions used, are
given in note 20. As at 31 December 2016, the carrying
value of the goodwill is approximately HK$404,076,000
(2015: HK$635,634,000).

Revenue recognition

The Group recognised project revenue and profit of a
business application and services and data collection
contract by reference to the stage of completion of
the contract activity at the end of the reporting period,
measured based on the percentage of certified work
performed to date to the estimated total sum of the relevant
contracts. Notwithstanding that the management reviews
and revises the estimates of both contract revenue and
costs for the contract as the contract progresses, the actual
outcome of the contract in terms of its total revenue and
costs may be higher or lower than the estimates and this
will affect the revenue and profit recognised.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Uncertainty in respect of collectability of amounts due
from customers of contract works

The Group recognised loss on uncertainty in respect of
collectability of amounts due from customers of contract
works based on the assessment of the directors of the
Company that certain contract works have been suspended
or have not yet been compromised with the customers
on the amount of final billing, as such the related carrying
amounts of contract works are not probable to recover. If
the final billing is not agreed by the customers, actual loss
would be higher than estimated. As at 31 December 2016,
the carrying amount of amounts due from customers of
contract works is approximately HK$221,097,000 (2015:
HK$218,312,000).

Impairment loss of trade and other receivables

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e.
the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Where the actual future cash flows are less than expected,
a material impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is
approximately HK$179,336,000 (2015: HK$175,169,000),
net of accumulated impairment losses of approximately
HK$17,152,000 (2015: HK$13,410,000).
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

The Group performs assessments on whether items of
property, plant and equipment have suffered any impairment
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicated that
the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable,
in accordance with the stated accounting policy. Where
there is an indicator of impairment, an estimation of the
recoverable amount is required. Such estimation is based
on certain assumptions which are subject to uncertainty
and might differ from the actual result. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying value of property, plant and equipment
is approximately HK$42,553,000 (2015: HK$58,576,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$16,759,000 (2015: HK$16,759,000).

Impairment of other intangible assets

The Group performs assessments on whether there is
impairment of other intangible assets whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of other intangible assets are determined based on value-
in-use calculations. These calculations require the use of
estimates and assumptions made by management on
the future operation of the businesses, pre-tax discount
rates and other assumptions underlying the value-in-
use calculations. For any instance where this evaluation
process indicates impairment, the relevant intangible asset’s
carrying amount is written down to the recoverable amount
and the amount of the write-down is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. As at 31 December
2016, the carrying value of other intangible assets is
approximately HK$230,466,000 (2015: HK$505,939,000),
net of accumulated impairment loss of approximately
HK$302,725,000 (2015: HK$81,932,000).

EESTHE R AT TEEMN
FERIR &)

fhEt FREEMNEEZRIR (&)
M - BERRERE

$El//\$E<TFiL STECRAHME R B A EMA
EMSBERBICBATAEBNDE  BE
REHEEBEENEREE LM ERZE
BEELTRE - MEBRERE - RIZELH
ek %ﬁuﬂém ;z:imsmgm SR
% ARETHTEZROTE - nJeEER
i%TH"EA */\55'5“1' ﬂ_‘f’*a ’
M - BE &R BREEL 542,553, ooo
BIL(ZFE—HRF : 58,576,000/ T ) -

Br 2E R EEE ,%@16,759,000;‘%7_5(:2
—F4F : 16,759,000 7T) °

Hth B EE 2 RE

WA EHHERE BT IREE ] g A
= ZKEI%E{M&%RQE‘E EHEHERE
TR - EthEEEENAIKESE TR
BEREBENEZETEE - %S HEE
KEREREBHER 2 RRLEE - AR
RERFEAEBEFEBB 2 EMRBEL
ZIEF R - W AR RERREER
B HEASEFEE REESEBRE]
WElSEE  BMRSERGEEBRRTHE
R-MR-B—RNE+-A=1+—8 HivE:E
& ERERT A% 230,466,000 T (= Z
— A4 : 505,939,000/ 7T) © MK E R
BB 18 49302,725,000/8 T ( — B —H 4 :
81,932,000 7T) °
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Estimation of useful lives of other intangible assets

Determining whether licences of other intangible assets
is indefinite requires an estimation of ability to renew the
licences, cost of renewal in the future and the expected
life of the licences to generate net cash flows for the
Group. Any changes in these assumptions can significantly
affect the useful life of the licences. For other intangible
assets except for licences, the management of the Group
determines the estimated useful lives and consequently the
related amortisation charges for its other intangible assets.
These estimates are based on the historical experience of
the actual useful lives of intangible assets. Management
will increase the amortisation charges when useful lives are
less than previously estimated useful lives, it will write off
or write down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could
result in a change in amortisable useful lives and therefore
amortisation expenses in future years.

EEGSTHERMATTTEEMN
FERIR &)

At T REMNEZRRIF (&)
Hib B EEN LT A EAFH

ERMELEENERES SERPFR
AR ARKRBEERRAEE ]  BEEXNER
BRAREEELAR S REFRENRHNE
Hi o ZE RN TR ENG AT AIRR E R R
EVR] fE R - B IRIASMY B B B
mE  ARBEEERAREMELEERE
TR ERFH A EENRREHEE
A o ZF AT DERELEEBRAIEAF
HIM @SR - BRI ERFRAINEAER
MR ERFRE - BIEERE N HEE AN
2 2 M gk h SR LB R B IFBS 1E
B & EE M S URL » ERR B F R A BN
EETAMEAFY - MRS @EERRHF
RIEHERF R EHE MR LR -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 5, @I A
(a) Categories of financial instruments (a) €RTAEH
2016 2015
—E—AE —ZE—HRF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHAT
Financial assets BB EE
Loan and receivables Bk EWEIE
(including bank balances ~ (BIEIRTTASR K
and cash and pledged e B ERRT
bank deposits) T30 303,118 476,470
Available-for-sale investment ] it i &% & 4,465 8,356
307,583 484,826
Financial liabilities MBaE
Financial liabilities at RESH AT BR 2

amortised cost ek 841,036 852,671
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Financial risk management objectives and
policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
available-for-sale investment, trade and other
receivables, finance lease receivables, pledged
bank deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and
other payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates, borrowings and convertible
notes. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages
and monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

Financial risk management
Currency risk

The companies of the Group mainly operated in
their local jurisdiction with most of the transactions
settled in their functional currencies of the operations.
However, at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
majority of bank balances and cash and pledged bank
deposits of the Group are denominated in currencies
other than the functional currencies of the respective
group entities which expose the Group to currency
risk. The Group did not have a foreign currency
hedging policy as at the end of the reporting period.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

5. «@THA

(b)

(c)

(&)
MHREREREBERBE

AEBZFZ2eRIABTEAHEE
RE - - BHRHEMEYIE BEMR
153&“\1451 RIR - EHEMERITER  RIT
mBREE B NMEMEMNKEA

F’EH?H MR AR ER,BiE & N B RIE -

BEURTRRER SR ITAZF
EREMEPKE - BZESRIA
MRS 2 B f “?E.‘miazﬂ e (5% AR
&%'J%HB&’R) 1:1%\ //Ib@iéﬁﬁl‘
% o *ﬁ%@ﬁﬂﬂﬂ&\&ﬁ % 2 BRI
TX#H - EEERR aﬁ&ﬁb%ﬁﬁ

RAR S - DAREIR M B B Rk B B
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AEEZ AR EEREEREEE
BEE s KEMRGAELERTRE
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets at the end of the
reporting period are as follows:

5.

TRIA#®

MBRRERE)
B EkE(E)

REERREMRUIINETEELE
EZREESHIINT

Monetary assets

EWEE
2016 2015
—B—AF ki
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT F&TT
HK$ 7T 12,555 40,005
RMB AR 418 119,594
United State Dollar (‘US$”) =it ([E7t]) 2,383 143

The Group is mainly exposed to HK$ and RMB and
US$.

The following table details the Group’s sensitivity
analysis to a 5% (2015: 5%) increase and decrease
in the respective reporting entity’s functional currency
against the relevant foreign currencies. 5% (2015:
5%) is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.
The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding
foreign currency denominated monetary items, and
adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting
period for a 5% (2015: 5%) change in foreign currency
rates. A positive number below indicates an increase
in post-tax loss where the respective functional
currencies of the reporting entities strengthening 5%
(2015: 5%) against the relevant foreign currency. For
a 5% (2015: 5%) weakening of respective functional
currencies of the reporting entities against the
relevant foreign currency, there would be an equal
and opposite impact on the post-tax loss and the
balances below would be negative.

AEBTEMEAT  ARBEET
R o

TNRALAEEAERRSEERAE
B EAINETHERIZESS (—F
—hEF :5%) ZBREDHN 5% (=
T—RF 5% RATEEEAER
BREINERRSARGREL R -
R EEEHERARE R A EE
BATERTE - RESTERERER
RBZINEFEERRE - UNRE
HRIES%(Z T —HF :5%) 24
BEXSHRABEEMRE - LATLEH
BRimhESEREE2EER LA
NI ES% (ZF—HF : 5%) °
MEBEGSIEM - WRESEREZE
ZNEEEH HERINERZES% (= F
—h%F :5%) AEBRRERERF
MERZZE U TERTEKREE
2o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c) Financial risk management (Continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Effect on post-tax loss:

5. €I A%
(c) Bi¥RERER &)

E¥EE(E)

HERRBBRZTE

Monetary assets

EEE
2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
HK$ BT 471 1,500
RVB AR 17 4,993
Us$ ETT 99 5
587 6,498

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2016, the Group is exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed-rate bank
borrowings (note 32) while the Group is not exposed
to any fair value interest rate risk as at 31 December
2015.

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group is
also exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation
to variable-rate pledged bank deposits (note 29),
variable-rate bank balances (note 30), variable-rate
amount due to a non-controlling shareholder (note 18)
and variable-rate bank borrowings (note 32). It is the
Group’s policy to keep its borrowings at floating rate
of interests so as to minimise the fair value interest
rate risk.

ARk

R-ZBE—XRNE+-_A=+—0 £&
B E G E E AR RITEE (M7 32)
BRAMNARENERR  MRZE
—hAF+-A=+—BW¥EmBREMA
AREFERR

RZE-—REFRZFTE-—AF+A
=+—0B  XEETZEERRT
FR(HIEE29) « F BRITA R (I 5E
30) « FEfS—RIEIERRARER 2 % ERUR
(FF3E18) F BR1TIEE (FIzE32) M
HiR e MENEXRER - AEEK
REHBZEBEEUFEAARBNEE
fRpE =K o
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note. The Group cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of RMB
Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s Bank
of China arising from the Group’s RMB denominated
borrowings.

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
other necessary actions when significant interest rate
exposure is anticipated.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to interest rates for non-
derivative instruments at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the
financial instruments outstanding at the end of the
reporting period were outstanding for the whole year.
A 50 (2015: 50) basis points increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 (2015: 50) basis points
higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s post-tax loss for the year ended
31 December 2016 would increase/decrease (2015:
decrease/increase) by approximately HK$254,000
(2015: HK$550,000). This is mainly attributable to
the Group’s exposure to interest rates on its variable-
rate bank balances, variable-rate bank borrowings
and variable-rate amount due to a non-controlling
shareholder.

5.

TRIAE®

(c]

MBRRERE)
R =mb (&)

N 5% [ 5 B 755 B T T e 2 ) 2R LB
HERAME 2R ECRAREE—
fie AEEMBERENETARTE
STRREAKREZ AREEMER
ZHBEARBITAR ARBEEER

ITE) -

AEKRE BRI EF REFEREK - R
e EREFERENEARER
ERREHREANXEREZEH
fi W6 EFE I

BRI

TX 2 HRRE D TIBBER®E AR
FITESMTAZAEXRRMETE -
ZAMIBRERERRZ RKITFEZ
CRTAEEFHETEMRE - 17
SHFEEE0(ZZT— R4 : 50) EEZ,
ThREBEIR A B AR E FI R E R
FIERMER  WRREEEYHFX
BB e B BAIRT(S ©

WF=Rigm BBES0(ZE—HEF :
50) EES BFTEHMESRGTE
REBBE-_T—R"F+-_A=+—
HIEFERNRFEBIRSEMN, B (=
T—RHF D HENN) £ 254,000 7%
TT(=ZZF—FHF : 550,000 7T) ° It
DEEZRARAEEZERITHEL
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge
an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the
carrying amount of the respective recognised financial
assets as stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and finance lease receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to the credit risk are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on each individual
receivable requiring credit over a certain amount.
These evaluations focus on the customers’ past
history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take into account information
specific to the customer as well as pertaining to the
economic environment in which the counterparties
operate. The Group mitigates its exposure to risk
relating to trade receivables by dealing with selected
government agencies with sound financial standing. In
addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual receivable balance at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts.

5. «@THA

(c]

(%)

MBRRERE)
FERER

R-BE—AFR_Z—AF+_H
E+*E’$EII£$E% EBTT
BEEmM<S $El“fW%E%mFm
SERR - DEGRAMBHRRKRAE
ﬂ%@ﬁﬁ%%%éé%%ﬁ@ﬁ%
o
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ZBENREE - Wit REP 2555
BERUAREFIREEME ZKBIR
3o NEBEEBEAB RIFFHION
ZHEBNHEXZEEERERZH
FAE S RUGRIEZ AR - btoh - K&
2 7 ¥ 15 B K 2= B &2 1R (8 Al R U SR0R
FEER < AT Ol 78 - DAREMRBLT AT UK

Bl & 8B IEH T RIBE R RS o



168

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F—NF+_-H=1—HIFF

5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the concentration of credit
risk of the Group of the total trade receivables which
is due from the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers within the business application and
services, data collection and development and sales
of equipment business segment is nil (2015: nil) and
nil (2015: 20%) respectively.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group’s concentration
of credit risk by geographical locations is mainly in the
PRC, which accounted for 100% (2015: 100%) of the
total receivables.

The credit risk for bank balances and pledged bank
deposits are considered minimal as such amounts are
placed in banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

5.

EMITA @A

(c) HMEERERE)
EERR ()
R-ZF—XF+-A=+—H %%

2z E£FEERBRKE SR E R ER
% BEERRLENEEANEENR
AEERAARFE  DREE S ENK
HRERBRT(ZE—AHF: B)KT
(ZZ—hF : 20%) °
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(c)

Financial risk management (Continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering
cash or another financial asset. The Group’s policy
is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants in order to
maintain sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the
short and long term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based
on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay.

The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
curve at the end of the reporting period.

5.

TRIAE®

(c)

MBRRERE)
REE R

MEE & ARIEAREBRAEETTEIA
RNReSE MU BEEEENTE
BEBZEEZER - REBZBER
REMERERDESFTRKMETE
ERAOZEN  NHERASERERT
RESFHE  UWREZZS/mEBEE
15 R 594 GE Bk AT 2 EL A HIA & 1

TREIIARESITEM B B ERER
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5, @I RA®)
(c) Financial risk management (Continued) () BIRBERE &)
Liquidity risk (Continued) REESRER(EZ)
Contractual undiscounted
cash flow
EITARERRERE
Within Total
1 year or Between Between undiscounted
Carrying on demand 1and2 2and5 cash flow
amount —ERg years years FEB
BHEE EZXEE 1528 2E5E ReHEEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thr Thr i ThL Th
As at 31 December 2016 RZE-RETZB=1-H
Interest-bearing bank borowings I8 F{TEE 31,250 31,523 423 291 32,287
Trade and other payables BRI ERFE 215,569 215,569 - - 215,569
Amounts due tonon-controling ~ FERTERRIRRFUE
shareholders 80,800 11,026 4,561 2,040 83,627
Amounts due to associates LN 44,135 44,135 - = 44,135
Non-interest bearing Convertble £ 8T AKZ %
... Note - ety component - 8ERG OB T, 0000 ... S0 680580
841,036 368,253 104,984 562,911 1,036,148
As at 31 Decernber 2015 RZE-1F+-A=+-R
Interest-bearing bank borrowings {8 47(E & 144,103 147,762 - - 147,762
Trade and other payables BAREERE 178,434 178,434 - - 178434
Amounts due tonon-controling ~ FERTEERIER A
shareholders 80,536 mm 1,095 12,346 85,212
Amount due to an associate -l AR 28,132 28132 - - 28,132
Non-interest bearing Convertble £ 8 #KZ%
... Note —febitycomponent - BEEG QIO T ] 00580 . 0380
852,671 426,099 1,095 672,926 1,100,120
Note: BEE
()  The amounts included above for variable interest rate () ERFASESTEMEEEZETAZ
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are &5 BRZEA R ENREHARE
subject to change in variable interest rates differ to those EZHETFIR A 2 ERELSE -

estimates of interest rates determined at the end of the
reporting period.
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 5. €T A
(d) ERMIBEZARESR

Heim

(d) Fair value measurements of financial
instruments

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis

The carrying amounts of amounts due to non- HRRERFETK  MizE18 k329 5
controlling shareholders and borrowings as set out FIT &5 FE 15 FEAE AR AR SR S TB R fE 3k 2 BR
in notes 18 and 32 respectively were approximate HEEAEAERE °

to their fair values as the discounting effect is
insignificant.

ARAEZERR  REBHEKANEE

The directors of the Company consider that the

carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate to their
fair values due to their short-term maturities.

BIH5 Mk 51 Bk 2 E A B 15 B B R B 75
BECERAMEREQAAEBMES )
BN R SRR ARE ] -
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5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(e) Offsetting of financial assets and financial
liabilities
The Group entered into set-off arrangements in
respect of its balances of trade and other receivables
and trade and other payables as at 31 December
2016 of approximately HK$7,328,000 (2015:
HK$8,028,000).

Financial instruments subject to offsetting are set out
as follows:

5. *@T A&
BN EERMEEE

(e)

Gross amount
of recognised
financial assets
and liabilities
set off in the
consolidated

AEEBRER-_TE—X~"E+_-A
=+ —ERNBSREMEBRFERE
5 N EAh FE S FRIB R 48R 40 7,328,000
BT (ZE—AF : 8,028,000 7T) 7]

SRS HE o

SEEAHRZ R T AT

Net amounts of
financial assets
(liabilities)
presented in

the consolidated

Related amounts
not set off in the

Gross amount of statement of statement of consolidated
recognised financial ~ financial position ~ financial position statement of
assets (liabilities) GRUE SAHE  financial position
EER R R 85 WARZ5z  EERGAHE
BEEE  CRANKEE HREE EIVIE 2t - A Net amount
(B 4% el (BR)FE il k2 i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T T TEL Thn Thn
As at 31 December 2016 RZB-AF+ZAZt-H
Trade and other receivables ) WE%AIE 149,657 (7,328) 142,329 (142,329) =
Trade and other payables BAREMERT (222,897) 7,328 (215,569) 215,569 =
As at 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=1-H
Trade and other receivables BARAMEYNGE 146530 (8,028) 138502 (138,502) -
Trade and other payables BARAENFE (186,462) 8,028 (178,434) 178434 -
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REVENUE 6. =
An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from REBRAFEREFBELEEB 2 W2
continuing operations is as follows: DT -
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Business application and SR E R AR 5
services 157,697 150,009
Data collection SRR 73,387 100,409
Development and AT SR E
sales of equipment 1,694 54,463
232,778 304,881

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s reportable and operating segments, based
on information reported to the chairman of the Board,
being the chief operating decision-maker, for the purposes
of resource allocation, strategic decisions making and
assessment of segment performance focuses on type of
goods or services provided are as follows:

(1)  Business application and services;

(2) Data collection; and

(8) Development and sales of equipment.

Operating segment regarding the mining and exploration
business was discontinued in the current year. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts for this

discontinued operation, details which are described in note
11.

REE 2 AREREESMIHENRRE
TR(EBEERRE)MEZER

el

2 BB RN AEH BEORSR M FFh 0 #BR IR -

HEFR A TREA R m ek RS

(1)  EBuRERHER
Q) BEER: Kk

@) REFHEHE -

BEERTE M AR F BB R 2R LD BERAE
B - FRI2MZ DEEHTRELE &L

REXB AR - FHEHENMEN -
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DHER (&)
Segment revenue and results pa i Y S

I @R E FBREEG W R EERT

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

results from continuing operations by reportable and WMEREEDE 2T :
operating segment:
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_ZE-—ARF+-A=+—HLEFE
Continuing operations BESEER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
Y5 collection B Total
JE RS iR A% YEER  HREHE Bt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TER TET TAT TAT
. Revenue from external customers __ REMBESR= 157,697 . ...73387 . 164 282,718
Impairment loss of other intangible assets ~ HHEFEE 2 HERSE (133,514) (72,112) (15,167) (220,793)
Impairment loss of goodwil BHEZREEHE - (151,483) (31,921) (183,404)
Loss on uncertainty in respect BEBRREPEH
of collectability of amounts due TigEke
from customers of contract works BRM I ETHER (9,743) (4,028) - (13,771)
Amortisation and depreciation BERIE (42,397) (22,122) (499) (65,018)
CSegmentloss AREE ... (195165) (242305 (57,546)  (455,106)
Other income At 4,055
Finance costs BERA (52,509)
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary FH-ANBARZER (4,718)
Impairment loss of AREEREL
available-for-sale investment REESE (7,011)
Central administrative cost HRATBAY (118,233)
Equity-settled share-based NEREET ARG
payment expenses AP 5 (2,215)
Share of result of associates MEBE R RRE 1,618

Loss before taxation

BHATEE

(634,119)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Restated)

7. &

BER (F

7 EB U s B SRAR (F)

—HFEt-A=1+—HBLFE

:i:— =
(#e&E7)
Continuing operations BFEREEK
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
8z collection B Total
ER SR YEER  HEEEE =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TEL TEL FHL
(Restated)
(E7)
..Revenue from extemal customers . RESMBERME 190,009 ... 100409 ... 4463 ... 304,881,
Impairment loss of other intangible assets ~ EtEFEE 2 FEEE (38,930) (16,250) (5,500) (60,680)
Loss on uncertainty in respect BEBRKEPANIEE
of collectability of amounts due W ERERNTHEE !E*Eﬁ?é!
from customers of contract works (11,551) (2,474) - (14,025)
Amortisation and depreciation BERNE (55,115) (31,083) (8,958) (95,156)
Segmentloss BEBE 5,189 .. XTI T/ B )
Other income HipA 7,363
Fair value gain on TRAREE 2 TET AR
the Derivative Component of ANEL €
Convertible Note | 64,125
Finance costs BERA (67,197)
Central administrative cost PRITHRAY (66,928)
Equity-settled share-based IR EE T AR
payment expenses SApAib (8,761)
Share of result of an associate PMEHE DR EE 2415
Loss before taxation BREAIEE (154,367)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment revenue and results (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies described in note
3. Segment loss represents the loss from each segment
without allocation of central administrative cost, directors’
salaries, certain other income, equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, share of result of associates, fair value
gain on the Derivative Component of Convertible Note |,
loss on deregistration of a subsidiary, impairment loss of
available-for-sale investment and finance costs. This is the
measure reported to the chairman of the Board, being the
chief operating decision maker, for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

There were no inter-segment sales between different
business segments for the years ended 31 December 2016
and 2015.

DEER (&)

7 EB U s B SR AR (4F)

RENM A HRRENEIAREAKHE

SETBERARR © 7 BB RS 0 Bh AR
RITBFHX - EFFHE & TEMEA - A
RaEFEEWARN N 2% - hBER
ARG TRRERITEIAROZAR
Bl EE—ENBARZEE - ATt
EREZREBERBEXAEL D EE
B - WIMEEETE (T BEEREKE)
tERBRE 2 HE B EDERERMFEE
IH o

BE - Z—RFER-_Z—FAHF+-_A=1+—
HIEFE @ TRZEBK D IPEEEE D 2B HE
/%O
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and

DEBER (&)
DEHEEREE

AEBEERABERAREREES B LD

liabilities by reportable and operating segment: DN
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
(Restated)
(5ED)
Segment assets DEEE
Business application and services 5 & F 22 R 75 435,742 582,881
Data collection EUEIER 501,620 798,151
Development and AT SRS
Lsalesofequipment 8818 181,338
Total segment assets DESEEBRR 1,001,497 1,512,370
Assets relating to discontinued ~ EAE 4% | AR & 2 TS 4B R
operation MEE - 10
Unallocated corporate assets  AABCERARE S AN
Total assets BREE 1,255,419 1,955,498
Segment liabilities PEEE
Business application and services #1% & A B2 AR 75 125,988 86,073
Data collection SRR 68,853 57,116
Development and RSB E
Lsalesoteaipment 2235 . 14814
Total segment liabilities NEEEERE 197,076 158,003
Liabilities relating to discontinued EEE 4% || 48 & Z 754873
operation MEE - 4,658
Unallocated corporate liebllies  ARBEBHBHE N .804892 |
Total liabilities mamE 920,885 967,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HILFZE

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purpose of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

° all assets are allocated to operating segments
other than interests in associates, available-for-sale
investment, deferred tax assets, tax recoverable,
certain corporate assets, pledged bank deposits and
bank balances and cash as these assets are managed
on a group basis. Assets used jointly by reportable
segments are allocated on the basis of the revenues
earned by individual reportable segments.

° all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than tax payables, amounts due to non-controlling
shareholders/associates, deferred tax liabilities,
borrowings, convertible notes and certain corporate
liabilities as these liabilities are managed on a group
basis. Liabilities for which reportable segments are
jointly liable are allocated in proportion to segment
assets.

DEER (&)
PEWEEREE(E)

REEES

DERALDED FEER

FrEBESREEENE  TRER
BEAm R AIHEERE B
ERIEEE  AIWERE  BETRE
BE - B EPRITERALRITALR
kR (AZEEENREREEE
B) - AIRED B HRERZ BERE
AR RS 9 B PR ER U s O L E D L ©

FERENEEZENE  TRIEE
Htftlg FE - FEFERR AR ZR, Bt & A )

VEERIBEE  EE - WK
fbﬁ&*@—?m%iéﬁ(lzxi?i@%ﬁﬁz
SEEEFE) - AImMED AR AYE
ZBERREBEDBEE LT AD
[
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7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. DEER®)
Other segment information Hih 5 EBER
For the year ended 31 December 2016 BE-_Z—AFE+-A=+—HLEE
Continuing operations HEREER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
e collection %%  Unallocated Total
[E FERRR HEER HRHE ROE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thx ThEx ThL Thx TAn
Amounts included in the measure of FASBEERSHERE
segment loss or segment assets: k. B
Additions to property, plant and equipment n% - BEREHEIRE 8,520 6,856 1,235 30 16,641
Additions to other intangible assets HuBHEELNE 15,321 7,649 1,976 = 24,946
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 0 BERREINE 7,654 34 255 870 12,520
Amortisation of other intangible assets B EE BHE 34,743 18,381 244 - 53,368
Reversal of impairment loss of trade receivables BHRWFR RE
BEzEE (233) (1,033) (4,791) - (6,057)
Impairment loss of trade receivables B HRYE R ERE 253 342 7,401 - 7,996
Reversal of loss on uncertainty in respect BARKERPAY
of collectability of amounts due from TRFBEREERL
customers of contract works TEEHEE AL (12,966) (3,513) - - (16,479)
Write-back of trade payables B SRR EE - (1,115) - = (1,119)
Write-off of trade receivables B SRR 2 MisH - 2,809 - - 2,809
Write-off of other intangible assets iR A - - 4,880 - 4,880
Write-off of property, plant and equipment VERE 1 10,858 5,048 83 - 15,989
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, LENE  BE LG
plant and equipment (ks BB (94) 159 - - 65
Allowance for inventories FERE - - 365 - 365
Amounts regularly provided to BERIBEEARE
the chief operating decision-maker REBFT AL DER
but not included in the measure of ERai ik
segment loss or segment assets:
Interests in associates REE ARz ER - - - 11,697 11,697
Share of result of associates MEBERTEE - - - (1,618) (1,618)
Bank interest income BTRBMA (324) (56) (59) (215) (654)
Write-back of other payables HifERFE BT - - - (3,051) (3,051)
Impairment loss of other receivables Hit YA RESE - - - 2,807 2,807
Impairment loss of available-for-sale investment EHERE ZREBE - - - 7,011 7,011
Write-off of other receivables it ez s 2 s - - - 3,746 3,746
Loss on deregistration of a subsidiary FHE-ANBARER - - - 4,718 4718
Finance costs BB - - - 52,509 52,509
Income tax expense (credt) FrishiRx (E%) 2,563 1,058 78 (39,663) (35,964)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. HER @)
Other segment information (Continued) HibhpIER (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2015 (Restated)  E T —RAF+A=+—HLFE
(g&E:5)
Continuing operations HEREER
Business Development
application and sales of
and services Data equipment
B collection B Unallocated Total
JERERE HBRER HHsEE ApE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THr TiEn TAL TAL FAL
(Restated)
(71
Amounts included in the measure of AP BEER S PEE
segment loss or segment assets: ZEE:
Additions to property, plant and equipment 0% BERREIAE 12,650 3,846 633 3,580 20,709
Additions to other intangible assets HhEVEEZRE 37,567 28,828 2,101 - 68,496
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment k- BERSEZNE 6,527 4,204 812 549 12,002
Amortisation of other intangible assets HitBmEE B 48,588 26,879 8,146 - 83,613
Impairment loss of trade receivables BHRMG B RERR 1,286 467 5,220 - 6,973
Impairment loss of other intangible assets LB EEZAERR 38,930 16,250 5,500 -~ 60,680
Impairment loss on finance lease receivables BERERIGE AEEE - - 8,637 - 8,637
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &M% « BERREHE 60 65 43 609 777
Wiite-off of inventories & - - 634 - 634
Amounts regularly provided to REREEEEREE
the chief operating decision-maker REREETRITADPEE
but not included in the measure of ERani -V ke
segment loss or segment assets:
Interest in an associate Nl = YN PR - - - 4,816 4816
Share of result of an associate ME-HBERTEE - - - (2,475) (2,475)
Bank interest income RITFIBHA (323) (18) (83) (223) (647)
Write-back of other payables H RN Rz B - - - (2,628) (2,628)
Impairment loss of other receivables Hit IR 2 AEBRE - - - 373 373
Finance costs AR - - - 67,197 67,197

Income tax expense (credit) FERRX (%) 1,719 704 147 6,504) (3,934)
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical information

The Group’s operations are located in the PRC.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based
on the location of the customers. Information about the
Group’s non-current assets is presented based on the
geographical location of the assets or location of operations
in case of goodwill.

7. DHER (&)

ih @ & R
REBLBRIRTE o

FARAKEREIBEL ZFHBELERT
Wet 2 BRI DEREPUEMZ5 » BRA
SEFRBDEEZEMDENEE 2 HIEM
ERFEBH GIEEME) M2 -

Revenue from external customers RBEMREF W
2016 2015
—F-AF 0
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
PRC I 232,778 304,881

Non-current assets ERBEE

2016 2015
—EB-RE —ZE—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FET
PRC F 687,642 1,203,274
Hong Kong BB 1,150 1,691
688,792 1,204,965

Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued
operation, financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

During the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015,
none of the Group’s individual customer contributed more
than 10% to the total revenue of the Group.

FRBDEETRRHEDRILEEBEEN
BE SRIANBERBEERE -

REBEE_ZE—RFEFER_FT—HF+_A
=t HISFEESR  AEETEE—F
FPHAEE AW EREBIE10% °
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=—F

—E-NFf A= HIFE

8. OTHER INCOME 8. HWA
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
(Restated)
(&)
Continuing operations =Y pedF 30
Bank interest income RITH EMA 654 647
Exchange gain, net ME 5 e H# B - 2,274
Subletting rental income SAEEWA 300 1,195
Government grants (note (i) BRAT R B (PR EE () 5,720 12,062
Write-back of trade g 5 LA ERFRIE
and other payables 2 BE 4,166 2,628
Sundry income ESIET PN 50 619
Total wEt 10,890 19,425
Note: BIEE
()  Included in the amount of government grants recognised () BEZZE—XF+-ZA=1T—HILFERE

RZBRHYEERASEEE THEER
(BEEBEERLDEE)REZHARE
4,895,000 7T (FHE A #5,720,000 47T ) (=
T—hF : ARK9,705,0007T (FHE R4
12,062,000 7z )) + I B R F N BN HERR
BEMUA o

during the year ended 31 December 2016, approximately
RMB4,895,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$5,720,000) (2015:
RMB9,705,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,062,000))
were granted in respect of certain research projects, which
immediately recognised as other income for the year as the
Group has fulfilled the relevant granting criteria.
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OTHER GAIN AND LOSSES, NET 9. HitmRESEFE
2016 2015
—E—RE —E—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(reE:%)
Continuing operations =Y pedF 3
Reversal of loss on uncertainty ~ BRBKREFEA L TRFIBWKE
in respect of collectability of BN MBS 1R 2 B (D
amounts due from customers (M5 26)
of contract works (note 26) (16,479) —
Loss on uncertainty in respect of BEEEWERF &4 TI2FIA
collectability of amounts W B8 51 BT e E 1 B 18
due from customers of (M5 26)
contract works (note 26) 13,771 14,025
Reversal of impairment loss of & 5 ERFIAZ
trade receivables (note 27) BB B 2 BBl (Fsk27) (6,057) (10,462)
Impairment loss of trade B 5 REMEWGRIE 2 BEBE
and other receivables 10,893 7,346
Impairment loss of finance REHERWGIE 2 REEE
lease receivables (note 28) (M5 28) - 8,637
Impairment loss of AN ERE 2 REEE
available-for-sale investment 7,011 —
Fair value gain on the AHMREE I 20TETESH 2
Derivative Component of N EWE (FI5E33(a)
Convertible Note | (note 33(a)) - (64,125)
Write-off of property, Y% - BB MR EEE
plant and equipment 15,989 —
Write-off of other intangible assets - th £ 74 il # 4,880 —
Write-off of trade and B 5 Sk H A FEYIGRIE 2 38
other receivables 6,555 —
Loss on deregistration of TN B AR EE
a subsidiary (note 48) (FF5E48) 4,718 —
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10. FINANCE COSTS

NETZA=+—HIFFE

10. &R

2016 2015
—B-ARF —_ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations BEREEK
Interest on: INTEIEZHE -
— Bank loans — RITEK 1,939 5,185
— Other loans — HtER - 642
— Unsecured loan — RE—RBIFERRED
from a non-controlling EEFE R
shareholder 2,754 1,714
4,693 7,541
Imputed interest on HibmiEmaEmR 2
unsecured other loan HERE - 1,707
Imputed interest on Convertible — AT RS =5 |~
Note | (note 33(a)) fhEFLE (FIFE33(a)) - 29,671
Imputed interest on extended KEEAP IR TR 2
Convertible Note | (note 33(a)) & F 8 (H5E33()) 39,937 19,746
Imputed interest on Convertible AT A =K1 2
Note Il (note 33(b)) & F) S (FF5E33(b)) 7,879 8,532
47,816 59,656
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an independent third party (the “Acquirer”) to dispose
of the Fast Billion Group, which carried out all of the Group’s
mining and exploration business. The Disposal was effected
in order to generate cash flows for the expansion of the
Group’s other businesses. The Disposal was completed on
20 September 2016, on which date the control of the Fast
Billion Group was passed to the Acquirer.

The profit (loss) for the period/year from the discontinued
operation is analysed as follows:

1. CRIEEEEFK

AREBE-—ZBIE=H(WEHFITL
—HEEWE  HENREAKEFMAHRER
EHREFEH) Fast Bilion &8 - ZHEHEE
ERAEANER  EMEKRHRESR - B
ETERN T —"FNAZTHZEK ' R
H Fast Billion & B 2 1= H #EEB =BT ©

HIP, B AR L 75 2 % F) (B598)
HIFIT -

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Profit (loss) of mining and HAA, F R R R ES
exploration business 2w A (EE) (Hita)
for the period/year (note a) 3,390 (4,278)
Gain on disposal of mining HH S BRTE I YR ST
and exploration business 2 Wzs (M 389(b))
(note 39(b)) 74,472 —
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) M. BREREEK )
Note a: fizta :
The results of the mining and exploration business for the period from KERMREFR_ZE—"F—A—BE=Z
1 January 2016 to 20 September 2016, which have been included in —NFNAZTEHEZEE(EFAGLEER
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, were as follows: F)WT
Period ended Year ended
20 September 31 December
2016 2015
BE-ZT—X&F (EZT—RF
hB=+H +-A=+—H”
1EEARS IFFE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FT
Revenue Wz - —
Other income EAbA 745 21
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — M E A A
(Note 39(a)) 2 HEs (M 39(a)) 5,756 -
Acminisative and oner operaing epenses | (ECRMAEME I .29
Profit (loss) before taxation FRA AT (E5t8) 3,390 (4,278)
| Income tax expense (note) ..o, FRISBRS (MED) [
Profit (loss) for the period/year ... BN ERER B 3890 kee)
Profit (loss) for the period/year from CRIEEEEE IR R
discontinued operation include the following: aA (ER) 8ETH&E
Impairment loss of exploration and evaluation assets IR R AHEE E R EEE (175) (383)
Exchange gain (losses), net ER W (B8) FE 5 1)

Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME - BB RE&EZEBE = (17)
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11. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) M. ERLEREER =)
Note: BisE -
Subsidiaries incorporated in Mongolia are subject to Mongolian income REGREMALZ B AR BHNS GRS
tax which is calculated at the rate of 10% on the first 3 billion MNT i BMEBAMSEESTHBEERERIAT -
of taxable income and 25% on the amount in excess thereof. No FREAR10%  EHASENESTHEBERER
provision for income tax has been made as there were no assessable LA ERIER D - IR R 25% - BE_ZT—RNFNA
profits during the period ended 20 September 2016 and the year “+HIEHEER - E—AFt+-_A=1+—H8IF
ended 31 December 2015, & BRIEEEERBUEN - B EEMAEH
ETIRAME o
Net cash inflow (outflow) arising from discontinued operation is as BRIEEEEBMEE RS RACRL) F580m
follows: TR :
Period ended Year ended
20 September 31 December
2016 2015
BE-ZE—AE BE_ZT—RF
hA=1+H +=-A=+—8
1HHARS LHEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Operating activities EETEE) (2,180) 132
Investing activities TEEE 7,128 (383)
Financing acivites o BB et R B T
4,948 (251)
The carrying amounts of the assets and liabilities of the Fast Billion Fast Bilion&= B 2z BE R BEN L E B2 KA

Group at the date of disposal are disclosed in note 39(b).

EIFFERHIRE39(b) °
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12. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

Loss before taxation has been arrived at after charging:

12. RBLAIEE

BRDLATEIR TO A8 H0RR T 5B IRRRSH

2016 2015
AL —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTERT FET
(Restated)
(re=E:%)
Continuing operations BEREET
Staff costs (including directors’ BTN (BIEEHME)
emoluments)
— salaries, allowances and — ¥i% R REYEF
benefits in kind 86,659 68,321
— retirement benefits scheme ~ — EIREFIFT B TR
contributions (FREHKEED)
(defined contribution plans) 17,180 13,134
— equity-settled share-based — DR E I AR D
...... payment expenses XNZBR %28 876
106,054 90,216
Amount of inventories WRARZ 2 TFENIE
recognised as an expense 2,399 57,136
Amortisation of other intangible  E-fth & 2 7 # 5
assets 53,368 83,613
Depreciation of property, Y BELRREZINE
plant and equipment 12,520 12,092
Auditor’s remuneration A 1,320 1,260
Allowance for inventories FERE 365 —
Write-off of inventories FEMHE - 634
Loss arising from change in A — R A R IR
shareholding in an associate EEZEBE 97 —
Exchange losses, net PE B ia ) F a8 9,895 —
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE - HE &
plant and equipment B ol SE= Vet 65 777
Minimum lease payments under SRR L REF K
operating leases in respect EfhmEEE
of rented land and buildings CEREBE Y
and other intangible assets REREMK 17,092 10,842
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. INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FISRiIEE
2016 2015
—E-XRE —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Continuing operations EREEK
Current tax for the year E WEH HABIE
— PRC Enterprise income tax — B EMEH
(‘EIT") ([EEmmEH 1) 3,699 6,397
Deferred tax for the year FRIELERIA
— Current year (note 35) — KNEE (K17E35) (39,663) (10,331)
Income tax credit PSR % (35,964) (3,934)

Pursuant to the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (“BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the
BVI for the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31
December 2016 (year ended 31 December 2015: 16.5%).
No provision for Hong Kong profits tax has been made as
there were no assessable profits generated for the years
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the
“EIT Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law,
the tax rate applicable to the PRC subsidiaries is 25%
from 1 January 2008 onwards. Accordingly, provision for
PRC EIT for the PRC subsidiaries is calculated at 25% on
the estimated assessable profits for the years ended 31
December 2016 and 2015, except for the followings:

REFSHENEBRUHS ((EBELH
EDEVERNER  AEEBARBE—
E-RERE-—RF+_A=1T—HILF
EH#HERRSEENABRLHE MG
7t o

@E—%—ﬁ¢+:ﬂz+—5¢¢§'§
ﬂ STy Bh A E FEER T F 1% 16.5% HIAR
ESH(BE=_E—RF+=-A=+—
Hti&-mam HREBE_T—XRF
MZE—RF+_A=T—RHIEFEVEE
EFERBURF - AT BB E B FIETRAE L B
1 o

BRIEFBECEMRSHE(IEEREBBRE]
REEMSFEERAES - PREMBARZ
HRARMEAZEEN\F—A—HER25% °
EHit - FEMBARRBEE_S—"FRZ
T—AF+-_A=t+—RALLFEZETER
Fm Al Pl ST BB IR25% T & -
HELA TESBR A -
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

A subsidiary of the Company, It K NEEERMAR A
7] (Beijing Peace Map Information and Technology Limited*)
(“Beijing Peace Map Information”) was confirmed to be
recognised as a software enterprise and therefore is entitled
to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT from 2012
to 2013 and followed by half reduction in EIT rate of 12.5%
from 2014 to 2016. During the year ended 31 December
2016, Beijing Peace Map Information was recognised as
an approved high technology enterprise and therefore is
entitled to tax concession period of reduction in EIT rate of
15% from 2017 to 2019.

A subsidiary of the Company, Beijing Peace Map was
recognised as an approved high technology enterprise and
therefore is entitled to a tax concession period of reduction
in EIT rate of 15% from 2015 to 2017.

A subsidiary of the Company, it ®/&5ZEB R AR
‘A 7] (Beijing Haicheng Huatu Technology Limited*) was
recognised as a software enterprise in 2013 and therefore
is entitled to a tax concession of full exemption from EIT for
two years from 2013 to 2014 and followed by half reduction
in EIT rate of 12.5% from 2015 to 2017.

A subsidiary of the Company, dt REBMIER L BRE &
£2 7] (Beijing Shenghezhuang Technology Limited*)
(“Shenghezhuang”) was recognised as an approved high
technology enterprise in 2014 and therefore is entitled to
a tax concession period of reduction in EIT rate of 15%
from 1 January 2014 to 31 December 2016. However,
Shenghezhuang has been deregistered in March 2016 and
no tax concession was granted during the year ended 31
December 2016.

* For identification purpose only

13. FISRiIER (2

ERXRTEEEEMBERAR(TERXT
BES)) RARR—ENBAR - EHER
PRI EFRE  MER-_T——FE_F
—=HFZALEMBHEANTGES &
BR_E—NFE_Z-RFEARFEE
ISR E126% < HFER - BE-T
—ANFTZA=+t—BLFE  ERKXTE
EREERARA SRR MK —F
—tEFEE-T-NFEARREEMEHRBK
EA15% NBEEEH

KAa—FRB ALK T EERER AR
AEREREE R _E-—HFE_T
—+tFEZERELEMESHBE15% T
TSEEE -

EFBEZBMRERAR - RARR]—H
MBAR RIE-—=FERARAMGE
¥R - =FRE T -NFIIW
EFEZAEEMERE2LENHGES &
BR-_Z-AFE_TLFEHRFLER
FRISTITIE 12.5% 2 BHIEEE -

LR BMERMZAREERT ([EBANE]) -
BARF—HMBAR R -T—MFER
ARZIESRREE - JitB —F—F
—A-HRE-ZE-RE+-A=1+—HFF
BIEEEMERRER15% R IFEERD -
AT BREE R T —AF= AWEEE
BE_T—RFT_A=t—HILFE I
BRERTHGES -
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13. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

13. FISRiIER (2

RER 2 BB R RS BER ZRTA
ERHEEMT

loss as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-A1F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
(Restated)
(re=%1))
Continuing operations BEREET
Loss before taxation BrIERTETE (634,119) (154,367)
Notional tax on profit calculated 2 4BRE Al EkE =
at the rates applicable to profits 3 PR & I R st E &
in the jurisdiction concerned w A A ET IR (142,890) (37,735)
Tax effect on share of profit DGEEE A RRF
of associates AR E 405 619
Tax effect on non-taxable income HZERFUIA 2 FiTAF £ (6,676) (15,937)
Tax effect on non-deductible TAMBAX 2 RIBRE
expenses 96,111 42,779
Tax effect on tax losses RERRIBEB 2B E
not recognised 17,086 6,340
Income tax credit FrisHiik e (35,964) (3,934)

Details of the deferred taxation are set out in note 35.

14. DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2016, nor has any dividend been proposed
since the end of the reporting period (year ended 31
December 2015: nil).

14.

BIERIR 2 BRI M ESS

Hﬁ /%\

BE-T—~FETSA=T—ALEEEE
e L B P
RAENEARS (RE-F—HF+- 7
=+—BLEE B
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15. LOSS PER SHARE

a) From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based
on the following data:

15. BRREE

a) REFEKERERIL

S0

ARAHEENEEERERNRETE
BIER TIIBERESEH -

Loss &
2016 2015
—E-RE —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Loss for the purpose of REREARREEE
basic and diluted loss EEE BB
per share
— loss for the year — RARIHE AR
attributable to FAEE
owners of the
Company (509,573) (135,506)
Number of shares R4 EE
2016 2015
—E-REF —E-hF
’000 000
F A T
Weighted average number LR E AR & #58E518
of ordinary shares for the ~ #& 7 @)
purpose of basic and hnwEF 19k
8,156,781 7,586,651

diluted loss per share
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b) From continuing operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
attributable to the owners of the Company is based

on the following data:

15. SREE (2

REFECERE

ARAHEEANEEERERNREEE
BIER TIIBERESH -

Loss %]
2016 2015
—E-RF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FETT
Loss for the year RAGHEE ABEERNER
attributable to owners
of the Company (509,573) (135,506)
Less: (profit) loss for the B ANREHEE AFEG
year attributable to FARB DRI EER
owners of the Company 2~ C#F) 518
from discontinued
operation (77,849) 4,160
Loss for the purpose REREAREEEEFTE
of basic and diluted RAFBREEB 2 BIE
loss per share from
continuing operations (587,422) (131,346)

The denominators used are the same as those
detailed above for basic and diluted loss per share.

FIRAZ DB R EXHERERK S
SEEEFRERR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

c) From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings (2015: loss) per share for
the discontinued operation attributable to the owners
of the Company is HK0.95 cents per share for the
year ended 31 December 2016 (2015: HK0.06 cents
per share), based on the profit (2015: loss) for the
year ended 31 December 2016 from the discontinued
operations of approximately HK$77,849,000 (2015:
HK$4,160,000) and the denominators detailed above
for both basic and diluted loss per share.

For the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015, the
diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per
share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year
ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 did not assume the
exercise of the Company’s share options as the exercise
prices of the share options were higher than the average
market price for shares. The computation of diluted loss per
share for the year ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 did
not assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding
convertible notes as the conversion of the convertible notes
would result in a decrease in loss per share.

15. SREE (2

) RECKRLLEEXRE

BEZZT—R"FET-H=T—HLF
EARRBIEE ABGERIEREEES
CEBREAREERFN(ZE—RF :
Ei8) AER0SBII(ZTE—RF :
FRR0.0678)  WHERBE=ZFT
—"NF+_A=+—HLEFERAE
BRIMSEEB BN (ZE—AF : B
1B) #77,849,0008 L (=ZE—HF :
4,160,000 7T ) Kk Eit G RRE A & #
SBEBHNAT -

HE_Z—NFER-Z—AF+-_A=+—
BILEFEE SRBEEBEBENERELE

18 e

REERETFEERRO FImES - HEE
—E-RERZE-RAFTZA=+—HLE
FESREEBBZTETEBRARRZ
BT - AR BRRERKERE
BEBRY  HEE-_T— R EEK_T—TA
F+-A=t+—HLFEERESEE YA
HWEMBRBRAR R Z EARITE TR ERE
Hifao
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 16. E 5 - EeTHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS [,
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM2
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a RERESRHEZBARBEFSIE
person’s services as a director, whether of the W< (EREEHEARATREHFE L
Company or its subsidiary undertaking AEIE)
Equity-settled
Salaries, Retirement  share-based
allowances benefits payment
and benefits scheme expenses
inkind  contributions DERE
Fees & 2H BIRGER B RA Total
e RENEF HE T ZBX ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FER FEr TEr FhR
For the year ended BEZZ-RE
31 December 2016 TZAZ+-HLEFE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Guan Hongliang (note )~ BB 504 (Fit3) 120 993 123 252 1,488
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note )~ REZF &4 (MizHi) 30 - - 252 282
Mr. Zhu Dong REEE 120 734 64 252 1,170
Mr. Feng Tao BELE - 898 87 252 1,287
Mr. Wang Zheng (note i T (Fatii) - 1,098 138 252 1,488
Independent Non-Executive BIUFHTEES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yat On (note iv) i () 110 - - - 110
Mr. Zhang Songlin R 60 - - - 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang BEMEE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Kang Hua (note v) RS (MFTy) 60 - - - 60
560 3,723 412 1,260 5,955
Mr. Guan Hongliang resigned as the chief executive BBt El T — N F— AMNBEBEETT
officer with effect from 4 January 2016 and Mr. Wang BARE 5 - FEAERZBERERITH
Zheng was re-designated as chief executive officer BE o ENFHRBE I BECHTHEEEES
on the same date. Their emoluments disclosed above TR AR E R AR TS A0 A o

include those for services rendered by them as the
chief executive officer.
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 16. E 5 - EeTHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M€ =)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEMe#)
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a RERESRHEZBEARBEFHIE
person’s services as a director, whether of the W< (EmREEHEARATRERE L
Company or its subsidiary undertaking (Continued) BIEIE) (&)
Equity-settled
Salaries, Retirement share-based
allowances benefits payment
and benefits scheme EXPenses
inkind  contributions IR
Fees  Hd - 28 BINER BW AR Total
ik RENEF ST S ZFAx bk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL ThEL TiEx ThEL TiEx
For the year ended HE-E2-1%
31 December 2015 TZA=+-HLEFE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Guan Hongliang (note) BB 504 (Fits) 180 607 64 1,004 1,855
Mr. Zhang Chuanjun (note )~ SREZ LA (i) 120 - - 1,004 1,124
M. Zhu Dong R%H 120 - - 1,004 1,124
Mr. Feng Tao EELE - 912 83 1,004 1,999
Mr. Wang Zheng (note i) TR (i) - 1414 125 1,004 2,543
Independent Non-Executive BIUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Hui Yat On (note iv) i i\ ) 120 - - - 120
Mr. Zhang Songlin RIS AE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Zhai Shenggang BEMEE 60 - - - 60
Mr. Kang Hua (note v) FREE A (Mt y) 3 - - - 3
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 16. E 5 - EeTHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) M€ =)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) EEZME (2
Notes: BfRE -
()  resigned as chief executive officer on 4 January 2016 () RZZT—R"F—AEBEHEITEARE
(i)  resigned as deputy chairman and executive director on 1 iy RZZT—A"FHA—HEHEREER
April 2016 HWITES
(i)  re-designated as chief executive officer on 4 January iy MZT—ARF—AEBERERITH
2016 ot
(v) resigned as independent non-executive director on ivy RZZT—AFEtA-+—HEEET
21 July 2016 EITEE B
()  appointed as independent non-executive director on v R-ZE—RAF+-_A+—HEZTAE
11 December 2015 BUIEHITES
No director and chief executive waived or agreed MEEZRERTHABREXRE
to waive any emoluments for the years ended WEBEZE-Z-—RFERZFT—1F

31 December 2016 and 2015. +-A=+—HItFEZ MM -



198 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED %k T Bl AR A

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in
the Group, three (2015: three) were directors and the
chief executive of the Company whose emoluments
are included in the disclosure in note (a) above.

16. EE - EE1THRAEREEZ
M€ =)

(b) AEZESHMAL

AEERBREHALTF =2 (=2F
—RHF ZR)RARFZEERES
TTBAE » REZME R £ XK ()
BE - BENTHTME(ZE—R%F:

The emoluments of the remaining two (2015: two) MB) AT ZBEAT -
individuals were as follows:
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FER FAT
Salaries, allowances and  ¥i& - EZEE R EWEAN
benefits in kind 1,654 1,455
Retirement benefits RIRERF B
scheme contributions 142 146
Equity-settled share-based Atz E W AR 214 2 F
payment expenses 255 1,827
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16. DIRECTORS, CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND 16. E 5 - EeTHAEREEZ

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS (Continued) [ cAC ),

(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) b) EBEESHFMAL(E)
For the year ended 31 December 2016, the aggregate HE-_ZT—RF+_A=+—RHLLF
emoluments of the above two (2015: two) highest B LiiMmE(ZT—hF : MEB)&
paid non-directors individuals fell within the following RHFESAT M BENT T
bands: #HE :

Number of individuals

AE

2016 2015

—E-RE —T-NF

Nil —HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 87T 1 —
HK$1,000,001 — 1,000,001 B LE

HK$1,500,000 1,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$1,500,001 — 1,500,001 B LE

HK$2,000,000 2,000,000787T - 2

During the year ended 31 December 2016 and REBEZZT-—R"EFRT-HF+=

2015, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the A=+— EI IEFE - AEBEWEMAA

directors and chief executive of the Company or any NRAEERESTBABREMAS

of the five highest paid individuals as an inducement BB ATZMNEAME - ERIBIE

to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation BEMARNEB K BEMAREE R

for loss of office. < SRENSAE AR E o
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. Y% - BERRZRE

Furniture, Plant,
fixtures and machinery Mine
Land and equipment Leasehold Motor and tools development
buildings & improvements vehicles & assets Total
1#HEET RERRE HENERE RE BERIA BERREE ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$000 K$000 HK$'000
T Tin Tk T T Thn Tin
Cost A
At1 January 2015 RZE-15-A-A 15,167 15,056 20,665 3,039 33,284 26,207 113,418
Addttions AE 4337 3,928 8,618 2,437 1,389 - 20,709
Disposdls e - (3939 - (750) - - (4,689
Exchange realignment B (1,019 (1,042) (1,508) (289) (2475) (1,465) (7,794)
At 31 December 2015 RZF-1%+ZA=1-RRk
and 1 January 2016 “F-7%5-F-H 18,480 14,004 21,175 444 32,198 24742 121,645
Additions AE 453 2,058 6,326 1,242 6,562 - 16,641
Wiite-of s - - (24,560) - - - (24,560)
Disposals & - (554) - 1,949) (68) - (2567)
Disposals through disposal ERLENBAA
of subsictaries (note 39) it (M5 39) (10,637) (1,041) (1,729 - (5,907) (24,249) (43,569
Exchange realignment B AR (3972) (1,226) (867) (319 (2.876) (499) (9,753
At 31 December 2016 RZB-AE+ZR=1-8 4329 18,241 6,045 3419 29,909 - 57,843
Accumulated depreciation ZHERAE
and impairment
At1 January 2015 R=F-1%-A-A 15,167 4,951 4057 1,127 8,068 26,207 59,617
Charge for the year EMR 217 3169 4854 476 3376 - 12,092
Eliminated on disposals HERHH - (3,045) - (604) - - (3,649)
Exchange realignment e 87) 610) (498) (112 (1,409 (1,465) (4,951
At 31 December 2015 WZZ-RETZA=-8R
and 1 January 2016 “E-75-F-H 14,521 4,465 8413 887 10,035 24742 63,069
Charge for the year ERx 8 3063 5217 14l 3440 - 12,50
Eliminated on write-off iR - - 8571) - - - 8571)
Eliminated on disposals L ERH S - (502) - (e 65) - (1,539)
Elminated on disposals FRLENBLA
through disposal of THiEREH
subsidiaries (note 39) (Fi3%39) (10,637) (1,041) (1,729) - (5907) (24,049) (43,569)
Exchange realignment {82 (3698) 759 (332 (110 (1,234) (499) (6,626)
At 31 December 2016 RZE-AEtZB=1-H 215 5,226 2,998 522 6,269 - 15,200
Carrying values KEE
At 31 December 2016 RZB-RETZA=1-A 4,054 8,015 3,947 2,897 23,640 - 42,553
At 31 December 2015 RZE-RETZA=T-8 3958 9,539 19,362 3,554 2,163 - 58,576
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. Y% - BERRE®)

No depreciation for mine development assets was provided ARZEESNEZE HE BB ARIRE -
for as the production of the coal mine site has not yet UL S MR B EGHETE -

commenced up to the date of disposal.

The above items of property, plant and equipment, except BRIRSREEEI - Lt - BEREE
for mine development assets, are depreciated on a straight- HE NERBERER N FERFTERE -
line basis at the following rates per annum:

Land 2% T 2%
Buildings 10% BF 10%
Furniture, fixtures and equipment  10%-331/:% B~ KENFE 10%-33"/3%
Leasehold improvements 30% or over lease term HEMEEE 30% k1% B
if shorter (fmEE)
Motor vehicles 10%-20% E 10%-20%
Plant, machinery and tools 10%-331/5% BE - #es kT H 10%-33"/5%
The analysis of the carrying values of the Group’s land and AEELREF 2 RMEDTAT :

buildings is as follows:

2016 2015
—E—RE —EF—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Outside Hong Kong, held under  E&BAIMEE

medium-term leases AR ERE 4,054 3,958
At 31 December 2016, the Group has not obtained the land RZE—RE+TZA=+—80 ' x&EY
and building ownership certificate for a land and building AEEBEPERAIPFIRGEREEBEL B
with carrying amount of approximately HK$4,054,000 4,054,000 7L (ZZF — A% : 3,958,000/
(2015: HK$3,958,000) from the relevant PRC government T ZTHREFZIMERERERMBER -
authorities. In the opinion of the directors of the Company, ARRESRE  ARAEBE BN
the absence of formal title to this property does not HREFHEERE  RENZWEHER
jeopardise their values to the Group as the Group has ¥ETeASBERYE 2 BEEERR

paid in full purchase consideration of this land and building TR0 IE =X SE 4 i A% B ) P] BE M &I o

and the probability of being evicted on the ground of an
absence of formal title is remote.
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued) 17. Y% - BERR®E®)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has pledged land RZEBE—ARF+-_A=1+—8 ~E£E#HEF
and buildings with carrying amount of approximately BRE{E474,054,0008 L (ZE—HF : &)
HK$4,054,000 (2015: nil) to secure a bank borrowing ZEEB I RETF - BERTAEE 2R
granted to the Group. TEEZHEA -

18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 18. FEAIIEIERIRER B A RFRE
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FE {3 FE 122 B IR SR TR IR
2016 2015
AL —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHET
Current liabilities nREBE
— Current accounts (note a) — EFIE (Miita) 21,073 16,673
— Unsecured loans (note b) — EEHRER(MiED) 37,958 40,586
— Unsecured renovation loan — EEHEEER
Lodnoted) CHIEEC) ] 15601 .. .1202
74,632 69,285
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
— Unsecured renovation loan — EIEAREER
(note ©) (FfF&Ec) 6,168 11,251

Notes: BisE -

(@  The amount is unsecured, interest-free and repayable on @ BZIEREEN RENARESRER -
demand.

(o)  As at 31 December 2016, unsecured loans in aggregate of ) RZZE—XRE+-ZA=+—80 &EEHA
RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$37,958,000) B A £ AR 34,000,000 (FHE R4
(2015: RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to approximately 37,958,000 L) (ZE—HF : AR
HK$40,586,000)) represented borrowings from PU#EfZeiE 34,000,000 (#8E 7 %740,586,000/%7T) )
AR AT (CATIC Siwei Co., Ltd*) (‘CATIC Siwei”), a non- 157K B A 5= B JE R AR AR BR PO 4 i 2o i R R
controlling shareholder of the Group, for financing the general RAdl([WEME]D) 2EE - HAE—KE
working capital. As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the loans BEBEQRE NZTE—XRFRZZT—RF
carried interest at 1-year RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted TZA=1+—H " ZEZEEFRFTEARRE
by the People’s Bank of China and repayable within one year. TRz —FEARBEERN KT EFF

ENAR—FAER -

* For identification purpose only
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18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES (Continued)

Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, unsecured renovation
loan represented borrowing from CATIC Siwei for financing
the renovation incurred for the office rented from CATIC Siwei.
On 15 May 2014, the Group entered into an operating lease
agreement with CATIC Siwei as landlord in relation to the
tenancy of a nine storey building (the “Property”) (the “Tenancy
Agreement”) of which the renovation amount of the Property
(the “Loan”) was fully financed by CATIC Siwei amounted to
RMB19,500,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$21,769,000)
(2015: approximately HK$23,277,000) with the repayment
term of five years. The Loan carried interest at 5-year RMB
Benchmark Interest Rate per annum quoted by the People’s
Bank of China over the outstanding balance of the Loan plus
any accrued interest. The Group was required to repay not
less than 20% of the principal amount of the Loan and interest
of the Loan annually. Based on the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreement, RMB13,975,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$15,601,000) (2015:
RMB10,075,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$12,026,000))
shall be repayable within one year after the end of the
reporting period and classified as current liabilities. And
the remaining balance of RMB5,525,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$6,168,000) (2015: RMB9,425,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$11,251,000)) is classified
as non-current liabilities. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2014.

18. FESIFIZRMRIR M & N BRI

(&)

PRI IR R R (48)

B aE

(©

L (#8)

R-E—RER_E—AF+_A=+—
A SRR EEFRIERAMEMZEMNE
P T AHABEEM SRR ATETEE
BHEe - RZZE—MERATHA -
AEBBEEMRE(ER¥XE)RBE—
BRNANERF((ZWEDITLI—HEER
Enz((ZHERR])  ZWENEE
HZERD DBEEEMEREEZHE
& H&5E AR 19,500,000 T (HE
R #121,769,00074 7T ) (ZFE —FHF : 4
23,277,000 7T) - RAFREER - ZE
BREREREEEHBRETRAREITH
RAFHARBELEFRRE SR
EREFFE - REBBETGFEENK
RZERARE 220% Rz ERF B - 1§
BERBEMBNETERBE AR
13,975,000 7t (#H& P 49 15,601,000 7 7T )
—ZT—RHF: AR¥ 10,075,000 (HHE
K #712,026,000%8 7)) RS RKig—F
WEE WESEAREEE B THA
R # 5,525,000 7T ( 18 & 7 476,168,000 74
) (ZE2—HF : AR 9,425,000t (48
ER#11,251,0007%8 7)) EH B AERE
BfE - E—PHFBIERAARBAHAE =
T—MERA+RBZAMH -
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18. AMOUNTS DUE TO NON-CONTROLLING 18. FEIFEERIRER B A RRRIE

SHAREHOLDERS/ASSOCIATES (Continued) (&)
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders FEAS FE =R IR SRFRTE (48)
(Continued)
Carrying amount repayable (based on the scheduled EEEEREE(RBEERBBAHTETENK
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement): HER) :
2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
On demand and within EEREER—FAEERE
one year 15,601 12,026
After one year but within —FREEMFR
two years 4,354 4,655
After two years but within MERBERFERN
five years 1,814 6,596
21,769 23,277
Amounts due to associates PES B & N B FIE
The amounts due to associates are unsecured, interest-free JENEE SRR FIAR/EER RO RARE
and repayable on demand. KIBE -
19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 19. REFE R Rz R
2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Cost of unlisted investment in Bt A RIFELETIRE 2 AR
associates 7,537 2,274
Share of post-acquisition profit D {E U EE & % F 4,160 2,542
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REEE N T 2= (2
As at 31 December 2016 and 2015, the Group had RZE—RE;RZZE-—HF+A=+—
interests in the following associates: B AEERTIEE R RFHEEER -
Proportion of
ownership interests or
participating
shares indirectly held
Principal by the Group Proportion of
Countryof place of Registered FEEEEEE voting
Name of entity Formofentty  registration  operation capital RERERASHE power indirectly held Principal activity
BRE R Hhax ITEENE  HRER Bt 2 BEEERZENLA IEEH
2016 2015 2016 2015

e e

Bejing Peace Power Incorporated PRC PRC RMB9,900,000 14.75% 16.23% 14.75% 16.23%  Technology and software
IRATEZR A EF HE (2015; (note) application development
58 RMB,000,000) (M) UBEN
AR%9900,0007C
(Z5-1%:
ARE
9,000,0007%)
Jiangsu Peace Map Incorporated PRC PRC RMB20,000,000 3246%  NATER 3246% NATEE  Domant
Information AL hE e AR 20,000,000 Hi g
Technology Limited”
(*Jiangsu Peace Map”)
IERTEESRE

BRAR(IHATE))

Beiing BmiTechnology ~ Incorporated ~~~ PRC PRC RMB10,000,000 16.28%  NATER 1623%  NAZRER  Sdeof computer
Limited" (*Beijing Bmi") L HE HE ARE10,000,0007 programs and electronic
FRARREERAR equipment; data
(MExA%R]) processing;
aerial photo taking
HEHERERR
EFRE 2BRE:
EREY
Note: The Group is able to exercise significant influence over Beijing BiaE : AEBREHEIEERTEEEEETEE
Peace Power because it has the power to appoint one out of F28h  BREBEREZARMEEE
five directors of that company under the provisions stated in the SR AR R EZ AR AR EEF
Articles of Association of that company. Hf—% o

* For identification purpose only
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

The Group indirectly held 14.75% (2015: 16.23%), 32.46%
(2015: nil) and 16.23% (2015: nil) equity interest in Beijing
Peace Power, Jiangsu Peace Map and Beijing Bmi
respectively through its 81.15% equity interest in Beijing
Peace Map, which held 18.18% (2015: 20%), 40% (2015:
nil) and 20% (2015: nil) equity interest in Beijing Peace
Power, Jiangsu Peace Map and Beijing Bmi respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Company
acquired Jiangsu Peace Map and Beijing Bmi from
independent third parties with an investment cost of
RMB2,800,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,126,000)
and RMB2,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$2,234,000) respectively and they were settled by cash.

On 19 October 2016, Beijing Peace Power further issued
900,000 ordinary shares to third-party investors which
reduced the Group’s interests in Beijing Peace Power from
16.23% to 14.75%, resulting in a loss arising from the
change in shareholding in an associate of approximately
HK$97,000 recognised in profit or loss.

19. REVE N T 2R (&)

IERRXTERRRFAIER R TEZEREEER
T#R R TE RIERBEAKN1818%(ZF
—hHF :20%) 40% (ZE—RHF : E) R
0% (ZE—HF : B)MBAELE  K~&E
EFEBIFAILRATES1.15% AR AR
DAEEREILERRATEZBEEE « Lk
ATERIEREAKN14.75% (ZF—HF :
16.23%) *32.46%( —E—RHF: #) R
16.23% (T — R F : &) (AR -

HE-_ZT—E+-_A=+t—HUIEFEE" K
A Al AIA A R # 2,800,000 70 (FBE R4
3,126,000 7T ) & A E % 2,000,000 7T ( 48
B 1R 492,234,000 7T ) IR E K AN B L
B=FWEETIEFA TE ML RAKIT RS
At o

RZZB—X"F+A+NB ' EERATEEH
EBRE— P RE = HREET7900,000 &
LB - SAEERIERA TEZEREEF
IR 16.28% PR E14.75% » BH AR
—EE & QA 2 IRELI 97,0008 T (R 1B
WHER) 2 B EMELEE -
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19. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 19. REEE N T 2= (2
The financial information and carrying amount, in aggregate, REBERE S QAR (WIEBENERR
of the Group’s interests in associates that are not individually F AREREYR) B ER R IREERSE
material and are accounted for using the equity method is AT -

set out below:

2016 2015

—E—RF —E-RHE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET TET

The Group’s share of profit KEE DR 1,618 2,475
As at As at

31 December 31 December

2016 2015

RZB—RF R-T—h%F
+t=A=+t-HB +=ZA=+—H
HK$’000 HK$'000
T TAT

Carrying amount of the Group’s ~ ANEERIEE KR
interests in immaterial associates B & /A Al x < BRAIE 11,697 4,816
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20. GOODWILL 20. HE
HK$’000
FHAT
Cost 5%:N
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—HFE—HA—H 699,722
Exchange realignment bE H 7R (28,582)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZE—RF+=-_A=+—H
E=—F—XRF—H—H 671,140
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(b)) &t & —FEKI B AR M HE (M5 39()) (35,506)
Exchange realignment ME 5, 8 (56,673)
At 31 December 2016 RZE—R"F+=ZA=+—H 578,961
Accumulated impairment ZEHRE
At 1 January, 31 December 2015 RN—_ZE—HF—H—AQ8 "
and 1 January 2016 +TZA=+—BR=ZT—R"F—H—H 35,506
Disposals through disposal of a subsidiary (note 39(b)) % i@+ & —EHE A &) H & (M sE 39(b)) (35,506)
Impairment loss recognised during the year FAERREEE 183,404
Exchange realignment P A A% (8,519)
At 31 December 2016 R=-E—Xx"F+=A=+—H 174,885
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2016 RZE—XRE+=ZA=+—H 404,076

At 31 December 2015 RZE—RF+=-_A=+—H 635,634
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill has been
allocated to individual CGUSs, being i) the four mining licences
for a coal mine in Tugrug Valley held by a subsidiary of the
Company, Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC (“TNE”), within mining
and exploration business; and ii) the operating segments
under Sinbo Investment Limited (“Sinbo”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “Sinbo Group”) in geographic
information business.

The Group conducted impairment review on goodwill
attributable to the respective CGUs at the end of the
reporting period by reference to the estimated recoverable
amounts. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
goodwill attributable to mining and exploration business is
derecognised through disposal of the Fast Billion Group.
The carrying amounts of goodwill (net of accumulated
impairment losses) as at 31 December 2016 and 2015
allocated to these units are as follows:

20. & (#)

RBEARMS BEEE I EZEERE
EEBEA - A)ERBEREES - AT
#) — & ff /8 2 &) Tugrugnuuriin Energy LLC
([TNE ) #48 Tugrug Valley BEHEH) PO {E £ 1=
BRRR  RiVTBREBRAR((HE] RE
MEBAR(SEA [ FEER]) 2HEER
BN -

AEBL2BETAIKECHEESREELS
URMERRELEERETRERS - HE
—E-XF+-A=+—HLFE KEK
BN TS FE (G 9 B 48 & Fast Bilion &£ EBIE2
RIEFER - RZE—R"ER-T—RF+=
A=Z+—8 " pBREZZEM B8 (0K
SETRERE) 2EEEENT

2016 2015
AL —E-hF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
THET FAET
Geographic information business HI2{5 B 37
— Business application — BB E A ER 71,177 85,112
and services
— Data collection — BB 306,580 488,422
— Development and sales — REAREEE 26,319 62,100
of equipment
404,076 635,634

Mining and exploration business — #7H& & BiiR #75

404,076 635,634
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20. GOODWILL (continued)

Geographic information business

The recoverable amount of the goodwill attributable to the
Sinbo Group of approximately HK$404,076,000 has been
determined based on the fair value less cost of disposal using
market approach. Fair value was determined with reference
to a valuation report prepared by Roma Appraisals Limited
(‘Roma Appraisals”), an independent valuer not connected
to the Group based on the price-to-earnings multiples
(“P/E Multiple”) of comparable companies with similar
business nature and operations as the CGU. The average
P/E Multiple of 50 (2015: 53) and marketability discount rate
of 21% (2015: 21%) and control premium of 40% (2015:
30%) were used. Other key estimation included the cost of
disposal based on estimation by the management of the
Group. Management believes that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amount of the respective CGUs to exceed its
recoverable amount. During the year ended 31 December
2016, impairment loss of approximately HK$183,404,000
(2015: nil) was recognised in profit or loss.

The level in the fair value hierarchy in arriving at the above
recoverable amount is considered under Level 2 with
observable inputs for the assets directly or indirectly.

Mining and exploration business

During the year ended 31 December 2014, the goodwill
of approximately HK$35,506,000 was fully impaired in
previous year due to the unforeseeable technical causes
and the required time for water management program was
longer than expected, resulting in the delay in the overall
production schedule of the coal mine located in Tugrug
Valley (the “TNE Mine”), which resulted in downward
adjustment on the estimated net cash inflows and hence
the recoverable amount of the TNE.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, such goodwiill
has been disposed of through the Disposal (note 39(b)).

20. BHE (&)

HBEEEK

STESEEGEEEZNATKRE B
404,076,000 B L E R AT IZ AR B AN E
BHEKAETE - ARETH2REREE
EmEEs B AEMESEHETEERA

A([BBERTME)) EREEAR (A
PUEBUERBSELBMNAKCEES) W
m&z%gamaw&apﬁ 87 HEHR
HoFAFHMBERBHS00(ZTE—RF -
53) R SHEMHMER21%(ZE—RF
21%) A R R B 40% (=T —HF ¢

30%) c EMEZHEBREHERAN - HE
RAKEERENGE - BEERERBEMZ
ERZNIMAEAEEHTSEREAR
CEABMMERAERBEAKEI S5 - &
BT -RETA=T—HLEFE &
183,404,000 8 LR EEB(ZF— R F :
T)RBEATER

SHEARKRES BN AR BT RS
BE _R(EEERXEREEVBER AR
&) e

PRUR I B R 2255

HE_T--MFE+_A=1t—HIFE &
2K 35,506,000/%EEE@&@EﬁE%%U@Z
18 - B AT R A A A A S KB B 38
HEMFRERNES - &KL Tugrug
Valley #) £ 7 ([ TNE 5 |) (OB B8 £ 5T &
fEIR - MBHEFTRSRAFE T - 8m
TNE 2 FJ YR O & 58 TN B& o

REBE=Z
FEEmED S
39(b)) °

—NETZA=t—HILLEFE -
B E M & (K&
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21. Htt B EE

Deferred
Distribution development Customer Imaging
Licences  Contracts  Copyrights costs  Software Tradename  relationship data Total
BE  AHAK g EERRAA B ERER  EFBE  ¥hEE &3t
HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS 1000
TR T TR T TR TR T TR TR
Cost A
At 1 January 2015 RZF-R5-A-A 180,580 38,906 157,025 104,119 148610 21,239 1,799 75999 128211
Additions hE - - - 66,098 2,398 - - - 68,496
Transfer i fou) #A() - - - (48,857) 17,997 - - 30,860 -
Bcengeresgment | BAZE o) sy 6206104 (19 e8 62§ @AY
At31 Decomber 2015 RZF-RETZAZT-BR
and 1 January 2016 Z5-"E-A-H 170984 36,638 148,680 116,144 160,301 20,110 1,703 101,601 755,361
Additions AE - - - 24,276 - - - 670 24,946
Transfer i fouf (1) - - - (63,779 83,779 - - - -
White-off iz - - - - (8,691) - - - (8,691)
Bcegeredgent | ERRE 0 R eey ks () 03 (19660 sy
At31 December 2016 R=S-AETZA=1-A 159,912 34,452 139,052 69,946 202,618 18,808 1,593 95,661 122,042
Accumulated amortisation Z3tE#RHE
and impairment
At1 January 2015 R_E-1E-A-A 3083 6,881 29,663 222 43,305 4,464 493 25,914 115,99
Charge for the year ERzi - 4791 19,049 - 24,556 220 2 32673 83613
Impaiment loss recognised  FREHESE
during the year 5382 5,500 - 31,907 10220 - - 1671 60,680
Echegeredment  EREE o) R he R el Ry (08
At31 December 2015 AZT-RETZA=T-BR
and 1 January 2016 2 E-f-H 8,080 16,400 46,385 32,760 75,404 6,321 795 83277 249420
Charge for the year Epxit - 3579 17910 - 18559 2,689 R4 10,309 53,368
Impaiment loss recognised  EREZHERE
during the year 65,985 15,167 47804 29,163 43675 1,664 75 17210 220,793
Biminated on wiite-off W3R - - - - (3811) - - - (3811)
Echergereigment  ERFE L e g ke ko ke 1o ... . 6o @81
At31 December 2016 W=E-AETZA=1-H 69,790 33,247 106,164 59,513 125,40 10,567 1,124 85,768 491,576
Canrying values REE
At31 December 2016 W=E-AETZA=1-H 90,122 1,205 32,888 10433 77215 8,241 469 9,80 230,466
At 31 December 2015 R_E-RFT-A=1-A 162,904 20438 102,29 82,384 84,897 13,789 908 3,34 505,939
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Except for software and development costs capitalised
during the years ended 31 December 2016 and 2015 were
internally generated intangible assets, all other intangible
assets were acquired as part of a business combination in
prior years.

The intangible assets, other than licences with indefinite
useful lives and deferred development costs, are amortised
on a straight-line basis over the following periods:

Distribution contracts 8 years
Copyrights 6-8 years
Software 5-10 years
Trade name 10 years
Customer relationship 10 years
Imaging data 3-8 years

No amortisation for deferred development cost was
provided as the developing software is not ready for use.

Copyrights represented a group of registered copyright
of software which related to aerial photo modeling and
processing.

The software mainly represented the graphical and
managing system which can reform the raw data into the
readable outputs, for example: 3D modified graphics and
graphic application software.

Imaging data represented the database of aerial photos
called Digital City, which was established for future sales
of aerial photos and further development of relevant data
collection works.

21.

H\B\EEE &)

GRBEE-_F-R"EFEL-_FT-HF+=-A
=+ —HLEFE - BRETERNEI R FHE
RARNEBELENETLEES - FAEEME
WEERBEFERHEHN—OHME -

B EE(ARERAIEAFH R ME
RE 5 3% PRAN BR SN ) R B AR RN DA T B )
35

DHEH 84F

hir A 6E84E
1t 5104
ElEEy 104F
B BR 104F

M EREE 3E8F

AR FZE R AN R R SH S - DR
R o

KA — A B A R A R R B
S A -

B I ERTERABIEEE AR ER
BB REERS  =#ERETKE
R R BT o

FERBUBIER RBUBM Z MIAEE - Hi2Y
EERKHEMNBE R RAREER RS T
LR ©
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Licences represented Class-A Certificates of Surveying and
Mapping Qualification and Class-B Certificates of Surveying
and Mapping Qualification issued by the Bureau of Surveying
and Mapping. The licences have legal life of 2 to 3 years but
are renewable every 2 to 3 years at minimal cost. The directors
of the Company are of the opinion that the Group would renew
the licences continuously and has the ability to do so.

As a result, the licences are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life because it
is expected to contribute to net cash inflows indefinitely.
The licences will not be amortised until its useful life
is determined to be finite. Instead it will be tested for
impairment annually and whenever there is an indication
that it may be impaired.

As at 31 December 2016, the recoverable amounts of the
licences with indefinite useful life have been determined
based on a value-in-use calculation. That calculation
used cash flow projections based on financial budgets
approved by the directors of the Company covering a
five-year period, with discount rate ranging from 15.49%
to 16.35% (2015: ranging from 15.92% to 16.35%) per
annum. The cash flows beyond the five-year period were
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2015: 3%).
The growth rate was based on the relevant industry growth
rate forecast and does not exceed the average long-term
growth rate for the relevant industry. The key assumptions
for the value-in-use calculation related to the estimation of
cash flows included gross margin and discount rate. Gross
margin represents budgeted gross margin, which is based
on past performance and the management’s expectation
for the market development. The discount rate used is pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
risks specific to the relevant industry. As at 31 December
2016, the recoverable amount of the impaired licences is
approximately HK$90,122,000 (2015: HK$160,775,000)
in aggregate and the impairment loss on licences of
approximately HK$65,985,000 (2015: HK$5,382,000)
has been recognised during the year ended 31 December
2016.

21.

Hi\B\EEE &)

WEREH P BRBEZAEIEER REE
F(RBREEEE N LFCRNBEERE) -
ERAEME-FEZHR  BEME=F
A ASIERAAER AR ° AARESRS
AEBERSRESHPFER - BRI

ARERGE

At - AEBEERER R IR EREA
] REBHAEMERRESRAFE &
RS T ol BEEHERAREERBER -
AT S BF Sl 2 IR E R R 5 EETT
IRAERIE, °

RZZE—R"F+-_A=+—H EEERF
RERZER 2 Y E S EIREAEBE
HEF - sTEFANRESRETERATIERAE
NRAESHEC AFHMRER - FRIAX
NTF15.49% £ 16.35% (—_T—HF : N
15.92% £ 16.35%) - A F HLAINEIR &7
EFABEERERI%(ZTE—HF :3%)
HEORl o B RE TR TRIERERTER A
TeRBEBITENTEHRERE - FH
BEAEZEFEHRIZESAENERARE
ZBEeREMFTER EFNXREEER
X HAERBARBMEEENMSRETRE
Hy o FTARAIR R AT AIAGIR X - REMERETT
¥ABRRERIRFEMSTE  RZT—RF
+TZA=+—8  BEREMNERITKES
AT #590,122,0008 (=T — R 4F :
160,775,000 7T) - REE_T—"F+=
A=+—HIFE  ERERAERREBED
/65,985,000/8 T (ZFE—H 4 : 5,382,000
PBIT) °
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21. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the directors
of the Company further conducted a review of the Group’s
other intangible assets apart from licences as mentioned
above and determined that certain of these assets were
impaired based on the estimated recoverable amounts
with reference to their value-in-use. The value-in-use was
determined based on the estimated future cash flows
discounted at a rate ranging from 12.17% to 17.49%
(2015: 15.92% to 18.35%) per annum. As at 31 December
2016, the recoverable amount of the impaired other
intangible assets apart from licences is approximately
HK$115,592,000 (2015: HK$67,849,000) in aggregate
and the impairment losses of other intangible assets of
approximately HK$154,808,000 have been recognised
during the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$55,298,000).

MI\\\ ﬁ/ﬁ E (nﬁég)

REBEE_Z—ARE+_A=+—"HILEE -
RARESHE—SEHAEBE HMWERE
E(LMERBERIN ETEN YBES

FTZEEECREBGHFAATRECESLRE
EREBEERE - CABEDNRENTESF
1217% E17.49% ( —ZF — 7 F : 15.92%
£18.35%) IR E 7t KA RBEREE
o RZZE—ARF+=ZA=+—8 " BRE
MR RN E B EE R INE & 58
B4 4115,502,0008 L ( — T — R 4F :
67,849,000/87C) - RBIE—E—~F+=
AZ+—HISFE  BEHEREMCEFLEER
EEE4154,808,0008 L ( — T — R F :
55,298,000/ 7T) °



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 %R

215

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBERRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #Z_—F— N NF+_-H=1+—HIFZE

22. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENT

22. A[EHERE

2016 2015
—E—ARE —E—FhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FET

Unlisted equity investment in AR Bz 3E ETARA
the PRC, at cost B’E AR 11,476 8,356

Less: accumulated B BEOREEE

impairment loss (7,011) —
4,465 8,356

The above unlisted equity investment represents investment
amounted to RMB10,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,476,000) (2015: RMB7,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,356,000)) in unlisted equity interest in
a private entity incorporated in the PRC. The investment
is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair value
estimates is so significant that the directors of the Company
are of the opinion that its fair value cannot be measured
reliably.

As at 31 December 2015, RMB3,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,581,000) (2016: nil) under the
contract has not yet been paid and details of the capital
commitments are set out in note 40.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, in view of the
recurring operating losses of the private entity, the directors
of the Company conducted a review on the available-
for-sale investment and determined that its recoverable
amount is less than its carrying amount. As a result, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$7,011,000 (2015: nil)
is recognised.

EatidE EmRAIRE IR —ALARR 2
AR #E (R A R % 10,000,000 7T (FHE 7
#11,476,00087T) (ZE—HF : ARK
7,000,000 7T (8 & 7 49 8,356,000 7T ) ) 2
W& ZARRRBEMAK - ZIER R
FHREKANRRERT 2 - REEARE
HEt 2 EBEAK ARREEREBELAE
LT FEHETE o

RZZE—RAF+-A=+—H ' AHETA
EMS,OOO,OOOEME;SM%ﬁ&,ooo;‘%fz)
(ZZ—RF : T) MR RE@EERFASE
ZFHIBERHIEE40 ©

HE_Z—FRFt+-_A=1t—HItFE &
RILEBERBZEEHCEEE  AQRE
EHAHESREETRF I ETETKE
CROREERAE  AERBEBELY
7,011,000 T (ZE—HFE : T) o
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23. MINING LICENCES 23. BRUEMEAR
HK$’000
FHET
Cost 2
At 1 January 2015 R-E—AF—H—H 1,515,886
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (84,725)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 R-ZE—HF+-_A=+—H8K
—T—-XF—H—H 1,431,161
Disposals through disposal of FERLEMNBATMLE
subsidiaries (note 39(b)) (B 5F 39(b)) (1,402,635)
Exchange realignment b A A (28,526)
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-XRE+ZA=1+—H -
Accumulated impairment RITRE
At 1 January 2015 R-_ZE—RF—H—H 1,515,886
Exchange realignment bE 5, 5 (84,725)
At 31 December 2015 and 1 January 2016 RZFE—AF+-A=1+—HK
—E-RF-H—H 1,431,161
Eliminated on disposals through disposal HBLENB AR ML SR
of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) #155 (FI7E39(b)) (1,402,635)
Exchange realignment bE H 7 (28,526)
At 31 December 2016 R-EB—R"FE+=ZHA=+—H —
Carrying values BREE
At 31 December 2016 R-ZB-AF+ZA=+—H -
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—RF+=—H=+—H —
Mining licences represent the carrying amounts of four PR R R 15 B AL 70 5 o B Tur BB Bayan &
mining rights in respect of the TNE Mine within the RETTBEMNK  BEEEHX1114REZ
administrative unit of Bayan Soum of Tur Aimag in Mongolia TNE#R S/ PNIE R & 2 BREE -

covering area of 1,114 hectares in aggregate.
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23. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, a mining licence is granted for an initial
period of 30 years and a holder of a mining licence may
apply for an extension of such licence for two successive
periods of 20 years each.

No amortisation for the mining licences was provided
for as the production of the coal mine site had not been
commenced since 2009.

The mining licences of the TNE Mine are subject to
impairment review whenever there are indications that the
mining licences’ carrying amount may not be recoverable.
The mining licences were fully impaired during the year
ended 31 December 2014.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
disposed of these mining licences through the Disposal (note
39 (b)).

In performing the impairment testing for the year ended
31 December 2015, the management had determined
the recoverable amount of the TNE Mine using fair value
less costs of disposal, which was derived by using the
discounted cash flow analysis (the “DCF Analysis”). The
DCF Analysis had incorporated assumptions that a typical
market participant would use in estimating the TNE Mine’s
fair value. The DCF Analysis uses cash flow projection for a
period of 13 years up to 2029 and the pre-tax discount rate
applied to the cash flow projection is 25%. In determining
the pre-tax discount rate, the weighted average cost of
capital was used, which was determined with reference to
the industry capital structure based on the figures of similar
publicly traded companies in the stock exchanges of Hong
Kong and the PRC with mining projects, and have taken
into account the specific risks encountered by the TNE
Mine as further detailed below. For the estimation of inflation
rate, inflation rates relevant to the local Mongolian economy
and the coal market were taken as reference.

23. FRIEEER (&)

RE_ZTRERB2EZHEREEEL - R
2 BREERE IR B XA HAB0F - PREERE IR+
BATEERFENNAK - HIR20%F o

MR ZRTES B — TN F AR ERIRE -
BF] b 30 428 e BR AR AR PR VE L R 3 o

TNE &35 2 SRIE M BRIV B PR BUR SRIE R PR
Z BREME Al s R W B RE I TRUER T - &
E_Z-NEFT_A=+—RHIFE - HE
R E BBURE

HE—_Z—XRE+_A=t—HIFE-
AEBEEBLE NS FRERR (T
39(b)) °

ETHEZ—AFT_A=+—HLFE
ZREREE BEEERARERLEK
REFE INERES 2] ME£5E - WHFEARLR
HEeREDM([RBRERESN) - 8RR
ReEMENMESRATISL2EEGHETNE
BSAREREAZER - RRBSRED
MERAEE S NF213FHEZES
RETEA - BRZESREE B ATAGIRE
#25% o BEEDIAIRLER R0 - FRAIETH
BoKA - MiEFHESK AR EITE
BARERE - WIREBRABREER 2 BUEE
FABEESRZ S EM AR B mMERE
BEFRIATGE —F Rl TNETRIZFTE B
R o TRETRRER - 2ZF@EH
S RLE 2 BIRERERTIZZIER
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23. MINING LICENCES (continued)

Other key assumptions used in the calculation of fair value
less costs of disposal of the TNE Mine in the respective
financial year are set out as follows:

(@  During the year ended 31 March 2012, further drilling
works and laboratory tests were undertaken to
determine coal layer structure and thickness and to
verify coal quality. From the laboratory test results, the
calorific value of such samples was in the range of
3,100 to 4,300 Kcal/kg. Since the Group has not been
able to excavate coal with expected calorific value,
the Group decided to revise the cash flow forecasts to
focus on the coal sales of lower calorific value which
has lower expected coal sales price per tonne;

(b) Coal sales price is determined with reference to
market information. In view of the sluggish coal
market condition, the management has reduced the
expected coal price for 2016 (the expected year of
commencement of production) from US$8.53 per ton
in last year’s forecast to US$8.50 per ton in current
year’s forecast. The subsequent increment in coal
sales price is on an average growth rate of 2.2% (2015:
2.2%) based on Australian export price index over the
past 24 years;

(c) Cost of production and gross margin are determined
with reference to the market comparables. The overall
profit margin in the current year’s forecast was ranged
from -123% to -35% throughout the mining project
life; and

(d) In light of recent developments in Mongolia with
regard to the implementation of laws and regulations
related to the mining industry such as the passing of
Resolution No. 194 (“Rs 194”) and Resolution No. 289
(“Rs 289”) in June 2012 and July 2015 respectively
(as explained below), an additional risk premium of 2%
has been factored into the discount rate.

23. RIEME (#)

MBI ERE T E TNERS 2 AR BRI
ERAREAZ LM ERRREHE

REBE-T——F=A=+—HILHF
S ETE—SERTIEREREA
U BEREERBEREER - Wik
HREE - ABAERTAHER 1€
BAS H R EEN T 3,100 F 4,300 F
£/ FT7 AR AEEREZEES
TEHRVEMNEIK - WASEEZRERE
IR E R ETEEIAH /Eﬁé\énfﬁﬁﬁﬁ*%
REVIHE - EHIZER RN EBBEERE
BIK

(@)

\ﬂ%

) HEXREEDN2EMSZELRMERT © i
R ZARETR » t=ZF—NF (58
FHREFE) CEHRERERNS &
BEDEE—FE2EHENE8.53%
TRERFE 2 BEAEHBE8.50% T °
RIFBE24F ZBME O BRI
BREBEZ 2 FHEEAE2.2% (=
T—AHF :22%) :

© HERAREMEDZ2EMBAIEL
RWEBEBEETE -  BHAFE 2 ZEHA
PRIE B FHIN BB EENF-123%
£-35% &

0 EZEREFaBREERRERERATS KK
BITEZRHEE o BIR=-F
——FRNARZE—AFt+tABRBZ
RBRF1M45 ([ REBERFE1945: )

KoREZRFE 28955 ([RBRE2895% |)
(BT Frat) - BESNREBRIRE 2% 2 NA
BRIREK o
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24. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

24, HENFHEEE

Licences Others Total
R Hith a5t
HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT
Cost 2%

At 1 January 2015 R-E—HF—A—H 5,058 18,250 23,308
Additions NE — 383 383
Exchenge realignment | ERBE (83 .. (1,024 . (1,307).

At 31 December 2015 RZE—RAF+—A=1T—8K

and 1 January 2016 —E-RF—A—H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Additions NE — 175 175
Disposals through disposal ERHENE AR

of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) ifo & (F15E39(b)) (4,681) (17,434) (22,115)

. Exchange realignment ... BRBE ..o SR e . (449),

At 31 December 2016 R=ZE—<"F+=-HA=+-—H - — -
Accumulated impairment ZIRE
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—HF—H—H 5,058 18,250 23,308
Impairment loss recognised FRERRZBEREE

during the year — 383 383

Exchange realignment ... BIBE oo @83) o (1,024 ... (1,307),

At 31 December 2015 R-ZE—HF+_-_A=+—8K

and 1 January 2016 —E-RF—A—H 4,775 17,609 22,384
Impairment loss recognised FADHERZREEE

during the year — 175 175
Eliminated on disposals through % i@ &M E A &)

disposal of subsidiaries i B 65 B 4 45

(note 39(b)) (3£ 39(b)) (4,681) (17,434) (22,115)
Exchange realignment PE 3R (94) (350) (444)

At 31 December 2016

RZZB-—AF+-A=+—H

Carrying values
At 31 December 2016

AREE

RZZB-—AF+-A=+—H

At 31 December 2015

R-_E—RFE+-_HA=1—H
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24. EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION ASSETS

(Continued)

Licences as at 31 December 2015 represent the cost of
obtaining or acquiring exploration licences to certain area
in Mongolia with gold, copper and coal deposit and others
mainly comprise geological and geophysical costs, costs
incurred for drilling, trenching and excavation works, costs
incurred for sampling and laboratory works, costs incurred
for evaluation such as environment assessment and
feasibility study, as well as depreciation and labour costs
directly attributable to the exploration activities.

The exploration licences comprise of the followings:

Three exploration licences in respect of a coal mine located
in DundGobi, Mongolia, covering an area of approximately
14,087 hectares in aggregate. The licences and the
exploration cost capitalised for this exploration project
as at 31 December 2015 amounted to approximately
HK$4,775,000 and HK$17,609,000 respectively. During
the year ended 31 December 2016, impairment loss
of approximately HK$175,000 (for the year ended 31
December 2015: approximately HK$383,000) had been
provided as the exploration and evaluation activities had not
yet led to the discovery of commercially viable quantities of
minerals and there has been no further plan for substantive
expenditure on further exploration and evaluation of mineral
resources in the area.

Pursuant to the Mineral Law of Mongolia which was
adopted in 2006, exploration licence is granted for an
initial period of three years and holder of an exploration
licence may apply for an extension of such licence for two
successive periods of three years each.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group has
disposed of these exploration licences through the Disposal
(note 39 (b)).

24, NIRRT HEE &)

RZZ—RF+ZA=+—8  BRERSE
FWBEZLHEEEES ARRERE S
TR BFRER KA R E TR BRE
B RMERYIEARA - BIR - ZE MR T
EEZRA BERER TIEELZKRA
REEAHE M AT IET S SRHE TREL 2K
AR URIFERHREB 2 EESE TR -

BiREIRERE TSR

=IEW MR SR B E DundGobi & B & E &
H4914,087 REE 2 BHE 2 BYIRERR - K=
T-RAFE+-A=+—8 ZHEFEEBE 22
B8 N & AN @ ERA AN 5 B 49 4,775,000 78 7T
X 17,609,000 8L e HE_T— A "F+=
A=T—HIFE ' 89/175,000% T (#
E-T-RAE+_A=+—HIEFE: &
383,000/ 7C) < REBEBECFIREE 2
E BRI &R B M AR IR A E AT
MHEMNEE - BRREE—TTEBNZ
R — SRR AREEREEXSRH
SEEITRE o

BRER —ZENFRAZ K GBERES - I
R RERV L RI=F - BiREER
BATEBERBERNR - BR=F -

BHE-_ZE—XRE+-_A=t+—HIEE"
AEBEFEBEE NS HFHRER (T
39(b)) °
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25. INVENTORIES 25. &
2016 2015
—E-RF —T—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Raw materials and supplies R K K S FE 637 2,022
Finished goods (oh 249 8,563
886 10,585

26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (T0) CUSTOMERS OF  26. B (f¥) HEF & TRFHH
CONTRACT WORKS

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Costs incurred to date plus HEBRIMEEZ
recognised profits RS h0 B R A 521,374 288,080
Less: Progress billings to date & : &= B AIH) TI2EE UK (312,179) (75,506)
209,195 212,574
Analysed for reporting purpose as: Ht ¥R B BT ¢
Amounts due from JEWEFEHITENIE
customers of contract works 221,097 218,312
Amounts due to EREFPEHIIEFIA
customers of contract works (11,902) (5,738)

209,195 212,574
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26. AMOUNTS DUE FROM (TO) CUSTOMERS OF  26. B () BEF SN ITREFIE (&)
CONTRACT WORKS (continued)
Based on the assessment of the directors of the Company, BERAABESNFTG ETEHNIRED
certain contract works have been suspended or have not TEIHARERPHRRRESEERTE
yet been compromised with the customers on amount & At BEAYO IR ZEREKRE Z A
of final billing, as such the related carrying amounts of BEETK - BEZTE—RF+=_A=1+—
contract works are not probable to recover. During the HIEFE  FEERKREFP &I ERIER
year ended 31 December 2016, loss on uncertainty in B85 < T HETE 1% 2 B 18 #913,771,000 7%
respect of collectability of amounts due from customers of TL(ZZ—RF : 914,025,000 7T ) K4
contract works of approximately HK$13,771,000 (2015: 16,479,000 B TR R (=T —hF : T)
approximately HK$14,025,000) and the respective reversal D RIN B AR (FiEE9) °
of approximately HK$16,479,000 (2015: nil) was recognised
in the profit or loss respectively (note 9).
27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 27. EZ R HMEKRRIE
2016 2015
—REF —hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables 2 5 W IR
— from third parties — REE=FH 101,865 81,535
— from a non-controlling — KRB —RIFERR
shareholder 13,688 14,636
115,553 96,171
Less: accumulated impairment loss &, : 2 &R EE S (12,831) (11,748)
102,722 84,423
Amounts due from FEU IEFE B AR 5K
non-controlling shareholders 3,075 3,292
Amount due from an associate U — [l & A RIFIE 452 2,489
Prepayments and deposits FENFRERIEZS 34,456 34,178
Other receivables Hh FEMRIR 42,952 52,449
Less: accumulated impairment loss 8 : Z5tHE{EE B (4,321) (1,662)
38,631 50,787
Total trade and other receivables & 5 K H1th fE Uk R IB 4B %E 179,336 175,169
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. BEZ R EMEWRIE#)

The Group did not hold any collateral over the trade and REEWEE H K H A FEWFKIBIFE £
other receivables. B -

The Group has a policy of allowing credit period to its AEEERTHEREFPEESR  HRGEENT
customers, ranging from 90 to 180 days (2015: 90 to 180 VEIBOXR(ZZE—HF : 0E180K) °
days). The Group may, on a case by case basis and after IR ER B AT f () B END A R (R ETF R R A=
evaluation of the business relationship and creditworthiness, 2%  BETBIHEBACENEERLER -
extend the credit period of certain government related AREZNEREE BEER—FUL -

entities and normally over 1 year for its low default risk.

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables, NTRRIMERR  HREZAHZINE
net of allowance for impairment loss of trade receivables, S EWGRIE (FBR B 5 FEWGRIE 2 BB 18
presented based on invoice date, as at the end of the BE) 2 BREC AT ©

reporting period.

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZE—hF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FiET

Within 90 days P NG 38,869 25,377
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180 KN 6,649 12,238
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365 KA 14,700 18,413
Over 365 days 365 A = 42,504 28,395

102,722 84,423
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. E5 R EMEWRIE #)

The aged analysis of trade receivables which are past due 28 B R IRVE 2 B 5 R YR IR 2 BREe D AT
but not impaired is set out below: N

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—RHEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Neither past due nor impaired B R 180 HA TN R (B 56,392 53,348

Past due but not impaired B E R E

Within 90 days 90~ 21,311 13,502

91 to 365 days 91 E 365K 21,624 11,846

Over 365 days 365 KA+ 3,395 5,727

102,722 84,423

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired as RZE—AREFE=T—HF+=ZA=1+—H

at 31 December 2016 and 2015 relate to a wide range of ZEBEERRBE L E S EYGRIEER Z K

customers. Based on past experiences, the management PR - BEBEATLR  BEERE AR

believes that no other impairment allowance is necessary EEEEVEENEE  WREERBAE

in respect of these balances as there has not been a B EARERE - ZSERDER BB
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still (8] o

considered fully recoverable.
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27. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27.

The movement in the impairment loss of trade receivables

EZREMEWRFEZ)
B S RNEIE Y REEBESMT

is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-REF —ET—AhF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FHET
At 1 January Kn—H—H 11,748 15,946

Impairment loss recognised on LB ZEKRFIEER 2
trade receivables REEE 7,996 6,973
Impairment loss reversed (note)  JA{E E5i8 Rl (Ffi5E) (6,057) (10,462)
Exchange realignment b 5 SR (856) (709)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H” 12,831 11,748

Note: As at 31 December 2016, included in the reversal of impairment
loss, approximately HK$4,577,000 (2015: approximately
HK$8,028,000) was offset against trade and other payables.

The movement in the impairment loss of other receivables

eE: RZF-—AFF+ZA=+—H0' &
4,577,000 7T (=F— A% : 478,028,000
ABTL) st R E B BB E AR E 5 M A
fFE I BOR

Hib IR R ERRESIAT

is as follows:

2016 2015
—E-RF —T-0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
At 1 January n—AHA—H 1,662 1,378

Impairment loss recognised TEMERFIBEER S
on other receivables BIEEE 2,897 373
Exchange realignment PE 5, 8 (238) (89)
At 31 December m+=—A=+—~” 4,321 1,662
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27.

28.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27. ES R EMEWFIE#)
As at 31 December 2016, included in the impairment loss RZZE—ARF+ZA=+—H FAESK
of trade and other receivables are individually impaired HAth fE W HOE 2 R E B 1B A E R KR KE
trade and other receivables with an aggregate balance of ZBEREE S RHAEKGRIE - R8RS HL
approximately HK$17,152,000 (2015: HK$13,410,000) 17,152,000 7¢ (= ZF — 4 : 13,410,000
which are due to long outstanding. BIT) ©
As at 31 December 2016, amount due from an associate RZZE—R"F+_A=+—H ' £452,000
of approximately HK$452,000 (2015: HK$2,489,000) BT (ZZE—RF : 2,489,000 7T) 2 FEUK
represents the trade deposit paid to an associate in relation — R & A RIRIE AR A & SR e A LAk
to the operation of business application and services. Br—EBE AR NNE SRS -
The amounts due from non-controlling shareholders BT AE th B IKGRIE 2 FE W AR AR 3R 2 5K 1B
included in other receivables were unsecured, interest-free REER - RERARERER -
and repayable on demand.
FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 28. MEHERWRIE
2016 2015
—E-XRF —ET—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FA&T
Finance lease receivables R E SRR 10,786 10,786
Less: accumulated impairment loss 3 : 25T REEE (8,776) (8,637)
Total HaEt 2,010 2,149

Certain of the Group’s cameras are leased out under
finance leases. All leases are denominated in RMB. The
average term of finance leases entered into is one year.
The present value of minimum payments is approximate
to its carrying amount and thus, finance lease receivables
are classified as current assets. During the year ended
31 December 2015, the lease term had been further
extended to 31 December 2016.

AEEETREERIREREREML -
BHETNRAREE - IR 2BEHE
ZFHERS—F - ZIENFKZRERER
HEERE @ BEEHERKFEIDERR
PEE -BE_TAFt+_HA=1T—HIt
FE - HBPE—FERE-_T—RF+_-A
=t—H-
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28. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 28. RiEHEEWFIE #)
The finance lease receivables are interest-free and secured BMEHERKARIEBEREZERUMEEZE
over the cameras leased. Included in the finance lease GHEIT - STAREHERBFIBLRE
receivables balance with carrying amount of approximately B 4 £2,010,0008 t(Z T — A F:
HK$2,010,000 (2015: HK$2,149,000) which is past due 2,149,000 87T ) 2 FRER R E R BH] -
as at the end of the reporting period for which the Group AEDWR A rT U E - RSB I E R R
has not provided for impairment loss because it is still R EE R -

considered as recoverable.

The movement in the impairment loss of finance lease EERERKGIEZREBEEENT
receivables is as follow:

2016 2015

—B-AF —E-hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FERT FAT

At 1 January n—A—H 8,637 —
Impairment loss recognised B E 1 & e IR R

on finance lease receivables ZB(EEE - 8,637

Exchange realignment BEE 54 8 B 139 —

At 31 December Rt+-—A=+—H 8,776 8,637

As at 31 December 2016, included in the impairment loss of RZE—RE+ZHA=1+—8 it AREMR

finance lease receivables are individually impaired balance EREWHIR 2 RERBE R RIARKE 2 E5R

of approximately HK$8,776,000 (2015: HK$8,637,000) EIRESREEA8,776,0008 T (—T—FRF :

which are due to long outstanding. 8,637,000/%7T) °
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29. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2016, bank deposits of approximately
HK$197,000 (2015: approximately HK$3,308,000) in
aggregate have been pledged to banks to secure certain
projects in relation to data collection and processing and
will be released upon completion of services pursuant to
the agreement. The pledged bank deposits are classified as
current asset as these projects will be completed within one
year pursuant to the agreement. The pledged bank deposits
carried interest at market rates which ranged from 0.35% to
1.50% (2015: 0.35% to 0.39%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2015, a one-year term bank deposit
of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,370,000) (2016: nil) has been pledged to a bank
to secure an interest-bearing borrowing of an equivalent
amount as disclosed in note 32(a) and is repayable on
demand. The pledged bank deposit carried interest at
market rates at 0.30% per annum and was classified as
current assets. During the year ended 31 December 2016,
the pledged bank deposit was released upon the settlement
of the borrowing.

29. EIEHRITER

R-ZZE—ARF+-_A=+—8 & H#%
197,000/ 7T (—Z— A4 : 493,308,000/%5
70) BIRITE R B E IR FRITAERE T &
BREIRERIEIER - WIREHENTRZS
RIS EFERRG: - ERIPIRITER D EARE
BE AZSHEHSRBHBER —FAT
X o BEEIRIRI TR IEMISFEFIE0.35% =
1.50%(=—Z—AF : 0.35%=0.39%)zT & °

R-_ZE—RHEFE+_A=+—HH AR
100,000,000 7t ( 18 & % #9119,370,000 %
L) (ZE—RF : B) 2 —FHRITEHRE
ERF—BRTURR-IESERARN S
RITER - MK FAHE - ZEREA
REREE  BEBRTEIEMISEN R
0.30% T8 ' WD EARBEE - BEZ
T—ARE+-_A=+—HILEFE H BEFR
IERERNBEE KRR
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30. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits with maturity within three
months or less from initial inception. Bank balances carried
interest at market rates ranging from 0.01% to 1.23% (2015:
0.01% to 1.55%) per annum as at 31 December 2016.

Included in bank balances and cash are the following
amounts denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the entities to which they relate:

30. RITEBRRIRE

RITHEAKNREEEAEEBRFANRE M
FBBR=18A Ak AT I & BRRTT
TFk o RITAERIE T —A"F+_A=1+—
Bz mSEFE00I% E1.23% TR (=ZF
—HF  0.01%E1.55%) °

TIRERNEEE 2 INEEIE L T
ANSBITHEBRIES

2016 2015
—E—REF —EF—hHF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FiET

HK$ BT 12,555 40,005
RMB AR 418 224
uss$ ETT 2,383 143
EURO BT - 137

As at 31 December 2016, bank balances and cash of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$119,732,000 (31 December 2015: HK$124,382,000).
RMB is not freely convertible into currencies. Under the
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to
exchange RMB for foreign currencies through banks that
are authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

R-ZZE—RE+-_A=+—H &5E
NMARBHEZROEHERA SO A
119,782,000 (=& — A F + = A
=+—H 124,382,000/ 7C) - AR
AEHLRAHMER « BEBEFHBEAHAIIN
EERIEOI RAERE  SERMETERE
REBRES BB EEITINE EBHIRIT
AR B RINE -
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31. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 3. BEZRHEMENRIE
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables INTARREHR  RBEZAHZINE
presented based on the invoice date at the end of the SN FRIE 2 BRER AT ©

reporting period.

2016 2015
AL —E-RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT

Trade payables aged B 5 EMNFERR
Within 90 days 90K 74,171 65,251
91 to 180 days 91 £ 180K 19,228 10,343
181 to 365 days 181 £ 365K 32,297 24,251
Over 365 days 365 KA E 59,214 52,420
184,910 152,265
Other payables and accruals HitnENRIBREIRER 73,197 66,204
258,107 218,469
The credit period granted by suppliers and sub-contractors RZZT—AF+=A=+—H8  #HEEFED
is normally 90 to 180 days as at 31 December 2016 (2015: BEFETHEESEEAIVEISOLA(ZE
90 to 180 days). The Group has financial risk management —hF :90FE180K) e NEEFIE T 5
policies in place to ensure that all payables are settled [B\f% B SR DA REARFT B B B A IME B

within the credit timeframe. BRIEZR NS ©
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32. BORROWINGS 32. B8
2016 2015
—E-REF —_ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current liabilities i =R
Secured bank loan (note a) BEMRITER (FEa) 376 119,370
Unsecured bank loans (note b)  EEIFIRITE X (MsEb) 30,248 24,733
30,624 144,103
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Secured bank loan (note a) BEMRITER (FzEa) 626 —
Total borrowings - CCEE] 31,250 144,103
Carrying amount repayable JEEEREE
(based on scheduled (RIEESHE
repayment dates set out FrETEEEAH) -
in the loan agreements):
On demand and within one year JEEKEEN —FRNEE 30,624 144,103
After one year but within —FRELMFNR
two years 376 —
After two years but within MERBERLER
five years 250 -

31,250 144,103
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

The exposure of the Group's borrowings to interest rate

changes is as follows:

NETZA=+—HIFFE

32. B&#)

AEBEERN RS 2 MBI TR -

2016
S S
HK$’000
T

2015
—E-hF
HK$'000
THET

Fixed-rate borrowings
Variable-rate borrowings

8,922

144,103

The ranges of effective interest rates (which are also equal

AEBEEERMNE(FERREHFX)

to contracted interest rates) on the Group's borrowings are HVEEE A NPT
as follows:
2016 2015
AL —E-hHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
T THETT
Effective interest rate: BERRAE
Fixed-rate borrowings ELEBE 5.7% t0 6.2% N/A i A

Variable-rate borrowings

3
G
m
\

i

5.7% £6.2%
6.18%

5.65% t0 6.6%
5.65% £ 6.6%
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

As at 31 December 2016, a secured bank loan of approximately
RMB898,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$1,002,000) is
secured by the Group’s land and building with carrying amount
of RMB3,631,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$4,054,000).
The loan carried interest at a fixed rate of 6.2% per annum
and repayable within three years by monthly installment of
approximately RMB28,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$31,000) for the purpose of general working capital).

As at 31 December 2015, a secured bank loan of
approximately RMB100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$119,370,000) is secured by the Group’s pledged bank
deposits with carrying amounts of RMB100,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$119,370,000)). The loan carried interest
at the RMB Benchmark Interest Rate quoted by the People’s
Bank of China per annum and repayable within one year for the
purpose of general working capital.

As at 31 December 2016, the unsecured bank loans of
RMB27,094,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$30,248,000)
(2015: RMB20,720,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$24,733,000)) were used for the purpose of general work
capital.

32. EE@®

fE

(@)

RZE—RF+_A=+—H ' —EHHA
R #5 898,000 7T (1HE 7 471,002,000 % 7T)
ZHEERETERAASEFEREAAR
# 3,631,000 7t (#H& 72 494,054,000 7 7T )
2T RIEFIEEIR o ZEFRBAIE—RE
BEAD  1£6.2% ZBEEFAELE - W
#EBRE A S BAERENOAREK 280007t (18
ER#A31,0008TT) R=FREE -

R—ZE—FRE+=—A=+—H ' —18
4 A R #100,000,0007T( # & B 4
119,370,000 70 ) 2 B IFRITE KA A
£ BER T (E A AR 100,000,000 7T (18E
R #)119,370,0007%8 7T ) 2 B E IR R 1717
RIEEA - ZERAE—REEES &
B ARBITATIR 2 AR B EFF Rt
B WER—FRNEE -

RoZTE—RE+-_A=+—8 AR%
27,094,000 7T (48 & 1 49 30,248,000 % 7T.)

—T—hHF: AR¥20,720,0007T (HE
R %) 24,733,000 7)) 2 B IRIRITE
RE—REEESD -
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32. BORROWINGS (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, all secured and unsecured
bank loans amounting to approximately HK$31,250,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB27,992,000) (2015:
HK$24,250,000 (equivalent to RMB20,315,000)) were
guaranteed and indemnified by a director of the Company
and a subsidiary of the Group.

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had available banking
facilities of approximately RMB370,898,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$414,071,000) (2015: RMB370,405,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$442,152,000)), out of
which approximately RMB342,906,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$382,821,000) (2015: RMB246,958,000)
(equivalent to approximately HK$294,794,000)) was not
utilised.

32.

B8 #®)

R-ZTE—XNE+-A=+—H  FrBEHEEMH
MAEEHIRTTE A 531,250,000 7t (48
BRI AR 27,992,0007T) (ZT—REF :
24,250,000 % 7T (F8E 1M A K ¥ 20,315,000
TL)) AARR—REERAEE B
NAIRHEIEREREE -

R-ZE—hAE+-A=+—0 X&EEEAH
AIFAIRTTRLE 495 AR #370,898,0007T (18
ER#1414,071,00087L) (ZE—RHF : A
R # 370,405,000 7T (#8E 7 %) 442,152,000
Bot)) 0 B4 AR 342,906,000 7t (48
ER#1382,821,000/87L) (ZE—HF : A
FR¥& 246,958,000 7T (18 7 49 294,794,000
BIL)) WARENA ©
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES 33. AIRRERE
2016 2015
—E-RE —EF-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAT
Convertible Note | (note a) AMRER (iita)
Liability component =N 383,404 343,467
Equity component Bmapty 139915 139,915
523,319 483,382
Convertible Note Il (note b) AR Z 1 (FEEb)
Liability component B & H 85,878 77,999
Equity component IS _ _ 17,083 17,083
102,961 95,082
Non-current portion: FETRENEL D
Liability component BEEMD 469,282 421,466
Equity component = 156,998 156,998

626,280 578,464
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

On 17 June 2010 (the “Issue Date I”), the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount
of HK$954,100,000 (the “Convertible Note I”) as part of
the consideration to acquire 100% interest in MIG Resources
Limited (formerly known as “Well Delight Holdings Limited”).
The Convertible Note | was matured on 17 June 2015 (“Maturity
I”), subject to an option of the holder of the Convertible Note
| (“Noteholder I”) to convert the whole or part of the principal
amount of the Convertible Note | into ordinary shares of the
Company at a conversion price of HK$1.1 per share (adjusted
from HK$0.22 per share as a result of the share consolidation
on 20 November 2012 and which may be subject to further
adjustment). The Convertible Note | is non-redeemable prior
to the maturity date. The Company has the right to extend
the maturity date in respect of the outstanding amount of
the Convertible Note | for another five years (the “Derivative
Component”), which has been exercised on Maturity I.

The Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the Issue
Date | which amounted to approximately HK$948,237,000.
The Convertible Note | contains three components — liability
component, equity component and the Derivative Component.
The fair value of the liability component of the Convertible Note
| was calculated using cash flows discounted at a rate based
on an equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent non-
convertible bond. The fair value of the equity component and the
Derivative Component were determined based on the valuation
carried out by Asset Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional valuer, by using the Binomial valuation model.

33. MR EE (&)

RZZE—TFAATERA(RTESL
KA R B 1T A% 78 4 954,100,000 7 7T
ZHFHZEZS A HRKRER ([ ATRRERE
1) /& & Y& BEMIG Resources Limited ( A
7% [ Well Delight Holdings Limited |)
100% #Em A EB D RE o ATMRERIN =
T—RENATERESBHEHEEL) 7
BEERI2FBEA(TEREFEEAL IE
BRIAATZABRE(R=2E—=F+—
A=+ HRHE M EAR0.228 L T A
PRI O] ge it — 2 T AR ) A5 AT AR R AR
|2 R AN HBRBARE 2 EB
f% o AT R IR BRI A ER - A
NREREGTIRRER I 2 A LBEE Y
JIEMEBERAFE((STETARG] - A
ARIREERB | BATEZAER) -

AR ERIIEETERIZ AR BN -
S RE#) /948,237,000 7T © A IR E 1%
BIE= AR B — BESMD - ERIBH
RETETEE D - TIRRER 2B &K
ZARERAREETRERES RSN
SRR AIRS R EIR AT E - 5T
PERTETETD 2 AR BERERBLE
EGEMTHEEETEEMER QR
AZENEERE T2 (AEETE °
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes:(Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

On Maturity I, the Company exercised its right to extend the
maturity date of the Convertible Note | for another five years,
from 17 June 2015 to 17 June 2020, with the outstanding
principal amount of HK$560,580,400 (‘Extended Convertible
Note I”), the then liability component, equity component and
the Derivative Component were derecognised. No other terms
and conditions of the Convertible Note | have been amended.
The Extended Convertible Note | was stated at fair value on the
Maturity | which amounted to approximately HK$463,636,000.
The Extended Convertible Note | contains two components
— liability component and equity component. The fair value of
the Extended Convertible Note | as a whole, which composed
liability component and equity component, was determined
based on the valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals, an
independent professional valuer, by using Binomial valuation
model. The fair value of the liability component of the Extended
Convertible Note | was calculated using cash flows discounted
at a rate based on an equivalent market interest rate for an
equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value of the equity
component of the Extended Convertible Note | was calculated
by subtracting the fair value of the liability component from the
fair value of the Extended Convertible Note | as a whole.

33. MR EE (&)
B - (&)

(@)

(%)

REEIE - NRRITRGATRKRERIZ
A BERAFT AT —AHF A
++HtHEERE_ZE-_FTFA+EH
RIE R IR AR £ %8 5560,580,4007%8 7T ([ &
ERWRRERE)  BRNBESN - #
b fn ROTE T AR IR o WHEE
IR RIR | 2 HAD R R R - £SHEHR
ABRREEIZRISEIZARENNE &
¥4 %) /5 463,636,000 7 7T o A% JE HR AT # fi%
ZR | BIEMEAK MY —BES D kEs
D o LIEHATIRRR R | (1B A — R EE

ZAREBREAES D RERED - R
MBY BEGEMESBEETHREA=E
NAEREET ZMEETE - LEH R
BEEIZAESIMHZ AR BERBRESIER]
BREH 2 RAEMSHENB R EIE
FERTE o (SFEHA TR EEIR | 2 e EB 10
Z AR EEE R ER (R —E
BE)ZARBREBEIHD 2 AR EE

s
= o
ZAF
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33. MR EE (&)

Bt - (A7)

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)
@@  (Continued) @ (&)

FA - ATRRRERIZAERD - D
ROTET AR 2 ZBEFIT

The movement of the liability component, the equity component
and the Derivative Component of the Convertible Note | for the
year is set out below:

Liability component Equity component Derivative Component
BEHH i fETAHH
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
Z-5E ZE-RE ZE-XF ZE-TE ZE-RE I il3
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THn TEL T Thn TEn T
Carrying amounts BafE
At beginning of the year G2 343,467 546,004 139,915 298,856 - (34,560)
Imputed interest expenses of TARZEIRE
Convertivle Note | rote ) HEERED) - 29671 - - - -
Conversion of Convertible Note | (note )~ & RTEIRZ | (M3t - (15,145) - 8,279) - 1,741
Change in far value recognised RNERTHRRL
in proft or loss (note i DAHEEE () = - - - - (64,125)
Derecognise of iabity component, RESRIBEHH -
equity component and ERHHRITELA
Derivative Component on Maturity | BHTEER - (560,580) - (290,581) - 96,944
Fair value of Extended Convertible IR 1T O
Note | recagnised on Maturity | MARZEIZ D0 fE - 323721 - 139915 - -
Imputed interest expense of BEEARERI
... tended Conetle Note otel) | BEMEER (W) BT 9 . I .. [ - [——
At end of the year EX 383,404 343,467 139915 139915 = -
Notes: FE -
()  The liability component is subsequently measured at () BEIFIOHCEREAERNERELR

amortised cost using effective interest method by applying
an effective interest rate of 12.91% per annum. Imputed
interest expense of approximately HK$29,671,000
was recognised in profit or loss for the year ended 31
December 2015.

BEXNAGTE MERZERSF
FEE1291% HEFNERAIH
29,671,000 TEREE=-Z—H
F+_A=+—RIEFERIBNRE

.
277
o ©
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

14,512,727 shares (2016: nil share) were issued upon
conversion of the Convertible Note | in total amount of
approximately HK$15,964,000 for the year ended 31
December 2015 (2016: nil). At the time of conversion,
the proportional amounts of the convertible note equity
reserve, the Derivative Component and the carrying value
of the liability component were transferred to share capital
and share premium as proceeds for the shares issued
(note 36(b)).

The Derivative Component was measured at fair value on
Maturity | with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss. The Derivative Component was classified as
derivative financial asset in the consolidated statement
of financial position until extinguished on conversion or
redemption.

The fair value of the Derivative Component of the
Convertible Note | was calculated using Black-Scholes
model with the major inputs as follows:

Maturity |
Stock price 0.54
Exercise price 1.100
Expected Volatility 70.99%
Risk free rate 1.241%

As the Black-Scholes model requires the input of highly
subjective assumptions, change in subjective input
assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
Further details of the principal terms and conditions
regarding the issue of the Convertible Note | have been
set out in the circular of the Company dated 12 May
2010.

33. MR EE (&)

BieE - (4%)

(@)

(%)

Bzt (&)

(i)

(i)

HE_T—RF+-_A=+—H1t
FZ 14,512,727 R (—ZF—X
F 2R R AEIRE 415,964,000
BIL(ZE—RF: ) 2 BRE
BRI BT - RILIAR - TR ERE
R - ITET AL R a & Hm
2 REEIZ L flsE B = A R AR5 5
& {EAD BTGB RE (T
36(b)) °

TTETARMNEREHBHERAE
B MAREBEZEHRNIBERE
R o PTET AB MRS B
RARDBBITEMBEE EERAN
BYBEOMABFERL

AMEREBRIZTETARODZ AR
BIERR 7 - A BT E AT
B ZRATEN2HMOT

A
f&(E 0.54
1TEE 1.100
TEERR IR 70.99%
4 [ fr 1) 2R 1.241%

HRANR - FAREATRASTE
TEM KRR - TEMEBARBRR
ZEBAH AR BEETERERY
&  FEBTIRRERIZEI2K
ARG 2 — T RHBER A AR A
BR-E—TFRRT-HZEE-
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(iv)  The liability component is subsequently measured
at amortised cost using effective interest method by
applying an effective rate of 11.59% (2015: 11.59%)
per annum. Imputed interest expense of approximately
HK$39,937,000 (2015: HK$19,746,000) was recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2016
(note 10).

On 2 August 2013 (the “Issue Date II”), the Company issued
a five-year zero coupon convertible note in principal amount of
HK$1,170,000,000 as part of the consideration for acquiring
100% interest in Sinbo. Subject to adjustments, convertible note
in additional principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in aggregate
(the “Contingent Consideration”) would be issued also as
part of the consideration for acquiring 100% interest in Sinbo
(together with the convertible note in principal amount of
HK$1,170,000,000, the “Convertible Note II"). The Company
issued the Convertible Note Il in aggregate principal amount of
HK$80,000,000 on 26 March 2014. The Convertible Note Il will
be matured on the business day falling on the fifth anniversary
of the date of issue, subject to an option of the holder of the
Convertible Note Il (‘Noteholder II”) to convert the whole or part
of the principal amount of the Convertible Note Il into ordinary
shares of the Company at a conversion price of HK$0.25 per
share (subject to adjustment) at any time from the issue date up
to maturity date.

The Convertible Note Il comprises of three parts:

— a principal amount of HK$80,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate
Tranche A Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment;

— a principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate of
Tranche B Convertible Note Il which is not subject to
adjustment.

33. MR EE (&)

Bt - (A7)

(@)

(#&

Bzt (&)

(iv) BEEDGOEEERERAEEIREHE
RAGE IERZERENEAR
11.59% (ZZF—FRF : 11.59%) ° fi
EF) B #739,937,000/8 T (==
—H 4 $19,746,000787T) ERNEE
—E-RE+ZA=+—BILFER
B (MIEE10) °

R-Z—=FNA-B(%TEBI])
AN A R 1T R 4 %8 41,170,000,000 78 TT
2 AFHRTZELSRRER - (EARES
E100% s 2 BHRE - LBFARIE -
K 9N B4 1T 2K & 48 %8.80,000,000 7% 7T 2 7]
BREERANKE]D @ IFEAKE
BE100% w2 BHRB(EREASEA
1,170,000,000 8 Tt 2 AJ A B & - B A
[MREZEEN]) - ARER T —0F=
A Z+7X BE174A % 4858 80,000,000 47T
Z AR o AHAREIEIR B ETH
HERmAAFTHEEEXE R - TRk
ZRIZEEA(EBBEEAN) EER
BTAMEE R H A B IRE0.2558
T2 ARE (] TR GUTRREEIZ
REER IR HILARAR 2 L@

AR | B IR = @A I
— AftTBREBEERIZASBA K
80,000,00078 7T (7] FFH%E) :

- AtITBEBRERIZASEAHK
870,000,00078 7T (Al FIAFEE) :

- BHtUBRRBREEIzA&REA L
300,000,00078 7T (‘R Al FIAFEE) ©
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(®)

(Continued)

The Company cannot unilaterally redeem all or any part of the
Convertible Note Il prior to the maturity date without the prior
written consent of the Noteholder Il. Subject to the consent
from the Company, the holder of Tranche B Convertible Note I
may request the Company to redeem up to all of the principal
amount outstanding under the Tranche B Convertible Note Il on
one or more occasions at any time prior to its maturity date.

The Contingent Consideration would be adjusted in the event
that the audited consolidated net profit after tax of Sinbo Group
attributable to the owners of Sinbo (net of minority interests) for
the nine months ended 31 December 2013 (the “PAT”) was less
than HK$80,000,000, and the consideration shall be adjusted
by deducting the sum equivalent to the shortfall between the
PAT and HK$80,000,000 subject to a maximum deduction of
the sum of HK$80,000,000.

The Tranche A Convertible Note Il with the principal amount
of HK$870,000,000 in aggregate which was not subject
to adjustment and the Tranche B Convertible Note Il with
the principal amount of HK$300,000,000 in aggregate was
accounted for using split accounting as the corresponding
conversion option can be settled by issuing a fixed number
of the Company’s own equity instruments. They were initially
recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il amounting to
approximately HK$923,758,000 which comprises a liability
component with fair value on the Issue Date Il of approximately
HK$723,889,000 and an equity component with fair value
on the Issue Date Il of approximately HK$199,869,000. The
fair value of the liability component was calculated by Roma
Appraisals using cash flows discounted at a rate based on an
equivalent market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible
bond. The fair value of the equity component was determined
based on the valuation carried out by Roma Appraisals using
the option pricing model.

The Convertible Note Il contains three components —
liability component, equity component and the Contingent
Consideration.

33. MR EE (&)
B - (&)

(0)

(%)

ARABREHAAF - EREGEEFAAN
MELEERRE  TREHHEQZEHK
EAIED AR R » FAR AR ER
BHL AR 25 E AR BRAQR]RN
AHRABER — A ZREE RS BB
AMERBIET 2R AL R 2 KNE
e

WRBE—T—=F+_A=+—HI1h
EANEREE AERNEEE 2 KT/
AT F ([BRBERE]) Ok D2
#= ) 1K 74.80,000,000 % 7T 8l A F A 7=
FARE - BZREAHRGRT & HE
80,000,000/ L 2 =R M AR - &% A
33.80,000,000 78 7T ©

HAEEZ LB BETARR
NEBETHE 2 RARTAMEN B
% 58 & +£ 5 870,000,000 7T 2 At 7]
BEEN(CRAI PR RAEEBAEA
300,000,00078 7T 2 BHEL AT 32 AR Z 45 1| 54
BAoEMesEAR - ZEZ B EANET
B ER 132 A £ {E 47 923,758,000 78 TTHERR.
BIEAEHN (RETRHIZARELEY
723,889,000/8 T ) k= EB» (R EE1TH
1l 2 A A (B A #199,869,000/87T) - &
BHPZ AR ERESTEEBRSIER
BRESZREMSAEURESREIIR
FEFTE  EFDZAAEREHES
HEFTER AR E ERETTZAEET ©

AHRRER I BRE= AR — BEE
0~ AR RARKAE -



242

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

()

(Continued)

On 26 March 2014 (“Issue Date llI”), the PAT has been met
and the Company issued the Tranche A Convertible Notes Il in
the aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000. They are
initially recognised at fair value on the Issue Date Il amounting
to approximately HK$108,486,000 which comprises liability
and equity component with fair value on the Issue Date
Il of approximately HK$51,149,000 and HK$57,337,000
respectively. On the same date, the Contingent Consideration
no longer existed and derecognised. The fair value of the liability
component was calculated by Roma Appraisals using cash flows
discounted at a rate based on an equivalent market interest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The fair value of
the equity component was determined based on the valuation
carried out by Roma Appraisals by using the option pricing
model. As at 31 December 2015, the Tranche A Convertible
Note Il with aggregate principal amount of HK$80,000,000 has
been fully converted.

The movement of the liability component and the equity
component of the Convertible Note Il for the year is set out
below:

33. MR EE (&)

BT -

(b)

(&)
(%)

R-ZE—WNF=A=-+ B &THEH
M) - BREFEBAIEEERRARRZEITA
4% #8 %8 /80,000,000 T 2 A#t A 3 A%
ER - ZEZZHEEARBETEHIZRA
£ fE#7108,486,000 8 LHER  BIEAE
DR D(RBETBHNZAALEDH
#751,149,0007% Jt & 57,337,000 7T ) °
BB KARETHTE  WEUEER -
BEINZAAEHESTHEAREIE
AR ES 2 RAEMSHEURS REM
WAEAE - BB Z AR ERERE
SEEFT R A EBRNHET 2 mEE
F -R-_Z—RAF+-_A=+—8 &%
4858 £ 80,000,000 7T 2 A#E AT #2 1% 45
1B B -

EPTHRRERE 2 B B RS 2
BRI :

Liability component Equity component
aEHn BRI
2016 2015 2016 2015
ZE-RE “ZT-RfF —E-RE “T-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR T THER THET
Carrying amounts REE
At beginning of the year E3) 77,999 116,660 17,083 50,553
Imputed interest expenses (note i) BB HZ (D) 7,879 8,532 - -
Conversion of Convertible SRBTBREEI
Note Il (note i) (i) ol @riey = (33,470)
At end of the year FX 85,878 77,999 17,083 17,083
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33. CONVERTIBLE NOTES (Continued) 33. AIREE &)
Notes: (Continued) PiE - (42)
(o)  (Continued) () (&)

Notes: BaaE -

i) The liability component of Convertible Note Il is ) AIRBRIEI R %%B\{ﬁﬁ?é@iﬁ%ﬁl%%
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective PR IZ B SR AT & - FTEA 2
interest method by applying an effective interest rate BERFHEB9.35%£10.07% (=
of 9.35% to 10.07% (2015: 9.35% to 10.07%) per TR 9.85%%10.07%) © &%
annum. An imputed interest expense of approximately MBFX 47,879,000 B TTEREE
HK$7,879,000 was recognised in profit or loss for the —FAFt-A=t+-BHLFE
year ended 31 December 2016 (year ended 31 December Stk E%(ESZE:%—EEE-I—:_H
2015: approximately HK$8,532,000) (note 10). =+ —BIEFE - #98,532,000%7T)

(MF7E10) o

(i) 264,000,000 shares (year ended 31 December 2016: nil i) HBEZF-RAFT_A=t—HILHF
share) were issued upon conversion of the Convertible J& + 264,000,000 i 13 (B = —F
Note Il in total amount of approximately HK$66,000,000 —AF+TZA=tT-HALFE: T
for the year ended 31 December 2015 (year ended 31 R B S A& $£4966,000,00078 7T (B
December 2016: nil). At the time of conversion, the EZFAF+TZA=THILF
proportional amounts of the convertible note equity B F) 2 MRERIFFET - R
reserve, the equity component and the carrying value of SLIREY - AR SR IR A A - A
the liability component were transferred to share capital #hin R B EEM < ARE B R L I3 5
and share premium as proceeds for the shares issued ERARBRGEE - (EREEITRN

(note 36(c)). P55 (Mf3E 36(c)) °
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34. DEFERRED INCOME

34. IEFEWA

2016 2015
—E-RE¥ —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Balance at beginning EF) 2 45 ER
of the year 4,658 4,934
Derecognised through disposal 7 i 1 & I8 2 5] BUB #ER
of subsidiaries (note 39(b)) (P 5E39(b)) (4,152) —
Additions during the year F LN 276 —
Exchange realignment ME H B (518) (276)
Balance at end of year RERZ ek 264 4,658

During the year ended 31 December 2016, a subsidiary
in the PRC received a subsidy from the government of
the PRC for financing a business application and services
project. Since the project has not yet commenced as at
31 December 2016, the received subsidy is recognised as
deferred income in non-current liabilities.

A subsidiary in Mongolia received subsidies from the
government of Mongolia for financing the establishment of a
processing plant for mining and exploration business. Since
the investment cost for constructing the processing plant
as well as the related government subsidies are still subject
to negotiation with the government, the received subsidies
are recognised as deferred income in non-current liabilities.
The government grant was derecognised through disposal
of subsidiaries during the year.

RBE_T—AF+A=+—BLFE "
A2 B B B 2 IR R 2R B A B U )
Bt URBIEEAEREEBRTES - &
REER-ZZFE—R"ET-A=1+—HHEKH
T RN IERE B EAER SR
WA

SHEHN—HNBARER S BEBUTR T —
FRPE  UREERRELYRETHIE
HES - IR TRGERIRE KA R AEREK
R B & AT RBA R - Bt - EREIR
APENIFRBDRERIRELTRA - F£R
B RS B EHE A REURRER -



ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3R 245

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE_—F—NF+-H=1—HIFF

35. DEFERRED TAXATION 35. IELERIIE

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for N TREETRIBEEARRMBERETZS

financial information purposes: 7
2016 2015
—E—RF —E—HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT FAET
Deferred tax assets BETRIREE 48 137
Deferred tax liabilities EERIERE (19,497) (60,212)

Balance at end of year RERZ 54 (19,449) (60,075)
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued) 35. IEAERIIE (2
Deferred tax liabilities (assets) recognised in the REMBEARRKRFIER ZBELEHIBEE (B
consolidated statement of financial position and their E)RERAFERBTFE 2 ZEHIAT :
movements during the current and prior years are as
follows:
Fair value
adjustment

arising from
acquisition of
subsidiaries

WM A B

BEEz Others Total
AREFE Hity a5t
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
THT FAT FAT
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE—A%E—A—H 70,247 (145) 70,102
Credited to profit or loss  REZEETA (10,331) — (10,331)
Exchange realignment  [& 5 %8 296 8 304

At 31 December 2015 R-ZT—FHF+_A=+—HK
and 1 January 2016 A = 60,212 (137) 60,075
Credited to profit or loss BT A (39,663) — (39,663)
Exchange realignment  [EH 7% (1,052) 89 (963)

At 31 December 2016 R=-T—XFE+=-A=+—H 19,497 (48) 19,449
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

The Group has not recognised deferred tax assets in
respect of tax losses arising in Mongolia up to the date
of the Disposal of approximately HK$23,872,000 (2015:
HK$23,872,000), due to unpredictability of future profit
streams. The tax losses arising in Mongolia is subject to
the agreement of the local tax authority and shall be carried
forward according to the relevant provisions of Corporate
Income Tax Law of Mongolia under which the tax statement
losses of Infrastructure and Mining companies shall be
deductible from taxable income of subsequent four to eight
years since the loss incurred. The loss carry-forward period
of a particular mining entity shall be determined by the
Mongolian government after taking into consideration the
investment made by the entity in its mining and exploration
business.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has not
recognised deferred tax assets for tax loss arising in
PRC of approximately HK$119,919,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB107,416,000) (2015: approximately
HK$31,646,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB26,511,000)) that will expire after five years from the
year of assessment to which they relate to.

35. IEERIE (&)

HEHERH IRSEHBEELZHE
B 18 #4923,872,0008 (=T — A F:
23,872,000 7C) M5 + R RBETERIRIK
mHRE MAEEVEBERELCHEE
E o -REGTBEFEECHEEREFE
BT RERES & B EAEHER
G A - HERBEEAR B EEBERE
AREBEARNENFAZ ERBRBASF
R - FEREERBEEEENERS S
BBTEE BX B BN ERE & IR ESH
FT{EC IR BB -

R-ZE—XRNF+_HA=1+—"H AEEWL
ERELEETEERNEBERTGFERLR
&l F JZ 1% 2 BA Y B T E5 18 49 119,919,000 74
T (FHERHAR107,416,0007T) (=
— R : 431,646,000 T (HERHAR
¥ 26,511,000 7T) ) FERIELETR IHEE o
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35. DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

As at 31 December 2016, the Group has unused tax losses
of approximately HK$44,043,000 (2015: HK$44,043,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax
asset has been recognised in respect of approximately
HK$44,043,000 (2015: HK$44,043,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The tax losses may
be carried forward indefinitely.

Under the EIT Law of PRC, withholding tax is imposed on
dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred tax
has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of temporary differences attributable
to accumulated profits of the PRC subsidiaries amounting
to approximately HK$94,473,000 as at 31 December 2016
(2015: approximately HK$102,110,000), as the Group is
able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

35.

ERERIE ()

R-EBE—RF+_A=1+—"H AEBZ
RE) BRI HH44,043,0008 T (=F
— R : 44,043,000 7T) - Al AR
RAHF o R R HE F 7 2 2 A Al 788
M I 4944,043,0008 (T —F
5 : 44,043,000 70 ) ERIEETHIAE E ©
ZEMIBBE N ERALE -

RIEFEERMAERE R_TTNF—
H— B Bt BB QR REUZ 8 A
BERZIREBHIIAMNB - HRAEBE
WIEHEREERRERRE - A E
REVBHRERAEHETEMNBARR _-F
—ANFtZA=t—BZRMaE ST
M EZEFR94,473,000 B T(ZE—HF : 4
102,110,00078 7T ) sHREIE L IR B4 - T
EREERA R T SERRREARRED -
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36. SHARE CAPITAL 36. [
Number of
Par value ordinary shares Total
H{E ZERHAE WM
HK$ HK$’000
BT FHT
Authorised EE
At 1 January 2015 and R-ZE—EHF
31 December 2015 and 2016 —H—H
R-ZE-HER
—EB-XRE
+=ZA=+—H 0.25 30,000,000,000 7,500,000
Issued and fully paid EEITRAR
At 1 January 2015 N-E—FFE
—H—H 0.25 6,706,608,364 1,676,652
Exercise of share options (note a)  1T{FBEAAE (Fiza) 0.25 221,660,000 55,415
Conversion of Convertible Note |~ {2 [ % Z i |
(note b) (MI3ED) 0.25 14,512,727 3,628
Conversion of Convertible Note I 3 A #AGZ=HE ||
(note ) (Mt5Ec) 0.25 264,000,000 66,000
Shares issued under placing BB EE1T 2D
(note d) (H3Ed) 0.25 950,000,000 237,500
At 31 December 2015 and 2016 AZZE—HFK
—E—RE
+=ZB=+—H 0.25 8,156,781,091 2,039,195

All of the shares issued by the Company rank pari passu in

all respects with other shares in issue.

ARAB2RERTROHEMETEEEME

BTN ZEARFHAL ©
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36. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

During the year ended 31 December 2015, 8,860,000 and
212,800,000 share options (2016: nil) had been exercised
by holders at HK$0.25 and HK$0.26 (2016: nil) each for the
issuance of shares respectively. As a result of the exercise of
share options, cash and cash equivalent, share capital and
share premium have been increased by HK$57,543,000,
HK$55,415,000 and approximately HK$15,904,000 respectively
(2016: nil) and share option reserve has been decreased by
approximately HK$13,776,000 (2016: nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Noteholder |
converted Convertible Note | in aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$15,964,000 (2016: nil) at the conversion
price of HK$1.1 per share whereby a respective total number
of 14,512,727 (2016: nil) conversion shares were issued. As
a result of the conversion, share capital and share premium
of the Company has been increased by approximately
HK$3,628,000 and HK$18,051,000 respectively (2016: nil) and
the aggregate of which represents proportional amounts of the
equity component, the Derivative Component and the liability
component at the time of conversion.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Noteholder Il
converted Convertible Note Il in aggregate principal amount
of approximately HK$66,000,000 (2016: nil) at the conversion
price of HK$0.25 per share whereby a respective total number
of 264,000,000 (2016: nil) conversion shares were issued. As
a result of the conversion, share capital of the Company has
been increased by approximately HK$66,000,000 and share
premium of the Company has been increased by approximately
HK$14,663,000 respectively (2015: nil) and the aggregate of
which represents proportional amounts of the equity component
and the liability component at the time of conversion.

On 21 April 2015, the Company completed a placing of
950,000,000 new shares of the Company at HK$0.33 per
share. Proceeds generated from the placing amounted to
HK$313,500,000 (before share issue expenses of approximately
HK$5,723,000). The net proceeds of approximately
HK$307,777,000 were intended to be utilised as general
working capital of the Group. As a result of the placing,
share capital and share premium have been increased by
HK$237,500,000 and HK$70,277,000 respectively.

36. A ()

REEZE-Z—AF+_A=+—HIHF
& #HAEABEER0.258TK0.26787T

—TE—RE: ?)/‘EU?ﬂES,%0,000&
212,800,000 7 HE f& 4 ( =& — 75 F : #&)
LAEZITIR D - ARATIEIERE Be R
REZEY - BRARKMD RED D530
57,543,000/ 7T * 55,415,000 T & 4
15,904,000 L (ZF =% &) - Mg
&% 4 ft 48 RIRL > #918,776,000 8 70 (= F
7/\& - g)

REBEE_ZT—AF+_A=+T—HL®F
F*‘ CEEFEAIRSRA. 1;‘%73253%1“
Hias KRS 415,964,000 7T (=

—NE T)ZT}ﬁﬂxﬂ‘él %J%t%@%é
176 H£1451272TR(=ZF — RN F : &)
)‘?‘Lﬁﬂﬂ"f’EEEAﬁE%RTﬁ AR B RA

KR 49 34 1B 5 5l 38 1N 49 3,628,000 7 7T &
18,051,000 L (—T—/"F: T) Hi
%EBJ-{@ Wri b 85 2 e 3000 - 47
TAFMREEBH 22

@;

RBEE-_T—AF+—A=+—HLHF
B BEFEEANEER025ETTZ HiR
HigA H RS 8 466,000,00078 7T (=
— T)Z—J}ﬁﬁxﬂ:ﬁé” CEE A
25174 264,000,000/ (= Z— /84 « 4E)
HARRGD - BRARBEE  NARIRAR
HN#966,000,000 7 7T & AN A &) B 17 )i (B 1
bu%@m,eess,ooo;‘%ﬁ(:%—ﬁi CE)
H B8 A AR E FHR b (88 48 2 i 25 501D
KaEEn 2z -

NH?

R-ZZE—RAEMNA=-+—08 ' KXATITHK
% 7 (% 0.337% JT At & 950,000,000 % 4
NRFRMD - BBEFBEEL Z B HIE
/313,500,000 7% 7 (K 0 B I& 19 2% 17 5
2 #95,723,000% 7T ) © FT15 RIBF R4

307,777,000 T EA S B — R E
Bd o AR ESRA KD & ED BN

237,500,000 7T 52 70,277,000/8 7T, °
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

On 26 May 2016, the Company has adopted a new share
option scheme (the “Scheme”). The previous share option
scheme was adopted on 25 February 2006 and has already
been expired on 24 February 2016 (the “2006 Share
Option Scheme”). The outstanding share options under
the 2006 Share Option Scheme remains valid. The purpose
of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme are
to recognise and acknowledge the contributions that
the eligible participants have made or may make to the
business development of the Group. Eligible participants of
the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme include
(i) the Company’s executive, non-executive or independent
non-executive directors or a director of an entity in which
the Group holds an interest (the “Affiliate”); (ii) other
employee or officer of the Group or any Affiliate; and (iii)
customer, supplier, agent, partner, consultant, adviser or
shareholder of or contractor to the Group or any Affiliate.
Eligible participants of the 2006 Share Option Scheme also
include (iv) the trustee of any trust the beneficiary of which
or any discretionary trust the discretionary objects of which
include persons under (i), (i) and (iii); and (v) a company
beneficially owned by any persons under (i), (i) and (iii). The
principal terms of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option
Scheme are summarised as follows:

(1)  Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay
HK$1 to the Company as consideration for the grant.

37.

UM BER 2 NRRZ

N—E—RFRAAZT/XA - XRBIEERA
—IEFTH R RT &l ([ &1 8l)) - A7z
AIEEBREA BN ST RNF_A=-+H
E%IZ\W’EEEA T—RFE-A= ‘f’@ﬂ;ﬂ
B2 FERETE - —TF
RERERT 8 2 MARTTIR B E R R R -
ZtEI R T NFERESEEESER
AREBRB2EEHAEEEBERMEL
HAEE 2 BRE © et 8| R — T RFER
BBz 5 ER2HERE - () ARBIZH
17 SERITSB N FITE TR ASERNE
PHEER ER((BMEBAR]) ZESE (i)
REESNEREB AR 2 EMESHEEA
8 KijAEEREMBEBARIZER
fHrEng - O - /—\%/\ B FBRA R

BeEBRE —ETNFEREFEC AL
M2BEIREIE (WA EERT

BEREZEFEA » MEFEE AN
RRERYER - BFEF() - () REHETZA
T RWE®D @REHETZEFMALE
SRBZAF] © Kt R =TT FREARE
A8l =R AL -

(1) IR NS R S B A A T %
(1 BT A B R -
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

@

The subscription price in respect of each share under
the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option Scheme
shall not be less than the highest of (i) the nominal
value of the Company’s shares; (i) the closing price
of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer to the eligible
participant, which must be a day on which licensed
banks are open for business in Hong Kong and the
Stock Exchange is open for business for dealing in
securities (“Trading Day”); and (i) the average closing
price of each share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five consecutive
Trading Days immediately preceding the date of offer
to the eligible participant.

An option may be exercised in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme and the 2006 Share Option
Scheme at any time during the period which shall
not be more than 10 years from the business day on
which the option is deemed to have been granted.
There is no minimum period for which an option must
be held before it can be exercised.

The maximum number of the Company’s shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Scheme and the 2006
Share Option Scheme and any other scheme of
the Company shall not in aggregate exceed 10%
of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of listing of the Company’s shares on the
Stock Exchange. The Scheme mandate limit may
be refreshed by the shareholders in general meeting
from time to time provided always that the Scheme
mandate limit so refreshed must not exceed 10% of
the total number of shares in issue as at the date of
approval of such refreshment by the shareholders in
general meeting.

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ (@)

@

ZETEI R TN EIET
BRBOHZRBETSENRTI =4
R EmE () AREZROEE ; (i)
RETFERERZEEE R (BARER
FBRIRITE XY BT KRB Pl 1T %
FRGEBZAT(XRZB D) R
B R Z TS HRERMAY 2T
B RilBERTEERLHEER
ATEE R AR 5 B SRR DR AT
B HBERHMY 2 FHRHE -

BRERAREZAEIL _FTAFE
PeAERT 82 R5K - RIBRER A RE
ERMZEXBEFTBEI10FZH
FIABERTTE o MU AR E 170 BB A i
R BT A 2 SRR

ARRBRBZTER ST NFER
R E R AR RMEM EALET B R
ZFTEEREREITER TEIT IR
SROEE A ETSHBARRRRGD
REEZ BT EHE B AR REBETIRA
2Z210% > RERAITHERBRRAE LE
et 8| LR - KRB 2%t
EIRE LRI SBBRENKRERS
HHEZEEHEAZBBITRG A
HZ10% °
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

(4)

(Continued)

Notwithstanding any other provisions of the Scheme
and the 2006 Share Option Scheme, the maximum
number of the Company’s shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and the
2006 Share Option Scheme and any other scheme
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of the total number of shares in issue from time to
time. Unless approved by the shareholders, the
maximum number of shares issued and to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted to any eligible
participants (including exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the total number of shares in issue from
time to time.

As of 31 December 2016, the total number of shares
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme
is 815,678,109 shares representing approximately
10% of the issued share capital of the Company as
of the date of this report. The remaining life of the
Scheme is about 9 years.

The 2006 Share Option Scheme expired on 24
February 2016.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ @)

“)

(%)

EAZEZTa R — ST RNFHERE
SHEEMEMGEXZIBERT » RAF]
RIBZET 8 R — BTN FHEARER 2
RARAUEREMETSIE R B mBRF
TTERFTE M ARITE Z BIRAEEITE
Rl T&IT R &ES8E /S
BHEETRE BTN A Z30% -
PRIEES ORI E - B RIREA 1218
ABEARTEAGERSEEZRE
P (BRRETE - O REARITE
Z BRI ) BT R BRIT R T RITZ
BEhE&mEE NMEEB TR ETR
NARERZ 1% °

R-ZTE—RE+-_A=+—H " 1B
ZATE R BT AR ARG BE A
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HEBHBBITRAL10% © %58l
BT HIOF AN -

“EERERBREFEIR T —RF
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37.

(Continued)

No share options were granted since the adoption of the
Scheme. Details of specific categories of options granted

LUR 7 B 2 2 A+

MRZ (%)

E %Téﬂ%%x?riﬂ PAZRIE S 4% h RE A © iRIR—
TRFREE RN B ER

under the 2006 Share Option Scheme are as follows: %'Jﬁ IE U
Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period Exercise price Fair value at grant date
RiEBH b L T8 1% RELABZAAE
Before After Before After
adjustment  adjustment  adjustment  adjustment
(note)
(M)
25 August 2009 N/A 25 August 2009 to 31 August 2012 HK$0.385  HK$1.925  HK$0.144 HKS0.72
“ETNE oyilii “EENEN\AZTRA 038587 19%ET  014ET 0.72AT
NBZt+ER E5-—%)\A=1-H
25 Qctober 2010 25 Oc tober 2010 10 24 April 2011 25 April 2011 to 24 October 2020 HK$0 171 HKS0.855  HK$0.059  HK$0.295
-%-% “E-FFTA-TRA “E——HNACTRA AT 085 0059BT 02051
+A-+1A 225-—FNA-1RA EZECRETACTRA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2011 25 October 2011 to 24 October 2020 HK$O 71 HKS0855  HKS0.066  HKS0.328
“Z-FETACTRA I I il BT 08%ET  0086ET 0381
E5——%TAZTRA ECECFETACTRA
25 Qctober 2010 o 24 April 2012 25 April 201210 24 Qctober 2020 HK$0 171 HK$0.855 HK$0.071 HK$0.356
“E-FFTACTRA ZE-ZENACTHA BT 08SET  00T1ET 03%AT
E-5-"ENA-TRA EZZCTETACTRA
25 QOctober 201010 24 October 2012 25 Oc ober 2012 to 24 October 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855  HK$0.076  HK$0.381
“E-ZETACTHA S e i 0I71ET 0855  00T6AT  0381%7T
EZ5-CETAZTRA EZE-FETACTRA
25 Qctober 201010 24 Apri 2013 25 April 2013 0 24 Qctober 2020 HK$0.171 HK$0.855 HKS0.081 HK$0.403
“E-TETACTHA S ) i 0A71%T 08557 0081AT  0403%T
EE-ZFMAZTNA EZR-FETACTRA
25 October 2010 to 24 October 2013 25 October 2013 to 24 October 2020 HK$O 71 HKS0855  HKS0.085  HKS0.424
“E-FETACTRA ZE-CETACTRA BT 08%ET  0085ET 04431
EZ5-ETAZTRA ECSCRETACTRA
9 October 2012 N/A 9 October 2012 to 8 October 2022 HK$0.05 HKS0.25  HKS0.009  HKS$0.045
“E-CETHANE TEE “E-ZE#TANAE 0.05 /57 0581 00097 0045
“Z-ZETAN
9 October 2012 to 1 April 2013 2Apri\ 2013108 October 2022 HK$0.05 HK$0.25  HKS0.009  HK$0.045
“E-ZETANA “Z-ZF¥MmAZH 005  025%T  0000%T  O06ET
E-5-ZEMA-R E-E-CE1A)E
9 Oo fober 2012 to 1 October 2013 2 Oo fober 2013 to 8 October 2022 HKS$0.05 HK$0.25  HKS0.009  HKS$0.046
“Z-—F+ANA “Z-ZF+AZH 0.05 /57 0531 0009  0046%T
EZ-ZEtA-R EECCEHANR



37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Date of grant
RiAH

Vesting period
BES
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Exercise period

T8

Exercise price

1

37. URDABEBR2IRRZ (&)

Fair value at grant date

RRHABZARE

Before
adjustment

REA

adjustment

Adter Before After

adjustment  adjustment

B4 B3 B4
(note)

(i)

26 September 2014
“E-mE
AAZTAA

NA
0 li

26 September 2014 to 26 March 2015
ZE-WEAAZT/AR
“Z-RF=R-TA

26 September 2014 to 26 September 2015

“E-WEAR-+/HE
“E2-RENAZTA

26 September 2014 to 31 December 2017
ZE-MEAAZTRER
AR e

27 March 2015 to 31 December 2017
“E-REZA-ttRE
A

27 September 2015 to 31 December 2017
ZE-RENACTERE
I i =

NA
MR

N/A
il

NA
0l

HK$0.26 N
02677 01 5%

HK$0.26 N/A
02657 N %

HKS0.26 N/A
026787 Ielii 8%

=

Directors:

HKS0.072
007287
Employees:
[E&:
HK$0.061
0.061 &
Directors;

HK$0.078
0.078/87T
Employees:
[E&
HK$0.070
0.070%T
Directors;

HK$0.082
0.082787
Employees:
[E&:
HKS0.076
007677

Note: Upon the share consolidation becoming effective on

20 November 2012, the exercise price of share options has
been adjusted. Details of the adjustment of share options have
been disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
9 October 2012.

BIAE -

BRPEHR—_E——F+—A-+8B4
Wig BREZITEED TUAE-
BREAEFBERARRIRBHACT
——E+ANBZAGHEE -
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. LR AEBZ2ARRKRS (&)
(Continued)

Movements of the share options and their BRESBREMEFLIITEE
weighted average exercise price

Number of share options

BRERE
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2016 2016
Grantees Options grant date RZE—RF Forfeited RZE—RF
ERA BRERERS —-BA—H 2RK +=A=+-H
’000 ’000 ’000
R T’ T
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 - 36,700
= —E-TF+A-+hA
9 October 2012 14,080 - 14,080
—Z-_F1+ANH
26 September 2014 325,000 (65,000) 260,000
............................................ ST R !
ettt etere e reeteresteresterssnerssteresreresreseereseerere s 375,780 ... (65,000 ... 310,780
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 - 8,000
B8 —E-TF+AZ+hHAE
9 October 2012 440 - 440
—T-—%1tANA
26 September 2014 53,200 (26,000) 27,200
............................................ ST A R !
e S1BR0 26000 ... 35,640
Suppliers of services or goods 25 October 2010 13,000 - 13,000
RBRERMEE SR R A R !
Total 450,420 (91,000) 359,420
N
Exercisable at the end of year 359,420
RERFITE
Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.34 0.26 0.32

IHEFH1TIEE
B/ B)




ANNUAL REPORT 2016 3R 257

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)
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37. URDABEBR2IRRZ (&)

BRESEHREMEFITEEE)

Number of share options
fElRiEZ B
As at As at
1 January 31 December
2015 2015
Grantees Options grant date RZE—HF Exercised R-E—HF
EEA g ER S —HA—H 217 +ZA=1+—8H
'000 '000 '000
FH& FH& FA&
Directors 25 October 2010 36,700 - 36,700
£ —E-TF+A-+hA
9 October 2012 18,380 (4,300) 14,080
—ET——%+ANA
26 September 2014 325,000 — 325,000
............................................ ST A R
ettt et e et oottt et oottt ereer et e s entereereer e renreneereererens 380,080 ... (4300) ... 375,780
Employees 25 October 2010 8,000 — 8,000
B8 —T-TF+AZ+hHA
9 October 2012 1,400 (960) 440
—T-_FtANAB
26 September 2014 266,000 (212,800) 53,200
............................................ ST A R ]
ettt ettt r ettt a e et er e s b et et er e b en s b er e rentereneas 275400 . (213,760) 61,640
Suppliers of services or goods 25 October 2010 13,000 — 13,000
PRIk E m it e —T-TF+A-+hA
9 October 2012 3,600 (3,600) —
............................................ B T A
ettt et e ettt et ettt e st er et e b ertere et e et e s e tene et e sr e renreneere e, 16600 (3600). . ... 13,000
Total 672,080 (221,660) 450,420
25
Exercisable at the end of year 332,220
FERATTE
Weighted average exercise price
(HK$ per share) 0.31 0.26 0.34

IEF1TEE
B/ )
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

In respect of the share options exercised during the year
ended 31 December 2015, the weighted average share
price at the date of exercise was HK$0.62.

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2016 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 1.64 (2015:
2.52) years.

The fair value of the share options granted to the Directors,
employees and sub-contractors was determined based on
the fair value of the equity instruments measured on the
date of grant. Share options granted to the sub-contractors
are an incentive to them for their continuing contribution to
the Group for providing services similar to those rendered
by its employees. The fair value of the share options
granted to the consultants and suppliers was determined
based on the fair value of the share options granted.

37. LR AER 2 IRRZ (@)

RREE—Z—AF+_A=+—"HIFE
ITEMBEREM S - PR17E B BRI
RX(B A0.62 BT °

RN-E—RNE+-A=1+—BHRITEER
ERMEF R TAENFRE164F(=F
— R 2524)

RYES - EERDBAZBEREAARET
RERNFELBMFGECERTARAENE
E o MDBERKhZBRERSEBEER
AEE—-EHRHEREEBFiREERE 2R
BREL 2 BRE o X TR R e 2 BBk
BAABEIREFAREEREZ AR EME

=

JE ©
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 37. URGABERBZARRZ (&)
(Continued)
The fair value of the share options granted were calculated EREHZEREA A ERBHE N = - 7R
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model or Binomial HiEE ERA g E B e B RETT
option pricing model. Details of the inputs to the model are TE  RAWBARIBE 2FBHINAT -
as follows:
Inputs into the model B ABE
25 August 25 October 9 October 26 September
2009 2010 2012 2014
“ETAFE —T-TF -T--F -B-QNF
NB=+EHB +A=+EHH +AAB HhA=+AH
Exercise price 1TfE(E HK$0.385 HK$0.171 HK$0.05 HK$0.26
0.385/8 7T 0.171787T 0.05%87T 0.26 77T
Expected volatility TEER R IR 87.04%-102% 57.78% 51.22% 53.74%
Expected life TEHAHAMR 0.5-2years 4.8-7.2vyears 7.5-7.6 years 3.3 years
05FE2F 48FE72F T75F76F 3.3%F
Expected dividend yield FEEAA% B8R 0% 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free rate o N =R 0.16%-0.522% 2.0970% 0.7510% 0.9507%

TEEIRIE T2 RER A RBAE 2 FB LMK
IBRMERE - ZEAAERNEHRFHERE
EEEUTAEEREL  ITERVMRTAER
FHENREGELAE -

Expected volatility is determined by reference to the
historical volatility of weekly return for companies in the
same industry. The expected life used in the model has
been adjusted, based on management’s best estimate, for
the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

Risk-free interest rate represents the yields to maturity of
Hong Kong Exchange Fund Note with respective terms to
maturity as at the valuation date.

The Group recognised the total expenses of approximately
HK$2,215,000 for the year ended 31 December 2016 (2015:
HK$8,761,000) in relation to share options granted by the
Company.

ERERANRENGEBIHPZEBINEES
R 2| AR -

AREEERAEZ-_Z—F+-_A=1+—H
IFFEARRARRDERERE S HBENA
2,215,000/ L ( —E— R : 8,761,000%
JT) °
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37. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

38.

The Binomial model has been used to estimate the fair

value of the options. The variables and assumptions use in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on

the Directors’ best estimate. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

RESERVES

(@)

Under the Companies Law Cap. 22, (Law 3 of 1961,
as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
the funds in the share premium of the Company are
distributable to the shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on
which a dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the aggregate
share capital of subsidiaries acquired over the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange pursuant to the reorganisation of the Group
taken place before the listing of Company on the
Stock Exchange.

37.

38.

URHBRER 2 NS (&)

—EA AT BRI A S - P
RETEBRRAR B RERERINES
Z B AR - BREEENRETE
BRRNHZETATRR -

it

@ REREHSEFF2EQEE
(—NAR—FFI3FAEN LR KB
7)) ARARMEEZ B A HAIK
FTARGIRR - HEEEEZDIKRE
HER - A QRIZBARENEEERA
BEKBRPEIRZER -

b) ARBZEHBEEREAKERAK
NEER R FT ETATETT 2 BEMI
BHEBARRAABEEERNAR
BB TAER R 2 BARE(E 2 £ 58 -
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38. RESERVES (Continued)

()

Share option reserve represents the fair value of share
options granted.

Capital redemption reserve represents the transfer
from accumulated losses of the amount equivalent to
the par value of the shares repurchased.

As stipulated by regulations in the PRC, entities
established and operated in the PRC are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-profit (after offsetting
prior year losses) as determined in accordance with
the PRC accounting rules and regulations, to statutory
surplus reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50%
of the registered capital. The transfer to this reserve
must be made before distribution of a dividend to
equity owners.

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations.

38. f#&E &)

(©)

BhEFEECREBREZARE -

BB AR BESENER KRG
HESRE RAEE 85 -

RIFFBEDEMR - NP BRI KL
REVARRIE S B &8 R KA B
BEE 2 10% BB 1& A B (R 85 AT — 41
BER) BDEAERSRREEEEER
PRIFRAEREDEMEARRE0% - &
BREZRBBLARD KRS TRRZ
AIAETT °

7 MK
&AL
A%I =

[EX FEERMBRERINRB 2R
BMARTELZENZR °
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39. HEMHB AT

(@ On 5 February 2016, the Group disposed of its @ MRZE—A"F-_AAB ' Z"&£EMN
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary, Grand State {4 K B738000% T(HERY
Holdings Limited (“Grand State”) which was engaged 5,756,000 7T ) [Al— BB £ =77
in mining and exploration business, to an independent EERFRBELMREGOEEDE
third party for a cash consideration of US$738,000 BB /A &) Grand State Holdings Limited
(equivalent to approximately HK$5,756,000). The ([Grand State]) - ZEX FN_F
transaction was completed on 18 March 2016. —~NF=ZH+/\BEK °

39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

Grand State A E Bz BEFEN

The net assets of Grand State at the date of disposal

were as follows: 1
Consideration received: EWARE :
HK$’'000
THETT
Cash consideration received EIRERE 5,756
Analysis of the assets over which control ERAEHEZEEDN
was lost:

Froparty, plant and SQUPTN e PR R ]
Net assets disposed of BEHEZEEFE —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary: HE—RERB AR ZWE -

Consideration received BB 5,756

Nt 8SSetS GISPOSSA OF e ekt o
Gain on disposal (note 11) o YEs (FIsE11) 5,756
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERZESRARE
Cash consideration HERE 5,756

EHEZHBRRHARERE_T—RF
RZBE-—RF+_A=+—HIEFEZXE
MReREYBEBBERNTE

The disposed subsidiary had no significant impact on the
results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2015.



39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

(b)

As referred to in note 11, on 20 September 2016,

the Group discontinued its mining and
business at the time of disposal of the
Group, to an independent third party
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(b)
exploration
Fast Billion
for a cash

consideration of US$200,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,560,000). The transaction was

completed on 20 September 2016.

The net assets of the Fast Billion Group at the date of

disposal were as follows:

39. HEMHRB AT (&)

MKt 1M R —~FEhA
~—+AAREE R AR £ A 200,000
FE ot (HEE R 41,560,000 7T ) M) —
% %@ % = 5 I & Fast Billion 5 &
RIFPEREREERER - ZBEX SR
ZE-RNFNAZ+AEK -

A H & H HiFast Bilion& B 2 & &%
BT :

Consideration received: BUWRIE :

HK$’'000
FHEIT
Cash consideration received BURERE 1,560

Analysis of assets and liabilities over CERIEHEZEE

which control was lost: REaEsi:

Goodwill pes _
Mining licences PRUE R AR —
Exploration and evaluation assets R R EEE —
Inventories FE 9
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E A S GRIE 843
Bank balances and cash IRTTHERNIRS® 15
Deferred income IEFEUA (4,152)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEZBEFE (3,285)
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39. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

39. HEMHMB AT (&)

(Continued) L) (#&)
HK$'000
FHAT
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries: HEMRB AR ZWE !
Consideration received R E 1,560
Net liabilities disposed of EHEAEFE 3,285
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR (864)
Cumulative exchange differences in respect REEEHWEARH
of the net assets of the subsidiaries 2= | W FRF S B /BB 2 )
reclassified from equity to profit or loss BEEFEOERETHE
on loss of control of the subsidiaries EEREACRITELER 70,491
Gain on disposal (note 11) o Yas (fisE11) 74,472
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HENELEZRESRAFE
Cash consideration HERE 1,560
Less: bank balances and cash disposed of B BB RITEBKIRS (15)
1,545

AN HAR N 38 7+ HAfS Fast Billion EE ¥ A&
EXEENRERENTERENMITE -

The impact of the Fast Billion Group on the Group’s
results and cash flows in the current and prior periods
is disclosed in note 11.
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. RIE
Operating lease commitments T ERIE
The Group as lessee AEBERFABEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RMEER - AEERETYER —EER
commitments for future minimum lease payments under BEZTAHEQEHEE T 2 HE&EMR
non-cancellable operating leases in respect of properties ERFEERT :

and an intangible asset which fall due as follows:

2016 2015

—E-RE —E—hF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Within one year —%FNR 16,883 20,841
In the second to fifth years F_EFEERF (BIEEREMTE)

inclusive 30,559 52,413
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40. COMMITMENTS (Continued) 40. RIE(#)
Operating lease commitments (Continued) REHERIE E)
The Group as lessee (Continued) REBEREBA ()
The Group leases certain properties and an intangible asset AEERBEKEEHERERETYER —IEE
under operating leases. The leases are negotiated for an WEE - ZEMERMEZVTFHR—2R
initial period of one to five years (2015: one to four years), F(ZE—RF : —E=WF) * WATAREIH
with an option to renew the leases and renegotiate the AEREEHERENERIRR - HERF
terms at the expiry date. Rentals are fixed for an average of HFHEM(ZZE—RF: =)FETE °

two (2015: three) years.

Capital commitment BEREE
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the RBEHAR - AEEB A TEARIE

following capital commitment:

2016 2015
—E-REF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Contracted for but not provided for gt ~3I&IED 514
in the consolidated financial ERBERGE
statements in respect of EUp e
— available-for-sale investment ~ — AJEHERE - 3,581




41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties:
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Friz e MR EME D BEEI - NEE
BENTERNBETRS :

(a) Transactions with related companies

(a) EHEBRARZRS

2016 2015
—E-KRF —ET—AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
()  Subcontracting cost payable to JE < — [
an associate W EEA 38,419 26,842
(i)  Rental expenses for office premises & —& FEIERZ AR R
payable to a non-controlling I AER SR
shareholder 4,149 6,661
(i)  Interest expenses payable to FER— B IEERR AR R
a non-controlling shareholder HF B2 2,754 1,714
(v)  Rental income receivable JE L — g B Gllzp)
from an associate GERAON 300 1,195

The related party transaction in respect of (i) above
constitutes a continuing connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules are provided in the “Directors’ Report” section
to the annual report.

The related party transaction in respect of (iii) above
constitutes a connected transaction as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, however it is exempt
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

The related party transactions in respect of (i) and (iv)
above do not constitute connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

B 8 _E 33 (i) TRR B R T X HiER LR A
FUAERENFERERS - LHRAE
MAEMREZRE  RNFERIEFSHRE]
—HARiRA o

B A £ X5 (i) TR R 5 X SR T AR A
FTHAERENEERS - Ai - RFE
el EmBRAE T HAE TARER

==

JE ©

BRLEXE)REVIBEBEH D XZILTE
A ETRAETOATE THRER F A FFHE
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (cContinued) L. BABARS (&)

(b) Key management personnel (b) FEEEAE
Included in staff costs is key management personnel BINABENTERZEEEREA
compensation which comprises the following BifE
categories:
2016 2015
—B-RF —ZE-hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FAT
Short-term benefits 5 ERRE R 4,283 3,596
Equity-settled share-based  LAREZS A5 E 0 LAIKD
payment expenses Sz FX 1,260 5,020
Post-employment benefits ~ BEf 12 18 7 412 272
5,955 8,888
The remuneration of directors of the Company and AKRREEREETHABME NS
key executives is determined by the remuneration FMZESLKERENATHRER
committee having regard to the performance of TIHBEIEERE o

individuals and market trends.

42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 42, EXRERE
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to REBZERNERBREREAEEFE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern e M ARERIREEIR - FRFREEM
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits FIZHEEE 2 - WHESREZEARERE
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital PUBIE B ARRKA - A RAERFAEE 2 IBEM
structure to reduce the cost of capital and to support the R o

Group’s stability and growth.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, REEZERRELREFES  FEBRE
which includes borrowings, convertible notes and interest- B8 IHRRERKEN —BIFERRR 2
bearing amount due to a non-controlling shareholder, net of M ERIE - MIBRI|ITAEBRKIA S REERR

bank balances and cash, and pledged bank deposits. 1T173K ©
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42. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continued) L2. EXREE ()

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of REBRERNG B E o BAEEEH F AL

gearing ratio, i.e. net debt to equity. To maintain or adjust the B ZEDRFEBRAERE - B

capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment R AREAREE  WRAGHERKER + A

to shareholders or issue new shares as it sees fit and SESNSRBIRN TRE R EHZITHA

appropriate. No change was made in the objectives, policies Mo RBEZZE—"FRZZT—RF+=A
or processes for managing capital during the years ended 31 =+—BHLFE  FEEHESEELNER

December 2016 and 2015. ZBE - BERSER -

2016 2015

S —T—RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET FAT

Debt &85 560,259 629,432
Less: bank balances and cash & : SR7T4E 8 %

.....and pledged bank deposits RERDERBRITER (158,779) .. (335,819),
Net debt FES 401,480 293,613
Capital represented by total equity &7 : 4AREZS 334,534 987,845
Gearing ratio BERBELE 120% 30%

43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION L3. ERFERERS

()  During the year ended 31 December 2016, certain () REBEEZT—-—R"F+-A=+—H1E
trade and other receivables of approximately FEHRE ATE S KHEAMEWKIE
RMB6,564,000 (equivalent to approximately B HEH AR 6,564,000 T (FHE KL
HK$7,328,000) (2015: RMB6,725,000 (equivalent 7,328,000 7TT) (ZE—h%F : AR
to approximately HK$8,028,000)) in aggregate were 6,725,000 7 ( 48 & 7 498,028,000 %
offset against the trade and other payables, pursuant ) EREE THEHEBREHEES R
to the set-off agreements. Details are set out in note HAbFE(T 308 - FBEERKIEESE) ©

5().
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43. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION (Continued)

(i)

(i)

During the year ended 31 December 2016, inventories
of approximately HK$5,372,000 were transferred to
property, plant and equipment at its fair value at the
date of transfer.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Noteholder | converted Convertible Note | in aggregate
principal amount of approximately HK$15,964,000
at the conversion price of HK$1.1 per share whereby
a respective total number of 14,512,727 conversion
shares were issued. As a result of the conversion,
share capital and share premium of the Company
have been increased by approximately HK$3,628,000
and HK$18,051,000 respectively and the aggregate of
which represents proportional amounts of the equity
component, the Derivative Component and the liability
component at the time of conversion (note 36(b)).

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the
Noteholder Il converted Convertible Note Il in
aggregate principal amount of approximately
HK$66,000,000 at the conversion price of HK$0.25
per share whereby a respective total number of
264,000,000 conversion shares were issued. As a
result of the conversion, share capital of the Company
has been increased by approximately HK$66,000,000
and share premium of the Company has been
decreased by approximately HK$14,663,000
respectively and the aggregate of which represents
proportional amounts of the equity component and
the liability component at the time of conversion (note
36(c)).

L3. EXFBRERS (#)

(i)

(i)

(v)

RBE_ZE—AR"F+-_A=+—H1
FE - 495,372,000 THFEDILE
BOHNAAEEREDE  BEK
R o

REE-_ZE—RAF+-A=+—H81
FE BEFEARERIABTLZ
HIRE R BRE XA $ 549 15,964,000
B JREBER B BEETE
H14512, 727 RE BB D - ARNE
Hig RRARBRARRMDEES D5
# 0 #93,628,0007% JT & 18,051,000
BT - HBRRBEALRE RIRL 085
ZRERE  PTET A RBAEE
2z &8 (MizE36(0)) °

Rz _ZT—HAF+_H=+—H
IEFE ZEEFEA AIZER.25
BLIZRABELBREEXRSELN
66,000,000 7T 2 PT AR S=IR I - #R 1t
£ B %174 $£264,000,000 i i, # f%
> ARBB R ANQRIARAIE N
#966,000,000 7% 7T & 2R A & I 19 4 B
B 4914,663,000/8 7T © HARE AN
BRERRLOIEE  ERHBHOREE
in < o8 (3 36(c)) °
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44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF Lb, D TE ZHBARR R
THE COMPANY

2016 2015
—E-RE —ET—RF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5T FExT FHEIT
Non-current asset ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RETB AR ZRE 557,904 1,222,016
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other TS FRIE K H At U
receivables TR 786 824
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEURHI B A Rz IE 38,346 48,616
Tax recoverable AU el 1E 6 6
Bank balances and cash IRITHEGBRRIRS 32,960 45,279
72,098 94,725
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accruals H A fET RIB R
FEEtE A 1,854 2,369
Amounts due to subsidiaries JETB B A B FIE 8,082 8,089
9,936 10,458
Net current assets REBEEFE 62,162 84,267
Total assets less current HEERRBERS
liabilities 620,066 1,306,283
Non-current liability kREBEE
Convertible notes AR =g 33 469,282 421,466
Net assets BEEFE 150,784 884,817
Equity R
Share capital % 36 2,039,195 2,039,195
Reserves s (@) (1,888,411) (1,154,378)

Total equity R 150,784 884,817




PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

272

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

4L4. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF LG4, RKNT) 2B ARRE &)

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Notes: BaE
(@) @)
The Company AT
Convertible
Share Capital note equity
Share Contributed option redemption reserve Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve TAREE losses Total
RAEE BARE BRERE  EARERRE BRRG 268 &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn Thn Thn Thn Tn Tn Tn
(note 38(a)) (note 38(c)) (note 38(d) (note 33)
(Fiz£38(a)) (PizE380) (FizE38(0)) (P3E33)
At1 January 2015 R-E-15-f-H 968,372 76,249 51,918 6,629 349,409 (2,549,160) (1,096,583)
Lossand total comprehensie ~~ FABER
income for the year FENGLE - - - - - (260,845) (260,845)
Shares isste upon placing REREETRY
(note 36(0) (2360) 76,000 - - - - - 76,000
Share issue expenses (note 36(d)  FRIHEFTRIR (M 36(d) (5,729 - - - - - (5,723
Shares issued Upon exercise TiERRERTIRA
of share options (note 361z)) (P 36(a)) 15,904 - (13,776) - - - 2128
Maturiy of Convertible Note | TARREIZH - - - - (200581) 290,581 -
Renewal of Convertble Note |~ AR5 - - - - 139915 - 139915
Conversion of Convertiole Note| ~ H R #HZE
(note 360) (2 3600) 18,051 - - - 8279 - 9776
Conversion of Convertiole Note |~ {#FEHEZE
(note 36(c) (Ff3t36(0) 14,663 - - - (33.470) - (18,807)
Recognition of equiy-settled B ERERLIRD
.. Saetesedpaments poledy) | XHzBR(MEST) - U 881 ... T SR SR 8761
At 31 December 2015 and RZF-1%
1 January 2016 TZA=T-BR
“2-7"5-F-H 1,087,267 76,249 46,908 6,629 156,998 (2,628424) (1,154,378
Loss and total comprehensive ~~ FRBER
income for the year FENREE - - - - - (736,248) (736,248)
Forfefture of share options R g - - (6,892) - - 6,80 -
Recognition of equity-settled B ERERIN
share-based payments %z (3ksr)
LT T T 2215 T T T 2215
At 31 December 2016 AZB-AE
+=R=+-A 1,087,267 76,240 192% 6,629 156998 (257780  (1,888411)
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. TEMB QTS

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries as at 31 December RZE—AREFER=T—AF+=-A=1+—H
2016 and 2015 are as follows: ZEEMBARFFENAT
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation BrERG/ RUTBBASEEE Principal activities
AAER AMgAL/EEonE  EREERRA ERRERRZEADIL IEXH

31122016 31122015
ZE-5E “5-1f
t=A=+-A +ZA=1-H

Interests held directly:
ERERER:
Brave Lion Investments Limited BV US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRUES E RERR
Jichang Investments Limited BVI USS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
ABRUES 1% RERR
Polar Sea Ventures Limited BVI US$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
EBRAES 1% REHR
Interests held indirectly:
EgiAER
Camex Mongolia MNT12,000,000 - 100%  Mineral resources
bl 120000005 A EEHKER (note x) exploration and
(PtzE i) investment holding
BEERDRRRERR
Kores Mongolia LLC Mongolia MNT11,640,000 - 70%  Mineral resources exploration
FHE 1140005 5 EERER (note x) BELZRIR
Bz xi)
TNE Mongolia MNT10,000,000 - 100% Mining business in Mongolia
S08 10,000,005 A EBHER (note X) MREEE FRER
(KizEn)
Grand State BVl USSt - 100%  Property investment
ABRUES E (note i) VESE

(Rtitix)
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 45. TEMBRARFE )

('AVIC Siwei") (note iv

(BEi) (P

(Continued)
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation BRERT/ RUTBBASEER Principal activities
AAER dfay/ Sk ERSERRK ERRERARREIN IERH
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
= £ _/\_\i :g_ﬁﬁ
fA=t-R t-A-t-H
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BEGEER: (2
Peace Map Management Services Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS1 100% 100%  Provision of administrative
R M EERREARAR Bk 1871 senvices in Hong Kong
EERRIERRE
Peace Map Technology Company Limited  Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100% 100%  Technology and software
(note vi i 1,000,000 applcation development
R NEREERAR (itvi) R R AR
Sinbo BVI HK$10,821 100% 100% Investment holding
il ABRUES 10821 %7 RERR
Beiing Peace Map Information (note v) PRC HK$179,000,000 100% 100%  Technology and software
IRRTEES (Hv) EP 179,000,007 application development
R RE T ERRE
Beiing Peace Map (note iv) PRC RVB29,170,000 81.15% 81.15% Data processing of
IRATE (M) EF AR 29,170,000 T (notei) (note) geographical data,
4] (Bzki) research and development
of GIS in the PRC
RAEETOEYERE
IR REE GIS
Beiing Peace Map Aerospace PRC RMB1,000,000 81.15% 81.15% Sales of geographical data
Technology Limited* G ARE,000,0007 (notei, vl (noteil,vi)  HENEHE
(‘Peace Map Aerospace’) note ) (Roaki i) (P Fovil)
IR TBMARGARAR
([XTEmE ) (Fzv)
AVIC Siwei (Beijing) Aviation Remote PRC RMB15,000,000 53.56% 53.56% Data processing of
Sensing Technology Limited” i AR 15,000,000 (note (note i geographical data and

trading of aerial photo

R (LR MR ITAR A taking cameras
([ )) (i) HEE  SEREN
REEZHHREH

* For identification purpose only
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45. TEMB A RFE ®)

(Continued)
Paid up issued/ Percentage of effective equity
Place of incorporation registered ordinary interest and voting right
or establishment/ share capital attributable to the Group as at
Name of Company operation BrERG/ RUT SR EEER Principal activities
AER dfday/ Sk ERSERRK ERRERREREIY IERH
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
ZE-5E “E-1F
t=Azt-R t-Azt-f
Interests held indirectly: (Continued)
BieAER (£
Shenghezhuang (note iv) PRC RMB10,000,000 - 46.45% Provision of
B0iE (Hiv) h AEE10,000,0007T (note ¥ (ot information technology
(Hfztx) Bz services
RUESRIRS
Clear Aerial Technology Co., Limited” PRC RVB2,150,000 21.32% 21.32%  Manufacturing and trading
(‘Beijing Langtian Botai’) (note i) % AR%2,150,0007 (note i) (note i) of unmanned aircrafts
IR ERREARAR i) Bz and related equipment
([RExER ) (i) FEREERARKR
B
Yunnan Tugun Information Technology PRC RVB3,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Trading of sef--developed
Limited"* (note i) f ARE3,000,0007T (note i) (note i) products
ERBEERRIARAR (K (KtzEi) (i)  EERTREER
Beiing Haicheng Huatu Technology PRC RMB15,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  Technology and Software
Limited” (note i) # AR15,000,0007T (notefi (note i) application development
TREEEERBERAR (M) (RzEi) (ki) REREAERRE
Zhejiang Peace Map Information and PRC RMB6,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  GIStechnology and software
Technology Limited" (note iv) g AK%6,0000007 (notei (note i application development
WIATEMRE ERMARAA (KtzEi) (i) GISREREAERRY
(M)
Guizhou Peace Map Information and PRC RMB10,000,000 81.15% 81.15%  GIStechnology and software
Technology Limited” (note v) # AR10,000,0007T (note i) (note i) application development
EMATBIESRiARAR (W) (RzEi) (Wski)  GISHEREHERRS
Shanghai Elite Inernational PRC RMB10,000,000 100% 100%  Trading
Trading Co., Limited (note iv & vi) 5 AR%10,000,0007T £5

LEEBRERERARDA (Mt Rvi)

* For identification purpose only



276

PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED X T El#R B PR 2 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M ISR M

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #E_=—F—NF+=-H=1—HILFE

45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group which,
in the opinion of the directors of the Company, principally
affect the results for the year or formed a substantial portion
of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, result in particulars of excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities
outstanding as at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

Notes:

(i) No equity interests of Beijing Peace Map was held by the
Company. Beijing Peace Map Information, a wholly owned
subsidiary of Sinbo entered into the Structural Agreements
with Beijing Peace Map and the majority of its ultimate
shareholders in October 2012. Notwithstanding the lack of
equity ownership, through the Structural Agreements, Beijing
Peace Map Information is able to exercise control over Peace
Map Group by way of controlling the voting rights of Beijing
Peace Map, governing their financial and operating policies,
appointing and removing the majority of the members of their
controlling authorities, casting the majority of votes at meeting
of such authorities and deriving economic benefits from Peace
Map Group. Accordingly, Peace Map Group is accounted for
as subsidiaries of the Group after the acquisition of Sinbo on 2
August 2013. As one of the then shareholders of Beijing Peace
Map with equity interests of 18.85% was not a contracting
party to the Structural Agreements, only 81.15% of the financial
results of Peace Map Group is attributable to the Group.

(i) These companies are subsidiaries directly non-wholly owned
and controlled by Beijing Peace Map.

45. TEMB A RFHE ®)

ERINIARRESRRENFRRAESE
IBEFEIBNAREEEFEZIRMMO
AEEMBAR - AAREEAR @ WETHE
fMIE A REITHL - AEEHAWFITA
RITE °

() AREREFFILRXT B OERRARE
mo Bz —MEENBARILRATE
288 RRTE REXSMHREBER
—E——F+ AR B o 8RR
CHEBEBERRTB R EGE  E
ERATEEEEMAERZEHILRKTE
I EREmMEFI A TEE®E - BEEHIMS
REBHR - TRHEEREBHRI DK
BRNEZEABzeZ ERAZHE - L EH
MRTESEEEREERNZ - Bt - R=
T—=FNA-BUBEHER%R KXTES%
EEAASREZHBARYIR - 2BRIER
KTEzEP—RERARRES 18.85% 1
m BWIEEBIEHE TN - MR TE
SER A8 EEERBRAE
°

i) ZERAR/ILERRTEEZIFZERER
I Z B AT -
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45. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

(i

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viil)

(ix)

(x)

()

This entity is subsidiary indirectly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

These entities are registered as a private limited company under
the PRC law.

This entity is registered as Wholly Owned Foreign Entity under
the PRC law.

The entity was incorporated on 23 April 2015.

The entity was incorporated on 1 September 2015.

During the year ended 31 December 2015, Beijing Peace
Map acquired an additional 49% equity interest of Peace Map
Aerospace. Details are set out in note 47.

This company was disposed of on 18 March 2016.

This entity was deregistered on 30 March 2016. Details are set
out in note 48.

These entities were disposed of on 20 September 2016
following the Disposal.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company has other
subsidiaries that are not material to the Group. Majority of

these subsidiaries operates in Hong Kong and BVI. The
principal activities of these subsidiaries are summarised as

follows:

Principal activities

Principal place of business

45. T EMMB QA AFHE @)

BIeE « (&)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(vil)

(x)

)

(x)

ZE BRI AR T B EA kizH M1
ZEEBRBPREZIMALABRA
FZERREPBIAETMRINGBERE -
ZEBER —F-AFMNA-T=HEM

ZEREN _Z—AFNA—BaMkaL -
REE_ZT—AF+_A=+—HLF
E - bRKXTEWEX T B AEEIN9%
IR RS o FEIBEAMIEE4T o
ZARRZE—AR"F=ZA+N\BHHE -
ZEBN_F—AF= A=+ BWTH - &F

ZEEREHESBEER - —~FNA
“THBEHE -

RBMERR - NARAHEEHAEEL FEKR
ZEMHBAT - BRZEUFHBRRR
BRRRBRIUBEESKEEE - ZEMBLQ
Al EBREBHLLT -

Number of subsidiaries

FEXK TEEXME MERBBE
31.12.2016 31.12.2015
AL —_ZE—hfF
+=—HA=+—8 +_HA=+—H
Dormant BVI 1 1
TR AR 2 REBEXES
Mongolia - 1
S
Investment holding Hong Kong 1 1
REER B0
BVI 3 2
HERUHES




278 PEACE MAP HOLDING LIMITED % T B85 R A =

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L6. MEERFEERERZIEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- = NG A =2
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows the details of non-wholly-owned TREAEB 2 HAEAERERZIER
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling BB AR ZFS
interests:
Place of Percentage of effective
incorporation or equity interest and
establishment/ voting right attributable to
operation the non-controlling interests as at Profit (loss) allocated to Accumulated
Name of Subsidiary R AYe BENT REFERERE non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
i NEE Teny HERRERAZEA AL AREFERER 2R (B8 EitFERER

3122016 31122015 31122016 31122015 31122016 31.12.2015
B3 T-nf ZB-R3fF ZE-1F ZE-xE ZE-1f
t-B=t-B fZA=t-B +=A=t-B fZA=+-H +=A=t-B +ZA=1-H
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000

TEn Thn Tén TEn

Beiing Peace Map (note | PRC 18.85% 18.85% (15,668) (6,379 50,471 73,282
FRRTE (M) hEl
AVIC Siwei (note i, i) PRC 46.44% 46.44% (4,724) (8,79 (6,107) 387
o (BEE i) ]
Beiing Langtian Botal (note i, i PRC 72.68% 72.68% (6,837) (3,551) (9,421) (3.361)
TRBR AR (3 i) e
Indlividually subsicliaries

with immaterial non-controling interests 16,509 (483) 16,916 (8,155)

(EE R s YN

(10,720) (19.208) 51,853 62,153
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON-
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

(i) No equity interest is held by the Company. The Company has
control over the subsidiaries through the Structural Agreements.
Further details of the Structural Agreements are set out in note
45(j).

(ii) The company is a subsidiary directly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

(i)~ This company is a subsidiary indirectly owned and controlled by
Beijing Peace Map.

The summarised financial information in respect of each of
the Group’s subsidiaries that has material non-controlling
interests is set out below. The summarised financial
information below represents amounts before intragroup

L6, BEERFEZERER Z2IFZEM
BAoRz#HE @)

(i)

(i)

RATL WA TS - AR T BB
A BRE SRR - RS2
— BN KR 450) «

ZAF R RR T B EERE RAES 2 M
BRAE]

SAT AL R T BRI A K22
BAF -

0

BRBAEERER  AREENEA
A2 B E BRI EEN T XX - AT ER
MR BN B E 2 52 B8 -

eliminations.

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hE
Beijing Peace Map IEHEXTE HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET
Current assets MENEE 501,751 487,684
Non-current assets JEmBNEE 527,809 603,252
Current liabilities MENBE (704,279) (619,556)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (57,529) (82,615)

Equity attributable to owners RAEHA AEEER
of the Company 217,281 315,483
Non-controlling interests FEIE I Z 50,471 73,282
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L6. MEERFERERZIIEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BRARIZEHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2016 2015
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) 1tRXTE (&) AL —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAET
Revenue WA 213,496 221,087
Expenses X (296,618) (254,930)
Loss for the year FAEE (83,122) (33,843)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHEA AEGEE
of the Company (67,454) (27,464)
Loss attributable to the RIS B (R B 1R
non-controlling interests (15,668) (6,379)
Loss for the year FAEIE (83,122) (33,843)
Other comprehensive expense  ARA RIS AFENL
attributable to owners Hib2mEFAY
of the Company (30,748) (14,357)
Other comprehensive expense  FFIEARHERSFE(L
attributable to the Hh 2 EF
non-controlling interests (7,143) (3,336)

Other comprehensive expense  FREME2HEFISZ
for the year (37,891) (17,693)
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. BEEARFERERZ 2 FEEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BAoRz#HE @)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
Beijing Peace Map (Continued) tRXTE (4) HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Total comprehensive expense VN/NSIE PPN 2
attributable to owners 2HERZ B
of the Company (98,202) (41,821)
Total comprehensive expense FEIERR R R PR
attributable to the FHEMY 858
non-controlling interests (22,811) (9,715)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEHEFZ BT
for the year (121,013) (51,536)
Dividends paid to B IR ER B
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash inflow from KEEH RS
operating activities MAFRE 17,322 91,773
Net cash outflow from KEEBRE
investing activities R (14,026) (34,954)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from BEES 2HESRAORD)
financing activities SFEE 7,139 (40,124)
Net cash inflow WEMAFHE 10,435 16,695
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. BRERFEZERER ZFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BRARIZEHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2016 2015
—E—AE “E—HhF
AVIC Siwei PR i O 4 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAT
Current assets MBNEE 92,415 116,980
Non-current assets IERBEE 23,899 24,435
Current liabilities mEAE (125,416) (133,024)
Non-current liabilities SERBAE (4,047) (7,558)
Equity attributable to owners RARER AFEL
of the Company M (7,042) 446
Non-controlling interests FEERRAE A (6,107) 387
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED 46. MEEARFERER ZIEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARIzHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2016 2015
—E—AE “ZE—HhF
AVIC Siwei (Continued) AR (42) HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Revenue WA 6,438 61,819
Expenses X (16,609) (80,750)
Loss for the year FNEBE (10,171) (18,931)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHEA AEGEE

of the Company (5,447) (10,139)
Loss attributable to the RIS B (R AR

non-controlling interests (4,724) (8,792)
Loss for the year FANEE (10,171) (18,931)
Other comprehensive (expense) AR FIHEA A

income attributable to owners FEMRE M2 E (FS) WEs

of the Company (2,042) 754
Other comprehensive (expense)  FEIEAZHERS

income attributable to the FEEEM 2T (FX) W

non-controlling interests (1,769) 655

Other comprehensive (expense) FAEA 2 (F) Wk
income for the year (3,811) 1,409
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L6. MEERFERERZIEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BRARIZEHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2016 2015
ZB-RF —E-RF
AVIC Siwei (Continued) FAT4E () HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Total comprehensive expense RREHEB AFENS
attributable to owners FHERZ B
of the Company (7,488) (9,385)
Total comprehensive expense FEIERRE R PR
attributable to the FHERMZ B
non-controlling interests (6,494) (8,137)
Total comprehensive expense FHNEHEFZ AT
for the year (13,982) (17,522)
Dividends paid to BT IR i s 2 IR B
non-controlling interests - -
Net cash outflow from KEES RS
operating activities Tt F R (1,037) (22,813)
Net cash outflow from KEERE
investing activities R ER (90) (304)

Net cash outflow Wemt F5 (1,127) (23,117)
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. BFRERFEZERER ZFZEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BARIzHE®)

CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2016 2015

—E—RF —E—hF

Beijing Langtian Botai B RESR HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAT

Current assets MENVEE 12,939 22,242

Non-current assets IERBEE - 5,832

Current liabilities NN (25,909) (32,691)

Non-current liabilities IEmBAaE - (7)
Equity attributable to owners RARERA A

of the Company FE(hHE R (3,543) (1,263)

Non-controlling interests FEIERR R (9,427) (3,361)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 #ZE—F—~NF+=-H=1—HIFF

46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED L6. MEERFERERZIIEZEM
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BRARIZEHE®)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)

2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
Beijing Langtian Botai (Continued) 1t B K% (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAT
Revenue WA 1,067 2,726
Expenses X (10,473) (7,612)
Loss for the year FNBE (9,406) (4,8806)
Loss attributable to owners RAEHA AEGEE
of the Company (2,569) (1,335)
Loss attributable to the RIS B (R B 1R
non-controlling interests (6,837) (3,551)
Loss for the year FANEE (9,406) (4,886)
Other comprehensive RARHE AL
income attributable Hih 2 mukEs
to owners of the Company 289 6
Other comprehensive FEIE AR RN
income attributable Hiv 2 HEes
to the non-controlling interests 771 16
Other comprehensive FRHMEERE

income for the year 1,060 22
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46. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

46. BEEARFERERZ 2 FEEM

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL NON- BAoRz#HE @)
CONTROLLING INTERESTS (Continued)
2016 2015
—E-RE —E—hF
Beijing Langtian Botai (Continued) 1t B X 83 (&) HK$’000 HK$’000
FERT FAT
Total comprehensive expense RAEHEB AN
attributable to owners 2HERZ B
of the Company (2,280) (1,329)
Total comprehensive expense FEIERR R R PR
attributable to the FHEMY 858
non-controlling interests (6,066) (3,535)
Total comprehensive expense FRNEHEFT BT
for the year (8,346) (4,864)
Dividends paid to B IR R 2 IRE
non-controlling interests - —
Net cash outflow from KEEH RS
operating activities Tt F R (139) (1,583)
Net cash inflow (outflow) from KEEH RS
investing activities A O ) F#E 21 (143)
Net cash outflow e ML FEE (118) (1,726)
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47. CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP INTEREST IN A

SUBSIDIARY

During the year ended 31 December 2015, the Group has
the following change in its ownership interest in a subsidiary.

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary

On 1 September 2015, Beijing Peace Map acquired an
additional 49% equity interest of Peace Map Aerospace,
increasing its ownership interest to 100%. Cash
consideration of RMB490,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$609,000) was paid to the non-controlling shareholder,
which carrying value of the net assets of Peace Map
Aerospace (excluding goodwill on the original acquisition)
was approximately HK$69,000. A schedule of the effect of
acquisition of additional interest is as follow:

L. A—REMBARIZEERERES

25

REE-_F-RAF+-_A=t—RALFE"
Z T SO NG P2 Toy 2 et Topt
—FO

W BE — R B A Rl 2 BRSMERR

R-ZE—RAFNA—A8  EtRXTEREX
TEIM AN 2 AR WEZ
BEREEZE100% © e KE AR 490,000
7t (FBE R 47609,000/87L) EX [ F—R3E
ERRARR - ZBIEERBRFF R TEMX
BEEFEZEOETEERBKEHE)
A #769,0008 7T o WHEEEIIME 2 < &2 2 1N
TR

2015
—E-0F
HK$’000
FERT
Carrying amount of Fr i B FEFRE pc i 2 2 BREI{E
non-controlling
interest acquired (69)
Consideration paid for FUEER T EMARREIMER T (HRE
acquisition of additional
interest in Peace Map
Aerospace (609)

Difference recognised in iRz Rt BIRERCZ5
accumulated losses
within equity (678)
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48. DEREGISTRATION OF A SUBSIDIARY 48. FHH—EME AT
During the year ended 31 December 2016, the Group REBEZZE—R"F+A=+—HILFE "
deregistered a subsidiary, Shenghezhuang. AEEDFH—FANEBAREME -
The net assets of Shenghezhuang at the date of BAER IR 2 BEFERT ¢

deregistration were as follows:

2016
—E-REF
HK$'000
FHET
Analysis of asset over which Kk EZHIEZEEDH :
control was lost:
Other receivables H e RIE 1,345
Net asset deregistered B EEFE 1,345
Loss on deregistration of T —EME AR ZEE :
a subsidiary:
Net asset deregistered B EESFE 1,345
Non-controlling interests FEIE MR AR 3,373
4,718
The deregistered subsidiary had no significant impact on B MBARHAREHEE T —F
the results and cash flows of the Group for the year ended R—FE—RF+-A=1T—HILFEZEE

31 December 2016 and 2015. rREREVEBERNTE
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49. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

(@)

On 3 March 2017, the Group and CATIC Siwei,
have mutually agreed to extend the unsecured
loan in aggregate of RMB34,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$37,958,000) to be repayable within
three years from the end of the reporting period,
which carried interest at 1-year RMB Benchmark
Interest Rate per annum quoted by the People’s Bank
of China.

On 3 March 2017, the Group and CATIC Siwei have
mutually terminated a rental agreement, the rental
included in the current account of amount due
to non-controlling shareholders of approximately
RMB10,921,000 (equivalent to HK$12,192,000)
for the period from 16 August 2014 to 29 August
2016 payable by the Group to CATIC Siwei under
the tenancy agreement was converted into a two-
year loan payable by the Group to CATIC Siwei, and
the unsecured renovation loan of RMB19,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$21,769,000
was converted into a two-year loan payable by
the Group to CATIC Siwei. These two loans carry
interest at 1-year RMB Benchmark Interest Rate
per annum quoted by the People’s Bank of China
over the outstanding balance of the Loan plus any
accrued interest. Further details are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 5 March 2017.

49. SREHPEREE

(@)

R-_ZE—tF=A=H' A5EH
MEMERLRBRERAELARKE
34,000,000 7t ( 18 & M 4937,958,000
BIL) 2 BEHRERRRERRE=F
NEE  FEAFBEARRITZ—F
HR N RIS ELEF R o

RZE—tF=A=H ~A&EEEHE
EMEHEBERLE—HEERZ -
BE-_ZE—NFNA+~AHEZZ—X
FNAZTHLBEHBE  AEERER
ERZEEN TUEMZE 2 AKLER
ZIEMIEERBRRBOASHOAR
#10,921,000 7T ( 48 & 712,192,000
BT BER AN E B RN T &R
TR —IEMTHER MEREE
1EE A R ¥ 19,500,000 7T (#HE K
#721,769,0008 7T ) E ] B A& EH
BN THEMEN—BEMFHER -
ZMEERFERBFEAREIT—F
HARBEEFFEFUEFRER
HEeg o M EEMRZRFFIE - E—05F
B HRARRBHAE-ZT—+tF=
ARBAZAMH -
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50. COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation of comparative information in respect of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2015 has been restated in order
to disclose the discontinued operation separately from
continuing operations.

During the year ended 31 December 2016, the comparative
figures of impairment loss of other intangible assets
had been reclassified from other gain and losses, net
and presented as a separate line item disclosed in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss to conform with
current year’s presentation.

As the reclassifications have no financial effect on the
amounts stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position, it is not necessary to present the third consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2015.

50. LbEBI=F

BE_ZT-—AF+_A=1T—HILFEZLH
BHEARZLIRENDENZY - UBER
ISR RS B E R DR

BE_ZT-—RF+_A=1T—HILFE &
B EE ZREBRZ LB TF DM
Wes MEBRFRTENM N BRERABERE
BEJNWE  UNEEXFEZZ25 -

HREBHM O RY BHESMBIRRAKREEE
EHBRE  MHAZIN_ZT—RF—A
—HAZE=HEMHIRREK -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MR

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of UTENzAEERBEREATRFEZERIUAR
the Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from BEENKBEBEBMENEEE BT ENLCEZLRE M
the published audited consolidated financial statements, is Bk o WHEW TMEXNEERGEMBEREZ
shown below. This summary does not form part of the audited — &b o

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS S
For the
Forthe  nine months
year ended ended
31 March 31 December
BZ BZ
=B=+-8B +=ZB=1+-H For the year ended 31 December
LEE IEH{ER BZ+=-A=t—-HLEE
2013 2013 2014 2015 2016
—E-=F —E-=F —T-mF —E-hE “E-RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TR
_ B(_eve_rjue_ _____________ ”W\ _________________ 856,_70_1 _____ _2_1 0_,(_)89 _____ 333808 _____ 3_0_4,8_81 N 232,778
Loss for the year/period FR/BAER (299,994) (271,162) (382,467) (154,711) (520,293)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
As at 31 March As at 31 December
R=B=1+-8 W+ZA=+-H
2013 2013 2014 2015 2016
=% ZF-=F ZEFmF ZFEF SE0F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THT TET TEr
Total assets BEE 1,218,580 2,053,573 1,864,318 1,955,498 1,255,419
Total liabilities BafE (1,185,963) (1,268,472) (1,226,571) (967,653) (920,885)

Total equity BiER 32,617 785,101 637,747 987,845 334,534







